Public Document Pack

Date of Wednesday, 21st April, 2021
meeting

Time 2.00 pm
Venue Virtual Meeting - Conference

Contact democraticservices@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

Cabinet

AGENDA
PART 1 - OPEN AGENDA

APOLOGIES
2 MINUTES

Tz

NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

Castle House

Barracks Road
Newcastle-under-Lyme
Staffordshire

ST5 1BL

(Pages 3-8)

To consider the minutes of the previous meeting held on 17" March 2021.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of interest from Members on items included in the agenda.

4 UPDATE ON ON-GOING ODOUR PROBLEM AFFECTING THE (Pages 9 - 22)

BOROUGH

5 NEWCASTLE TOWN CENTRE FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND (Pages 23 - 26)
AWARD

6 NEWCASTLE UNDER LYME PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY 2021 - (Pages 27 - 148)
26
INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT UPDATE (Pages 149 - 152)

FORWARD PLAN
9 URGENT BUSINESS

(Pages 153 - 156)

To consider any business which is urgent within the meaning of Section 100B(4) of the

Local Government Act 1972.

10 DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION

To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the
following reports, because it is likely that there will be disclosure of exempt information as
defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local

Government Act 1972.

Contacting the Council: Switchboard 01782 717717 . Text 07800 140048

Email webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk.

www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk


mailto:webmaster@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

11

ATTENDANCE AT CABINET MEETINGS

Councillor attendance at Cabinet meetings:
(1) The Chair or spokesperson of the Council’s scrutiny committees and the mover of
any motion referred to Cabinet shall be entitled to attend any formal public meeting
of Cabinet to speak.

(2) Other persons including non-executive members of the Council may speak at such
meetings with the permission of the Chair of the Cabinet.

Public attendance at Cabinet meetings:

(1) If a member of the public wishes to ask a question(s) at a meeting of Cabinet, they
should serve two clear days’ notice in writing of any such question(s) to the
appropriate committee officer.

(2) The Council Leader as Chair of Cabinet is given the discretion to waive the above
deadline and assess the permissibility if the question(s). The Chair’s decision will
be final.

(3) The maximum limit is three public questions at any one Cabinet meeting.

(4) A maximum limit of three minutes is provided for each person to ask an initial
question or make an initial statement to the Cabinet.

(5) Any questions deemed to be repetitious or vexatious will be disallowed at the
discretion of the Chair.

Members: Councillors Simon Tagg (Chair), Stephen Sweeney (Vice-Chair),

Trevor Johnson, Helena Maxfield, Paul Northcott and Jill Waring

Members of the Council: If you identify any personal training/development requirements from any of the
items included in this agenda or through issues raised during the meeting, please bring them to the
attention of the Democratic Services Officer at the close of the meeting.

Meeting Quorums :- 16+=5 Members; 10-15=4 Members; 5-9=3 Members; 5 or less = 2 Members.

Officers will be in attendance prior to the meeting for informal discussions on agenda items.

NOTE: THERE ARE NO FIRE DRILLS PLANNED FOR THIS EVENING SO IF THE FIRE ALARM
DOES SOUND, PLEASE LEAVE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY THROUGH THE FIRE EXIT
DOORS.

ON EXITING THE BUILDING, PLEASE ASSEMBLE AT THE FRONT OF THE BUILDING BY THE
STATUE OF QUEEN VICTORIA. DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL ADVISED TO DO SO.



86.

87.

88.

89.

Agenda Item 2

Cabinet - 17/03/21

CABINET

Wednesday, 17th March, 2021
Time of Commencement: 2.00 pm

Present:- Councillor Simon Tagg — Chair

Councillors Stephen Sweeney, Trevor Johnson,
Helena Maxfield, Paul Northcott and
Jill Waring

Officers David Adams, Martin Hamilton, Simon

McEneny, Daniel Dickinson, Denise
French and Sarah Wilkes

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Northcott declared an interest in item 8 “Aspire Housing — Prospectus for
Joint Working” on the grounds that he is a non-Executive Member of the Aspire
Board. There were no other declarations of interest stated.

MINUTES OF A PREVIOUS MEETING

Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on 3™ February 2021 be agreed as a
correct record.

BACK ON TRACK UPDATE

Cabinet considered a report on actions being taken across the Council in response to
the Coronavirus restrictions in the Borough and to ensure the Borough was well
placed to recover from the pandemic.

Councillor Simon Tagg, Leader of the Council, introduced the report which noted that
at the time of writing, there were 75 cases per 100,000 population. This was a
marked decrease since the start of the year.

The Council continued to administer the financial support to businesses through the
Local Restrictions Support Grant. There were also preparations for the phased re-
opening of the town centres.

Work was taking place to re-open some services in J2 on 12 April, namely the pool,
gym and climbing wall.

The Council had set the budget for 2021/22. It was anticipated that a balanced
outturn would be achieved by year end. There would be further Government support
to assist with Covid related pressures.

1 Page 3



90.

91.

Page 4

Cabinet - 17/03/21

Members noted that a current issue related to Walley’s Quarry for which the Council
had received over 2,000 complaints during the weekend of 27" — 28" February.
There had been an extra budget allocation of £50,000 for this issue included in the
budget and an extraordinary Council meeting would take place on 18" March.

Resolved: That the report be noted and the work being undertaken in response to
the Coronavirus restrictions be endorsed.

KIDSGROVE TOWN DEAL

Cabinet considered a report on the award of funding for the Kidsgrove Town
Investment Plan and outlining proposed next steps in delivery. The report listed the
projects that would be progressed relating to enhanced enterprise infrastructure
through the employment site at Chatterley Valley; upgraded facilities at Kidsgrove
Station; canal enhancements; bringing services into one hub; leisure and sports
facilities improvements including Kidsgrove Sports Centre and a new Pump Track.

Resolved: That:

(a) Cabinet accepts the award of £16.9m for the Kidsgrove Town Deal Investment
Plan submitted in October 2020, as announced on the 3rd March 2021 in accordance
with the Offer Letter now submitted.

(b) Officers are authorised to continue working with the Town Deal Board and other
organisations as necessary to progress development and delivery of projects in the
Kidsgrove Town Deal Investment Plan in line with the timescales set out within the
award criteria and within the allotted funds.

(c) The multi-disciplinary officer group established to support delivery of the Advance
Town Deal Projects continues this role to support delivery of the Kidsgrove Town
Investment Plan.

(d) The Executive Director Commercial Development and Economic Growth, in
consultation with the Section 151 Officer and the Portfolio Holder Corporate and
Service Improvement, People and Partnerships, are authorised to pursue delivery of
the Kidsgrove Town Investment Plan.

KIDSGROVE SPORTS CENTRE REFURBISHMENT

Cabinet considered a report on progress with the refurbishment of Kidsgrove Sports
Centre. The report listed areas of progress since the last update in November 2020
including transfer of the site from Staffordshire County Council and transfer of
funding; commencement of works to build the new 3G pitch; fast track funding
through the Town Deal board. The Project Steering Group was expected to shortly
receive final costings from Willmott Dixon the contractor. The Sports Centre was
scheduled to re-open in Spring 2022.

Resolved: That:

(a) Cabinet notes the progress made on the project since the September 2020
Cabinet meeting in terms of scope, design and budget in consultation with the
Kidsgrove Leisure Centre Community Group.

(b) Notes that the Kidsgrove Town Deal funding allocation announced by MHCLG on
the 3@ March includes up to £2.3m towards the overall cost of the project.

(c) Notes the further work to be undertaken to secure the release of the Town Deal
funding and authorises the Executive Director — Commercial Development and
Economic Growth, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder, Corporate and Service
Improvement, People and Partnerships and the Kidsgrove Town Deal Board to
progress the work with all haste to maintain momentum with the project.



92.

93.

94.

95.

Cabinet - 17/03/21

REVIEW OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

Cabinet considered a report on progress with the delivery with the Economic
Development Strategy Action Plan. The Plan had been revisited in the light of a
number of issues including Brexit; the Coronavirus pandemic and the new
opportunities arising from Future High Street funding; Town Investment Plans for
Kidsgrove and Newcastle and accelerated Town Deal monies. The updated Action
Plan was attached to the report and outlined the current position with each action
including timescale, resources and any partnership working taking place.

Resolved: That:

(&) The changed circumstances in which progress against the Economic
Development Strategy has been made are noted.

(b) Progress on delivering the Economic Development Strategy Action Plan is noted.
(c) The opportunities presented by Future High Street Fund and Town Deal are noted
and that these continue to be prioritised for delivery against Council Priorities in the
next 12 month period

ASPIRE HOUSING - PROSPECTUS FOR JOINT WORKING

Cabinet considered a report on a proposal by Aspire Housing for the development of
formal working arrangements with the Council. The Leader noted that Aspire had
taken over management of the Council’s housing stock in 1998. The Council owned
various parcels of land and the report proposed a formal partnership approach with
Aspire for joint working to progress future developments.

Resolved: That

(a) Cabinet accepts in principle that the Council will work in partnership with Aspire
Housing in the delivery of residential developments throughout the Borough.

(b) The Executive Director Commercial Development and Economic Growth is
authorised to work with the Leader of the Council to deliver the projects on a case by
case basis.

(c) Further Cabinet updates will be presented to highlight progress on the working
arrangement.

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME

Cabinet considered a report seeking approval for the Local Development Scheme
which was a project plan setting out the key documents and development milestones
in the process of producing the Borough Local Plan. The LDS would be made
available on the Council’s website and must be kept up to date.

Resolved: That approval is given for the Local Development Scheme (LDS)
comprising the timetable for the production of the Local Plan and that approval is
given for publication of the LDS on the Council’s website.

DRAFT NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME  STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY
INVOLVEMENT 2021 CONSULTATION DOCUMENT

Cabinet considered a draft Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) which was
part of the process of developing a Borough Local Plan. The Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 required that a SCI be adopted when preparing or
revising a local plan and such a document must set out how an Authority would
consult people with an interest in the development of the area. The SCI comprised 4
sections — introduction to the planning system; policy documents and key stages; the

3 Page 5



96.

97.

98.

99.

100.

Page 6

Cabinet - 17/03/21

key stages of Neighbourhood Plan development; and types of planning applications
and who, when and how people would be consulted.

Resolved: That:

(a) The Draft Newcastle-under-Lyme Statement of Community Involvement (SCI)
2021 is approved for public consultation.

(b) Officers in consultation with the portfolio holder for Planning and Growth be
authorised to make minor editorial changes prior to the publication of the Draft SCI
for public consultation.

(c) Cabinet agree to receive a future consultation report setting out the
recommendations of the Planning Committee, and the results of the public
consultation before considering the adoption of the Statement of Community
Involvement.

IRRECOVERABLE ITEMS 2020/21

Cabinet considered a report listing items deemed irrecoverable. There were three
categories of irrecoverable items:

- Debtors, which totalled £156,742; this cost would be partly met using the
Equipment Replacement Fund of £126,742;

- National Non Domestic Rates which was a cost shared between the Council;
Staffordshire County Council; Central Government; and Staffordshire Fire and
Rescue Service - the Council’'s share amounted to £118,227. The report also
noted the Company Voluntary Arrangement entered into by New Look and
with the Government’'s compensation towards Council’s losses in Business
Tax, the amount owed to the Collection Fund by the Council amounted to
£169,984 and would not be repayable until 2022/23;

- Council Tax, again shared between the Council, Staffordshire County
Council; Staffordshire Police and Crime Commissioner; and Staffordshire Fire
and Rescue Service. The Council’s share was £4,765.

Resolved: That the items detailed in the confidential appendix be considered
irrecoverable for the reasons stated and be written off.

FORWARD PLAN

Consideration was given to the Forward Plan listing upcoming key decisions to be
made by Cabinet.

Resolved: That the Forward Plan be received.

URGENT BUSINESS

There was no Urgent Business.

DISCLOSURE OF EXEMPT INFORMATION

Resolved:- That the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following matter because it is likely that
there will be disclosure of exempt information as defined in

paragraph 1 in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act, 1972.

IRRECOVERABLE ITEMS - CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX



Cabinet - 17/03/21

Cabinet considered the confidential appendix listing details of irrecoverable items.

Resolved: That the information within the confidential appendix be received.

COUNCILLOR SIMON TAGG
Chair

Meeting concluded at 2.47 pm

5 Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem.4

=
%ﬁvf-wfl,
NEWCASTLE
NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL UNDER LYME
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM’S
REPORT TO
Cabinet
21 April 2021
Report Title: Update on On-going Odour Problem affecting the Borough
Submitted by: Chief Executive
Portfolios: Corporate & Service Improvement, People & Partnerships/Environment &

Recycling

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To provide Cabinet with an update regarding ongoing work to address problem odours in the Borough.

Recommendation

N

Cabinet is recommended to:

Note the latest position regarding problem odours in the borough;

Note the progress made on the actions arising from the extraordinary meeting of full Council
on 18" March 2021;

3. Endorse the programme of work set out in this report.

Reasons

To ensure that Cabinet are aware of the latest position regarding this high priority area of work and
have an opportunity to discuss progress with officers.

1. Background

11

1.2

For a number of years, parts of the borough have suffered from problematic foul odours,
widely believed to come from the Walley’s Quarry Landfill Site in Silverdale operated by RED
Industries. Addressing this issue has been a priority for the current administration, with a
budget specific budget of £50,000 agreed in February to enabled specialist advice to be
secured and targeted work to be undertaken. During 2020 the Economy Environment and
Place Scrutiny Committee undertook a detailed investigation of the issue which made
recommendations to a range of stakeholders. Over the weekend of the 26—28 February 2021
the Council received over 2000 complaints from residents and organisations in the borough
and further afield about the foul odours present in the area. Consequently, an extraordinary
meeting of the full council was convened on 18" March to discuss the findings of the scrutiny
review, a report on the incident of 26-28 February, and a Notice of Motion on next steps.

Problems with odours have continued since the February incident, and, as the bar chart of
reports to the Council shows, a further spike in odours was experienced in early March.
Appendix 2 shows the reports of odour complaints received by the Council since the start of
March, and Appendix 3 shows the geographical distribution of these.

Page 9



1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Page 10

nE Ary
EWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

This report summarises both the latest position regarding the odours, and progress with the
actions taken following the Council meeting.

Issues

The Walley’s Quarry Landfill Site, which is the focus of concern regarding the foul odours, is
regulated by the Environment Agency who undertake regular monitoring activity to ensure
that the site is operating in compliance with its Environment Agency Permit. The Borough
Council does not regulate the site, but does monitor odours in the area and is required to take
enforcement action if a Statutory Nuisance is identified.

Since the incident on the 26-28 February, and the subsequent Council debate, there has
been a step change in multi-agency liaison regarding the landfill operation, associated
odours, and in particular the potential impact on health. Agencies involved in overseeing
aspects of the local impact of the landfill have been in regular meetings, as well as senior
level meetings between the Council and the Environment Agency. A concerted focus on the
issue has enabled progress to be made against both the recommendations of the Scrutiny
Committee and the actions agreed by Full Council, as summarised below:

Actions Arising from Council Meeting — 18" March
Arising for the Council meeting a series of letters have been sent:

- Environment Agency, requesting immediate suspension of the licence for waste
operations at Walley’s Quarry, including import of waste material at the site, until the
cause of the “foul odours” has been identified and resolved;

- Secretary of State for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs, to request an independent
investigation into the regulatory performance of the Environment Agency in their handling
of the permit;

- Public Health England and the North Staffordshire Clinical Commissioning Group,
requesting regular health screening for residents who are concerned of potential health
impacts as a consequence of the regular presence of “foul odours”;

- Staffordshire County Council and Stoke-on —Trent City Council, seeking their support in
making similar requests to both the Environment Agency and DEFRA.

Actions Arising from the Scrutiny Review

The Scrutiny Committee made a number of recommendations for a range of organisations,
and these have been forwarded to those organisations for consideration and response.
Within the report were 9 recommendations for the Council itself to address. These provide a
useful framework for reporting activity generally, with six having action already being taken:

Recommendation 1: Undertake a review and appraisal of EA monitoring data and work with
the EA for any future monitoring;

The Council commissioned air quality consultancy Ricardo to undertake a review of the first
two EA monitoring campaigns. Ricardo concluded that the EA monitoring campaigns
focussed on assessing the landfill's potential impact on public health through its influence on
local H2S concentrations, and were useful in showing that the H2S concentrations measured



2.6

2.7

nE Ary
EWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

did not pose a direct health issue to local residents. However the monitoring did not provide
a comprehensive view on the presence/absence of offensive odours, nor the potential
psychosomatic effects of such odours.

The Ricardo report recommended that future monitoring should robustly address whether
there was significant pollution which may:

- Be harmful to human health or the quality of the environment

- Cause offence to a human sense

- Result in damage to a material property

- Impair do interfere with amenities or other legitimate uses of the environment.

This would entail a wider scope than the initial EA monitoring activity. Ricardo, in recognising
that investigating the impact of emissions is difficult, recommend that future monitoring should
be supplemented by more detailed investigation of what is happening within the landfill site
itself.

The Ricardo report, the recommendations from which are appended to this report, has been
shared with the Environment Agency to inform their further monitoring of the site.

Recommendation 2 - Prepare and undertake air pollution monitoring, the results of which
shall be made available on the Councils website;

The Council has secured a Jerome hand held air quality monitoring device which is being
used by experienced Environmental Health Officers to measure the concentrations of H2S to
augment the human observation and assessment of odours.

In addition, the council has researched the deployment of air monitoring stations akin to those
used by the Environment Agency to collect data for analysis. Through the multi-agency
working to address the odour problem, agreement has been reached to jointly fund the
deployment of two additional monitors, above the two existing stations installed by the EA,
thereby avoiding the risk of wasteful duplication and ensure that all agencies are working to
a consistent data set. The parameters monitored include Hydrogen sulphide (H.S), Methane
(CH.), Oxides of nitrogen (NOx, NO, NO3), Particulate Matter (TSP, PM1p and PM ), Volatile
Organic Compounds (VOCs) including Benzene, Toluene, Xylene and Ethylbenzene. In
addition meteorological data will be collected.

Recommendation 3 - Request confirmation from the EA as to the odour source(s) and to
specify appropriate method of control;

As yet, the EA has not found itself in a position to categorically state that the odours come
from Walley’s Quarry, and Walley’s Quarry alone. However, since the weekend of the 26-
28" February, the EA have confirmed that there have been 4 recent breaches of the operating
permit, including one significant breach and, as summarised below, have recognised that
odours from the landfill are experienced off site.

- A significant breach classified as CCS2 in accordance with EA compliance guidance.
This relates to gas wells being disconnected while waste was raised to the levels required
by the site’s planning permission.

- A minor breach classified as CCS3 in accordance with EA compliance guidance. This
relates to the failure to notify the Environment Agency that infrastructure to manage

Page 11



nE Ary
EWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

landfill gas had been compromised by flooding from surface water and failure to take
actions to resolve this in the shortest time possible.

- A minor breach, classified as CCS3 in accordance with EA compliance guidance. Waste
odours were perceived to be at levels likely to cause pollution outside the site. With Red
Industries not taking all appropriate measures to prevent this.

- A minor breach classified as CCS3 in accordance with EA compliance guidance. The
company’s management system and operating procedures have resulted in the main
cause of odour leaving the site. Odour appeared to be emanating from the waste area
due for permanent capping.

The EA have identified specific actions to be taken by RED Industries in relation to gas
management and capping to alleviate odours.

During March 2021 RED Industries advised the Council and the EA that they had identified
an alternative source of the problem odours, asserting that their own investigations had
linked the odour to H2S in groundwater pumped from a depth of 100m onto the site. The
Council has requested sight of the reports prepared by RED’s advisors regarding this issue
but as yet have not received any detailed technical reports and as such this indication of an
alternative odour source cannot currently be substantiated.

2.8 Recommendation 4 - Undertake odour nuisance investigations to establish whether a
statutory odour nuisance exists under the provisions of section 79 of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990 and to comply with the legal duties under that Act;

Officers have conducted regular odour tours, both within the normal working day and out
of hours, to monitor and witness odours. These tours have been completed most days,
between 22" February and 4™ April over 20,000 unique odour assessments have been
completed by the Environmental Health Service.

In addition, officers have sought to respond to public reports of odours in real time,
prioritising response to those areas where there have been multiple complaints received,
identifying the odour as beings present and correlating these to current weather conditions.
Officers have identified odours but have also found that the odour plumes tend to move
quite swiftly, resulting in a mismatch between reports received and reports withessed. To
address this issue, and improve the effectiveness of resource deployment, the Council has
identified a number of “specimen properties” where the occupiers have agreed to keep
accurate diaries of odours. These properties will provide the focus for officer visits in order
to witness and assess odours in a way which will be admissible as evidence. The
Assessment methodology is constantly evolving in order to meet residents’ concerns and
comply with Covid-19 restrictions.

2.9 Recommendation 5 - Seek legal advice regarding any other legal routes to remedy odour
and other issues identified to support the local community, business and residents;

Where a Statutory Nuisance is identified the Environmental Protection Act requires the
Council to serve an abatement notice requiring the abatement of the nuisance, or
prohibiting or restricting its occurrence or recurrence, and requiring steps be taken to
achieve these outcomes. Advice has been sought from a QC who has confirmed that the
focus of the Council’s efforts should be on establishing a case for statutory nuisance and
pursuing this route if possible and indicating a process through which this would then be
progressed.

Page 12



rod s

A a’
EWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

2.10 Recommendation 6 - Seek further PHE opinion following any further pollution monitoring

in the vicinity of the site. Any further updates or advice received is to be published on the
Council’'s website;

Following the incident of the 26-28 February, multi-agency working on this issue has
accelerated, including valuable input from Public Health England (PHE); Through PHE
evaluation of monitoring EA monitoring data it was found that World Health Organisation
thresholds for H2S had been exceeded on a number of occasions over the weekend of 6-
7 March. This fact, along with the health implications, were made public, along with
reassurance as to the likely short lived nature of health impacts. PHE will now be routinely
reviewing monitoring data and making public the results.

Public health advice has also been received from Staffordshire County Council, who have
provided information to advise and inform the community on health matters.

2.11 Further Recommendations for future action

- Future planning applications must take into account this report as material

consideration of evidence of amenity issues surrounding the site, when determining
any future applications within the vicinity of the landfill site;

- Lobby government and boroughs MPs regarding national planning policy in relation to

the siting of landfills and/or sensitive developments in close proximity to each other;

- Provide an annual report for the council’s Economy, Environment & Place Scrutiny to

review for life of landfill.

Proposal

3.1

3.2

The Council’s current work programme regarding this issue entails:

- Focussed work to witness and assess odour issues experienced at a number of

specimen properties for the purpose of establishing the case for statutory nuisance;

- Working with partners to extend monitoring of air quality in the vicinity of the quarry;
- Working with partners to investigate the ground water issues alleged by RED

Industries and ensure adequate and timely remedial works from the polluter by the
principal regulator;

- Secure expert legal and technical advice necessary to provide effective challenge on

the issues of odour.

This work is funded from the budget allocation for odour issues approved as part of the
2021-22 budget round. Cabinet is recommended to:

- Note the latest position regarding problem odours in the borough;
- Note the progress made on the actions arising from the extraordinary meeting of full

Council on 18" March 2021;

- Endorse the programme of work set out in this report.

Reasons for Proposed Solution

4.1

To ensure that Cabinet are aware of the latest position regarding this high priority area of
work.

Options Considered

Page 13



D)
NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

5.1 Consideration has been given to a variety of forms of monitoring and enforcement activity,
however the expert advice secured has informed the direction selected.

Legal and Statutory Implications

6.1 The Environmental Protection Act 1990, section 79 is the legislation concerned with statutory
nuisances in law. This is the principal piece of legislation covering the Council’s duties and
responsibilities in respect of issues relating to odour nuisance.

6.2 Section 79 defines the following as statutory nuisances

‘(1) Subject to subsections (1A) to (6A) below, the following matters constitute “statutory
nuisances” for the purposes of this Part, that is to say—

(a) any premises in such a state as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(b) smoke emitted from premises so as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(c) fumes or gases emitted from premises so as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(d) any dust, steam, smell or other effluvia arising on industrial, trade or business
premises and being prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(e) any accumulation or deposit which is prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(f) any animal kept in such a place or manner as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(fa) any insects emanating from relevant industrial, trade or business premises and being
prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(fb) artificial light emitted from premises so as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(g) noise emitted from premises so as to be prejudicial to health or a nuisance;

(ga) noise that is prejudicial to health or a nuisance and is emitted from or caused by a
vehicle, machinery or equipment in a street or in Scotland, road

(h) any other matter declared by any enactment to be a statutory nuisance;

and it shall be the duty of every local authority to cause its area to be inspected from time to
time to detect any statutory nuisances which ought to be dealt with under section 80 below or
sections 80 and 80A below and, where a complaint of a statutory nuisance is made to it by a
person living within its area, to take such steps as are reasonably practicable to investigate the
complaint.’

6.3 Where a statutory nuisance is identified or considered likely to arise or recur, section 80 of the
Act requires that an abatement notice is served on those responsible for the nuisance. The
abatement notice can either prohibit or restrict the nuisance and may require works to be
undertaken by a specified date(s). There is a right of appeal against any notice on prescribed
grounds.

Equality Impact Assessment

7.1 The work of the Council in this regard recognises that the problematic odours in the area may
impact on some groups more than others. The work is focussed on removing this impact.

Financial and Resource Implications

8.1 None directly arising from this report.

Major Risks

9.1 While the complaints from the public remain at their current level, the Council faces a
reputational risk in terms of the public perception of the action it takes to reduce the harm

Page 14



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

3
13

Bea
Tenay
il
NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

experienced by the public. The Council is working across agencies to shape action taken

and to encourage all partners to play active roles in addressing this issue.

UN Sustainable Development Goals (UNSDG)

GOOD HEALTH CLEAN WATER
AND WELL-BEING AND SANITATION

o ¥,

‘I 6 PEAGE, JUSTICE
AND STRONG

INSTITUTIONS

DECENT WORK AND 1 2 RESPONSIBLE 13 CLIMATE 17 PARTNERSHIPS
ECONOMIC GROWTH CONSUMPTION ACTION FOR THE GOALS
AND PRODUCTION

M CO @ &

Key Decision Information

11.1 This is not a Key Decision

Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions

12.1 This matter has been variously considered previously by Cabinet, Economy, Environment &

Place Scrutiny Committee and, most recently, by Council on 18" March 2021.

List of Appendices

13.1 Appendix 1 — Recommendations from the Ricardo evaluation of the EA air monitoring

campaigns;
13.2 Appendix 2 — Graph indicating odour complaints received by the Council;

13.3 Appendix 3 — Graph indicating geographical distribution of complaints received.

Backqground Papers

14.1 None

Page 15



| )
APPENDIX 1 - Recommendations from the Riccardo evaluation of the EA air quality UNDER LYME

monitoring campaigns.

Recommendations for future monitoring activity and
Investigations

In setting out recommendations to accompany this review we must remember that the operator of a
prescribed process is required to ensure that there is ‘no significant’ pollution, where “pollution” in the
Environmental Permitting Regulation (2016) means any emission as a result of human activity which may:

* Be harmful to human health or the quality of the environment.

» Cause offence to a human sense.

» Result in damage to material property.

* Impair or interfere with amenities or other legitimate uses of the environment.

As regulator of the prescribed process the EA approach to monitoring must cover each of these issues in a
scientifically robust manner that stands up to scrutiny. Any future monitoring should take into account all
these issues when monitoring results are analysed. In reviewing any future data, the EA should recognise
that exposure to odour at levels below a health threshold can still give rise to‘psychosomatic’ effects (e.g. of
headaches, nausea, dizziness).

This review has shown that investigating the impact contributions of emissions from the Walley Quarry
Landfill site is fraught with difficulty, nevertheless instances of offensive odour being detected beyond the
site boundary appear to be ongoing. In such situations future monitoring should be supplemented by more
detailed investigation of what is happening within the landfill site itself. Such monitoring could:

* Advise on likelihood of adverse environmental impacts from the landfilling of waste in this area.

* Advise on whether environmental control measures are operating as designed.

» Advise on compliance with the permit conditions — especially the odour boundary condition;

* Inform the public.

* Provide data for any improvement/remediation programmes.

* Set trigger levels or emission limit values that the operator must adhere to avoid breaching the odour
boundary condition.

Any internal investigations should focus on those area where emissions are most likely to occur, namely
around leachate and gas wells that penetrate into the landfill mass and could present a escape pathway if
seals are poor or through poorly capped areas of the landfill where internal pressure within the landfill may
cause an emission pathway through the surface. At these locations monitoring could take the form of point
measurement of CH4/H2S above the surface, this can be especially useful for detecting fissures through
which emissions occur. Such measurement could be supplemented by collecting gas samples for GCMS
analysis against a suite of common landfill gas components.

Any such monitoring needs to be repeated so that emissions arising from a range of conditions (e.g.
atmospheric pressure and pressure generated within the landfill gas extract system) are considered. The
ultimate aim of such monitoring will be to ensure that conditions likely to lead to an emission spikes are
identified so they can be managed appropriately.

Separately the EA should review the adequacy of the current gas management system to ensure that a
negative pressure can be maintained at all times. Having a highly effective gas management system must
be considered as an appropriate measure for a landfill in close proximity to local residents as is the case
with the Walley Quarry site. A similar review should be carried out on the quality of cover material being
used on site.

Page 16



Appendix 2

Count of Case Reference by Date Created and Scale of Odour

Scale of Odour ® @0 = No odour @1 = Very faint odour @2 = Faint odour @3 = Distinct odour @4 = Strong odour @5 = Very strong odour @6 = Extremely strong odour

800
600
()]
(@]
cC
(())
o
Q
(())
(aed
()]
(7))
(v}
(@)
S 400
c
-]
(@)
(@)
ZOO I I II I

Q’?:\ Q’IL\ Q’?:\ Q’?:\ Q’?:\ g?;\ Q’?:\ Q’?:\ Q’?:\ g?;\ Q’?:\ Q"Ii\ Q’?:\ Q?;\ Q’?:\ Q"Ii\ Q’?:\ Qfl;\ Q’?:\ Q"Ii\ Q’?:\ Qfl;\ Q’?:\ Q’l:\ Q’?:\ Q’IL\ Q’?:\ Q’l:\ QQ;\ g’?i\ Q’?:\ Q’l:\ QQ;\ g’?i\ Q’?:\ Q’?:\ QQ;\ g’?i\ Q’?:\ Q’?:\ QQ;\ g’?i\ Q’?:\ Q’?:\

v ‘<\ PN NN NN N NN N N N N N N NN N N N NN N N N g N N N g N N A Y

-U ( ( ( ( ( ( ( \ ( ( ( \ ( ( ( \ ( ( \ \ ( ( \ \ ( ( \ \ ( C ( ( )
\“?’ \“ v“?’ o o g N e e o A N o o N e T o N AT W M L N N AN N oW W W VQfLVQ%VQ tx‘*Q %VQ bVQWVQ%VQ qVQ QVQ \VQ VQ%VQ

Date Created



This page is intentionally left blank



Postcode, Scale of Odour and Date Created

havington

iy

Hough

6T 9bed

L ]
[ J
[ ]
9
[ J
s
guazley
‘..
..)
o
Woore
®
[ °
[ J
14
Ba’d ..'\s
.ate
[ ] [ J

Appendix 3

Burslem

Sneyd
Green

Stoke-on-Trent

Berryhill
vading
Estate

Bar‘.“eley
Green

Longton

o0
Dresden

Werrington

Weston
Coyne‘

Meir Heath

Cheddleton

[ ]
Forsbrook

01 January 2021

01 January 2021 - 31 March 2021

31 March 2021 (23571



This page is intentionally left blank



Officers of the Environment Agency Derrick Huckfield
20 Cherry Hill Lane
Silverdale
Newcastle
Staffs.
ST56EE

4th June 2021

Re: Walleys Quarry Ltd.

Proposals:

1. Close the site to enable the site to be capped completely. Allow boreholesto be drilled
and install a suction pump or pumps to extract the gas outinto gas engines.

| believe that the Engineers, Planners and the EA can sort out these problems and |
hope that all here today can agree this.

2. The other major issue is the leachate. A geological fault goes across the site. Years
ago, the land off Silverdale Road dropped by 40 ft. The Coal Authority in conjunction
with Staffordshire County Council reinstated this. The land is on the move again. If
the membrane splits, we will have a serious problem. The leachate could go into the
watercourse. My understanding is that the Leachate Plant has not been updated. We
need to ensure that facilities are in place to recover the leachate on a permanent
basis. Better to be safe than sorry.

3. As a precaution, flares should be installed in case of surplus gas or electricd
failures. The Engineers and Planners can decide how this is organised. | believe that
currently there are only two.

4. Sprinklers to be installed to reduce the dust clouds that are affecting people with lung
problems. The residents do not want any more investigations - they want action.

5. When all these issues have been resolved, we can then look at the restoration of the
site, which needs to be done sooner rather than later. If it is all capped off now and
the leachate is sorted out as well as maintenance, | cannot see why the restoration
should be delayed any longer. This is achievable with all parties concerned, excluding
Walleys Quarry.

6. | feelthat as ateam we can achieve these proposals.

If anyone feels that amendments should be added please feel free to do so, as this will be a
team effort.

Derrick Huckfield
c.c. Newcastle Borough Council

Staffordshire County Council
Aaron Bell MP, Newcastle-under-Lyme

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem.5

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM’S REPORT TO

Cabinet
21 April 2021
Report Title: Newcastle Town Centre Future High Street Fund Award

Submitted by:

Portfolios:

Corporate & Service Improvement, People & Partnerships

Ward(s) affected: Town

—,%
%—fuwfﬁ [y
NEWCASTLE

UNDER LYME

Executive Director — Commercial Development and Economic Growth

Purpose of the Report

To update Cabinet on the Newcastle Town Centre Future High Street Fund submission and subsequent
award of the grant, to seek Cabinet approval to accept the grant and to move projects into the delivery
stage by the council.

Recommendation

2.
3.
4.

That
1.

That Cabinet accepts the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government Future High Street
Fund grant of £11,048,260.00.

The Cabinet accepts the scheme of projects that this grant amount will fund.
The Cabinet approves £3.5m of match funding towards the scheme of projects.
That the Executive Director Commercial Development and Economic Growth is authorised to work
with the Leader of the Council to deliver the projects as set out within the grant award.

Reasons

To pursue a healthy future for Newcastle town centre as the heart of economic and community life in
the Borough whilst ensuring that funding opportunities are maximised in achieving Council Plan
objectives.

1.

Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

In December 2018 the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government
(MHCLG) announced the Future High Street Fund opportunity, which led to the
Council expressing interest and subsequently being invited in August 2019 to
make an application for the fund.

The Stage Two bid for the Future High Street Fund was a submission of a
Business Case for Newcastle town centre in the summer of 2020 for the amount
of £15,983,324.31.

In December 2020 MHCLG confirmed to the Council that its business case
submission had been successful but that due to over demand across the
programme the grant was to be top sliced and 69% of the application
(£11,048,260.00) was therefore approved for Newcastle town centre. There was
then a requirement for the Council to reconfirm back to MHCLG that the reduced
grant offer was acceptable and how reduced funds would impact on the original
application / projects.

In January 2021 the Council submitted confirmation of its acceptance of the
reduced grant of £11,048,260.00 and that it would remove the Midway Car Park
demolition from the programme of projects and reduce the expenditure on public

Page 23




nE Ary
EWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

realm improvements, whilst maintaining the original allocations for the other
programme projects on the Ryecroft and High Street locations.
1.5 Key projects to be delivered through the bid are:

¢ Demoaolition of the former Civic Offices building at Ryecroft to start as soon as
possible following acceptance of the bid.

e Redevelopment of the Ryecroft site as a key strategic anchor for the town, with a
mix of employment and residential uses.

o Development of a new multi-storey car park at Ryecroft paving the way for the
demolition of the existing multi-storey car park at the Midway.

e Improvements to the market area to support a more vibrant market and
performance space.

e Improving a key area of upper High Street to improve connectivity between the
Ryecroft area and core town centre whilst generating activity and footfall in
surrounding buildings.

¢ New pedestrian wayfinding around the town centre to aid navigation between key
sites in and around the town centre.

Proposal

2.1 That Cabinet notes and approves the key elements of the Future High Street Fund
Grant Award in the amount of £11,048,260.00.

2.2 That the Executive Director Commercial Development and Economic Growth is
authorised to work with the Leader of the Council to deliver the projects as set out
within the grant award.

Reasons for Proposed Solution

3.1 To use this Government funding opportunity to support delivery of Council Plan
objectives.

3.2 To uplift the status of Newcastle town centre as the heart of economic, social and
community life in the Borough.

4. Options Considered

4.1 The Future High Street Fund opportunity is significant for Newcastle town centre. To
attract the investment on offer the Council needs to accept the grant funding. If this is
refused then an opportunity to use this external funding opportunity to support delivery
of Council Plan objectives will be missed.

4.2 Should the Council chose not to pursue this funding opportunity then it would be in a
position of needing to attract substantial funding from other sources to deliver the key
elements proposed in the funding bid. This would not be in line with Council Plan
objectives or the powers given to Local Authorities to promote the economic, social and
environmental wellbeing of their areas.

Legal and Statutory Implications

6.1 The Local Government Act 2000 gives local authorities the powers to promote the
economic, social and environmental well-being of their areas.

Equality Impact Assessment

Page 24



10.

11.

12.

NEWC
UNDER LYME

7.1 The nature of the project is intended to seek benefits for all people who use the town
centre and to support the economic and social health of Newcastle town centre as a
destination.

Financial and Resource Implications

8.1 The Future High Street Funding bid represents the opportunity to attract in the region
of £11m external funding to Newcastle town centre from the Future High Street Fund.
It is anticipated that activities proposed in the bid will generate additional funding from
other sources such as the private sector.

8.2 In order to complete the scheme of projects within the Future High Street Funding bid,
the Council will be required to provide £3.5m match funding. The match funding will be
provided through phased payments over a three year period and will initially be funded
via capital receipts. The establishment of a Revolving Investment Fund was approved
by Cabinet in October 2019 as part of the Commercial Strategy which will be funded by
capital receipts and prudential borrowing. This fund will be used to provide the match
funding in years two and three.

8.3 ltis anticipated that the Council will use some of its land and assets to support delivery
of the Future High Street Fund. This may require re-alignment of existing
commitments within the Council’s capital programme and investment in line with the
Council’s previously agreed Commercial Investment Strategy.

Major Risks

9.1 A full programme risk assessment is presented in the detail of the bid.

9.2 Should the grant not be accepted then the Council loses an opportunity for significant
investment in Newcastle town centre.

UN Sustainable Development Goals and Climate Change Implications

10.1 This funding is intended to enable the wide scale regeneration of a redundant site and
associated areas within the Town Centre bringing with it sustainability improvements,
regeneration and economic benefits as well as social and health. In that respect, the
project supports the realisation of the following UNSDG objectives:-

GOOD HEALTH 8 DECENT WORK AND REDUCED
AND WELL-BEING ECONOMIC GROWTH INEQUALITIES

by f REL

Key Decision Information

11.1 Activities within the Future High Street Fund programme are within the Town Ward
although the benefits will be enjoyed by residents from a wider area of the Borough.

11.2 The Council will be re-shaping land within its ownership for a more productive use
however this will require some expenditure in line with the Council’s previously
approved Commercial Investment Strategy.

Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions

12.1 16 October 2019, Cabinet concerning development of the second stage FHSF bid and
procurement of consultancy support.

Page 25




12.2 December 2019, Economy Environment & Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Town Centre Funding Update (information item)
12.3 July 2020, Cabinet concerning approval for submission of bid into MHCLG

13. List of Appendices

13.1 None

14. Background Papers

14.1 None

Page 26

)
NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME



Agenda Item.6

=

NEWCASTL E-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL ONDER LYME
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM’S
REPORT TO
Cabinet
21 April 2021
Report Title: Newcastle under Lyme Playing Pitch Strategy 2021- 2026
Submitted by: Executive Director - Commercial Development & Economic Growth
Portfolios: Primarily Leisure, Culture and Heritage, but also Planning and Growth

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

To seek approval to adopt the Newcastle-under Lyme Playing Pitch Strategy 2021-2026

Recommendation

1. That Cabinet approve the Newcastle under Lyme Playing Pitch Strategy 2021 — 2026
(PPS) which will be the basis for making strategic decisions on future playing pitch
provision and associated facilities across the Borough.

2. That Cabinet agree that areview of the PPSiis carried out by the Steering Group on an annual
basis and that any significant changes are reported to Cabinet, to ensure that identified local
priorities continue to be achieved.

Reasons

The PPS sets out the Council’'s strategy for identifying and meeting the playing pitch and associated
facilities needs of the Borough from now through to 2026. It considers how well the existing playing pitch
provision and associated facilities meet the needs of communities in terms of supply and demand
throughout this time period.

The PPS identifies key areas of improvement to address the needs of the different sports, actions to
improve existing sites, and recommends the disposal of sites that are of no value to sport.

The PPS forms part of the evidence base required in the development of the Local Plan.

1. Background

1.1 The last assessment of playing pitch provision in the Borough was carried out in 2015 in
accordance with national guidance as set out in Planning Policy Guidance 17: Planning for
Open Space, Sport and Recreation Strategy (PPG17) study.

1.2 In order to drive forward the review of playing pitch provision in the Borough a steering
group was established involving representatives from a range of internal teams and
external partner organisations who have a role in shaping the future provision of playing
pitches in the Borough:

Page 27



‘‘‘‘‘

) Ty
NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Internal teams: Leisure and Cultural Services, Operational Services, Planning and
Development and Assets and Regeneration.

National Governing Bodies of Sport: Staffordshire County Cricket Board,
Staffordshire Football Association, Rugby Football Union, Golf England, England
Netball, and England Hockey.

Partner Organisations: Active Together (County Sports Partnership) who also liaised
with Staffordshire County Council on behalf of the Steering Group, Sport England.

1.3 The Steering Group developed a brief for the delivery of the PPS and subsequently
specialist advice was commissioned from Knight Kavanagh and Page Ltd. (following
procurement in accordance with the Councils Policies and procedures) to ensure that the
preparation of the PPS was in accordance with Sport England’s methodology.

1.4 The PPS guidance covers both natural and artificial pitches, which are used for football,
cricket, rugby union and hockey. The strategy also covers bowls, netball, golf and tennis.
The strategy therefore covers the wide range of pitch sports available in the Borough. All
facilities in the Borough are included in the PPS regardless of ownership and/or
management i.e. whether in the public, private, education, or third sector.

1.5 The completed PPS identifies local priorities which can be used to direct resources and
guide planning policy. However the steering group have had to commit to an on-going
review of the strategy and its’ action plan to ensure it remains current and that where
improvements /investment is recommended, proposals are viable and deliverable.

1.6 The implementation of the Strategy is dependent upon a range of funding streams, including
the receipt of developer contributions collected via section 106 obligations and the
community infrastructure levy (CIL). The Council is not yet committed to introducing a CIL,
but because of competing priorities between CIL projects, it is anticipated that this source of
funding will be limited. There is also an increased difficulty in securing developer
contributions via section 106 agreements. This is because stringent tests, must be applied
before a section 106 contribution can be sought and the potential impact on a scheme’s
viability.

1.7 It therefore needs to be recognised that both sources of developer contributions cannot be
relied upon. Similarly the likely level of funding from the National Governing Bodies is
unknown at this stage. Nevertheless, for the Local Plan to be sound it needs to be
supported by an Infrastructure Delivery Plan which will identify priority projects for funding
supported with realistic funding options. It is therefore necessary to commit to reviewing the
Action Plan to refine the information on costs and potential funding in order to provide a
robust evidence base for the Local Plan.

Issues

2.1 Playing pitches are an important resource in enabling healthy and active lifestyles in our
communities. Good quality, accessible and suitable playing pitches with ancillary facilities
provided in the right locations, deliver important opportunities for residents to participate in
sporting activities at different levels. A priority of this Council is to support and encourage
residents of all ages to stay fit and active and in doing so help avoid the pitfalls of inactivity
and sedentary lifestyles which can contribute to poor health and affect quality of life.

Page 28



2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

nE Ary
EWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

There are a significant number of playing pitches within the Borough, used by a wide variety
of organisations for an array of sports. These pitches are typically owned and managed by
public sector bodies, educational establishments, the private sector, sports clubs and not for
profit organisations.

The overall demand for, and nature of, the use of playing pitches and associated facilities in
the Borough has changed since 2015 and is likely to change in the future. This can be
attributed to a number of factors including new housing developments, differing participation
rates in sport and an evolution in how individual sports and playing pitches are managed,
along with changes to the Borough’s demographic profile.

The PPS provides an up-to-date assessment of how well the current supply of playing
pitches is meeting current levels of demand from communities. It identifies key actions for
specific sites concerning their ongoing maintenance and improvement to meet the needs of
individual sports and communities.

The PPS has been developed to provide:

e A vision for the future improvement and prioritisation of playing pitches.

¢ A number of aims to help deliver the recommendations and actions.

e A series of strategic recommendations which provide a strategic framework for
the improvement, maintenance, development and, as appropriate, rationalisation
of the playing pitch stock.

e A series of sport by sport recommendations which provide a strategic framework
for sport led improvements to provision.

e A prioritised area-by-area Action Plan to address key issues on a site-by-site
basis.

Although the PPS will report on Newcastle-under-Lyme as a whole, the Authority has been
divided into the five analysis areas that reflect on the geographical and demographical
nature of the area. These are; Kidsgrove, Rural Central and Keele, Rural North, Rural
South, Urban Newcastle North, South, and Central.

The PPS also examined cross boundary issues to determine the level of imported and
exported demand, recognising, for example, that people travel to and make use of strategic
facilities irrespective of administrative boundaries. Neighbouring authorities include
Cheshire East, City of Stoke-on-Trent, Shropshire, Stafford, and Staffordshire Moorlands.

The PPS has highlighted the following findings for the following sporting activities:

Grass football pitch recommendations

e Protect existing quantity of pitches until all demand is being met (unless replacement
provision meets Sport England requirements and is agreed upon and provided).

e Sustain pitch quality and seek improvements where necessary via utilisation of the
FA'’s Pitch Improvement Programme.

e Work to accommodate future demand at sites which are not operating at capacity or
at sites not currently available for community use that could be moving forward.

o Explore the creation of a within grass pitch hub site in the UNNS&C Analysis Area in
order to provide clubs better quality ancillary and pitch provision in order to address
shortfalls.

Page 29



D)
NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

3G pitch recommendations

e Protect the current stock of 3G pitches.

¢ Create two additional full size 3G pitches to alleviate all current shortfalls with one each
in the Kidsgrove and UNNS&C analysis areas.

e Look to create a further smaller 3G pitch to address future shortfalls in the Rural South
Analysis Area

o Encourage more match play demand to transfer to 3G pitches and ensure that pitches
remain suitable to accommodate such demand through appropriate certification when
it is required.

e Ensure that any new 3G pitches are priced competitively against the cost of hiring a
grass pitches and are aimed at local grassroots clubs.

Cricket recommendations

e Protect all cricket squares in current use.

e Work with clubs and grounds staff to review quality issues on squares to ensure
appropriate quality is achieved at sites assessed as standard and sustained at sites
assessed as good.

e Explore options to accommodate expressed future demand through the provision of
additional grass cricket squares to the installation of NTPs, with preferences towards the
latter.

Rugby union recommendations

e Existing quantity of rugby union pitches to be protected or be fully mitigated to meet
National Planning Policy.

e Improve pitch quality at secure sites to alleviate overplay and create actual spare
capacity.

Hockey recommendations

e Protect all existing full size sand-based AGPs for hockey use.
¢ When the 3G pitch stock increases, encourage the transfer of football demand from
the sand-based AGPs in order to free up increased capacity for hockey activity.

Tennis recommendations

e Retain and sustain quality of club courts for competitive play through implementation
of appropriate maintenance regimes.

¢ Examine re-establishing demand at Westland’s Tennis Centre.

e Improve quality of key local authority courts and accompanying ancillary provision, first
and foremost focusing on sites that best accommodate informal play.

o Explore implementation of ClubSpark, Rally and Gate Access schemes at appropriate
sites to enhance available provision for informal tennis.

Bowling Green recommendations
e Retain/improve the existing quantity of greens.

Golf recommendations

Retain all currently used golf courses and driving ranges.

Page 30



‘‘‘‘‘

) Ty
NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Netball recommendations

e Protect the current quantity of courts.
e Seek to improve poor quality courts quality through resurfacing or improved
maintenance

2.9 There is a requirement for regular monitoring and review against the actions identified in
PPS. This will be undertaken annually by the steering group. The review will also contribute
to the information relied upon during the independent examination of the Local Plan.

Proposal

3.1 That Cabinet approve the Newcastle under Lyme Playing Pitch Strategy 2015 — 2020
(PPS) which will be the basis for making strategic decisions on future playing pitch
provision and associated facilities across the Borough.

3.2 That a review of the PPS is carried out by the Steering Group on an annual basis and that
any significant changes are reported to Cabinet, to ensure that identified local priorities
continue to be achieved.

Reasons for Proposed Solution

4.1 The PPS sets out the Council’s strategy for identifying and meeting the playing pitch and
associated facilities needs for the Borough between 2021 and 2026. It considers how well
the existing playing pitch provision and associated facilities meet the needs of communities
within the Borough in terms of supply and demand.

4.2 The PPS identifies key areas of improvement to address the specific needs of the different
sports, actions to improve existing sites where appropriate, and recommends the disposal of
sites which do not make a strategic contribution in meeting current or future demand for
sport.

4.3 The PPS forms part of the suite of documents that are needed to contribute to the evidence
base required in the development of the Local Plan. The PPS also satisfies the majority
requirements of the NPPF by identifying what the local priorities are. To remain relevant the
PPS needs to be accurately maintained and developed further to identifying the necessary
resources to fund priced up improvement plans to meet future demand

Options Considered

5.1 The adoption of the PPS is the only option available to the Council that supports
appropriate/timely strategic decision making concerning the provision of outdoor sports
facilities the residents of the Borough can benefit from.

Legal and Statutory Implications

6.1 The PPS follows the latest Sport England methodology and will be a key strategic document
which will inform the local Plan.
Page 31



10.

11.

12.

NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME

Equality Impact Assessment

7.1 The adoption of the PPS should have a positive impact for all residents, including those with
protected characteristics, because the provision of new and or improved sports facilities and
pitches will be of benefit to all sectors of the community.

Financial and Resource Implications

8.1 There are no immediate financial implications for the Council arising from the PPS.

8.2 The PPS also provides a basis to seek future external funding for improvements to playing
pitches and associated facilities. Although further work by the steering group is required
because of the current uncertainty around developer contributions either through Section
106 Agreements or the Community Infrastructure Levy, if adopted by the Council.

8.3 However, any contributions will need to be both directly related to a development, as well
as, ‘fair and reasonable in scale’. It should be noted that there are no longer National
Standards for developer contributions arising from new planning applications, as the NPPF
emphasises the importance of identifying local priorities according to local need. This is one
of the main reasons why the PPS needs to be kept updated as it will be relied upon by
Sport England in their role as a statutory consultee.

8.4 Should it be identified that there is a requirement for the Council to make a financial

contribution to projects, this will be considered as part of the Newcastle Capital Investment
Programme.

Major Risks

9.1 The PPS enables the Council to manage the risks when making strategic decisions
concerning the provision of playing pitches and associated facilities in the Borough

UN Sustainable Development Goals (UNSDG)

10.1 The PPS supports UNSG and Climate Change objectives in a number of ways. Principally,
through partnership working, improving health and wellbeing and supporting, infrastructure
and skills, the following UNSGs are supported.

17 PARTNERSHIPS GOOD HEALTH QUALITY ‘Io REDUCED
FOR THE GOALS AND WELL-BEING EDUCATION INEQUALITIES

- A

/e M =

Key Decision Information

11.1 This is a key decision and appears on the Council’s forward plan.

Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions

12.1 None

Page 32



13.

14.

List of Appendices

13.1 None

Backqground Papers

14.1 Playing Pitch Strategy 2021-26

ih ()
NEWCASTLE
UNDER LYME
[BOROUGH COUNCIL]

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



KNIGHT, KAVANAGH & PAGE

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

DECEMBER 2020

QUALITY, INTEGRITY, PROFESSIONALISM

Knight, Kavanagh & Page Ltd
Company No: 9145032 (England)

MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS QUALITY
QSURF.I)
Registered Office: 1 -2 Frecheville Court, off Knowsley Street, Bury BL9 OUF

T: 0161 764 7040 E: mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk


mailto:mail@kkp.co.uk

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

CONTENTS

ABBREVIATIONS ... 1
PART 1: INTRODUCTION ...ttt e e e e e e e e ennnna e e e e e eennne 3
PART 2: VISION AND KEY RECOMMENDATIONS .....oooiiiiieeiiie e 12
PART 3 AIMS e 15
PART 4: SPORT SPECIFIC ISSUES SCENARIOS AND RECOMMENDATIONS........... 16
PART 5: STRATEGIC RECOMMENDATIONS ... 42
PART 6: ACTION PLAN. ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e ennebea e e e e e 55
KIDSGROVE ANALYSIS AREA . ..o e 58
RURAL CENTRAL AND KEELE ANALYSIS AREA ..o 63
RURAL NORTH ANALYSIS AREA ... 68
RURAL SOUTH ANALYSIS AREA . 71
URBAN NEWCASTLE NORTH, SOUTH AND CENTRAL ANALYSIS AREA.................. 74
PART 7: HOUSING GROWTH SCENARIOS ... 86
PART 8: DELIVER THE STRATEGY AND KEEP IT ROBUST AND UP TO DATE......... 92
APPENDIX ONE: FUNDING PLAN ...ttt ettt e e eenens 97
APPENDIX TWO: GLOSSARY ..ottt 102
APPENDIX THREE: SPORTING CONTEXT oottt 104

Page 36



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

ABBREVIATIONS

3G
AGP
BARLA
BC
BCGBA
CFA
CUA
EA
ECB
EH

FA

FC

FF

FE
FIFA
GIS
HC
KKP
LMS
LTA
MUGA
NGB
NPPF
NTP
NUL
PGA
PPS
PQS
RFL
RFU
RUFC
S106
SASSOT
SCCB
SE
SFA
TBTT
TC
UNNS&C
WR

December 2020

Third Generation (artificial turf)

Artificial Grass Pitch

British Amateur Rugby League Association
Bowls Club

British Crown Green Bowling Association
County Football Association

Community use agreement

England Athletics

England and Wales Cricket Board
England Hockey

Football Association

Football club

Football Foundation

Further Education

Fédération Internationale de Football Association
Geographical Information Systems
Hockey Club

Knight, Kavanagh and Page

Last Man Stands

Lawn Tennis Assaociation

Multi use games area

National Governing Body

National Planning Policy Framework
Non Turf Pitch

Newcastle-under-Lyme

Professional Golfers Association

Playing Pitch Strategy

Performance Quality Standard

Rugby Football League

Rugby Football Union

Rugby union football club

Section 106

Sport Across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent
Staffordshire County Cricket Board

Sport England

Staffordshire Football Association
Transforming British Tennis Together
Tennis Club

Urban Newcastle North, South & Central
World Rugby

Palge 37

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

COVID-19 Addendum

Since the production of the Newcastle-under-Lyme Assessment Report and Strategy & Action
Plan documents there has been global pandemic from the spreading of COVID19
(Coronavirus). This led England to enter an unprecedented state of Lockdown from the 23™
March 2020. Lockdown required the general public to remain at home and only leave their
households for food, health reasons or work (only if work cannot be carried out at home). In
addition, if people are to go outside, they are to remain two metres apart. This understandable
has led to all sporting activities including all those covered in the Playing Pitch Strategy
documents to cease until further notice.

It should be noted that both the Newcastle-under-Lyme Assessment Report and Strategy &
Action Plan were created before the pandemic and the lockdown occurred. The documents
use the Sport England Playing Pitch Strategy methodology from Stage A to Stage D and
therefore the supply and demand analysis for each of the sports and the strategic
recommendations made are accurate based on information collated in 2019.

It is currently unknown what the future impact of COVID-19 and the lockdown will have on
participation and the quality of provision for each sport referenced in the documents.
Therefore, it is acknowledged that as part of the Playing Pitch Strategy Stage E process, the
review of the documents should ensure that any recommendations made are still accurate
based on future levels of supply and demand.

As part of Stage E the PPS should be reviewed on an annual basis from the date it is formally
signed off by the Steering Group. A review will help to maintain the momentum and
commitment built up during its development. Given current circumstances an annual meeting,
which could coincide with the annual NGB affiliation process, would be beneficial to
understand what impact, if any, COVID-19 and the Lockdown has had within Newcastle-
under-Lyme.

For more information regarding the Stage E process please see Part 8: Delver the strategy
and keep it robust and up to date or see https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-
help/facilities-and-planning/planning-for-sport

Page 38

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 2


https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/facilities-and-planning/planning-for-sport
https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/facilities-and-planning/planning-for-sport

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

PART 1: INTRODUCTION

This is the Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS) for Newcastle-under-Lyme. Building upon the
preceding Assessment Report, it provides a clear, strategic framework for the maintenance
and improvement of existing playing pitch and accompanying ancillary facilities up to 2037 (in
line with the emerging Local Plan). It replaces the previous Newcastle-under-Lyme PPS
Strategy dated 2017.

The Strategy has been developed to provide:

4 Avision for the future improvement and prioritisation of playing pitches.

< A number of aims to help deliver the recommendations and actions.

4 A series of strategic recommendations which provide a strategic framework for the
improvement, maintenance, development and, as appropriate, rationalisation of the
playing pitch stock.

4 A series of sport by sport recommendations which provide a strategic framework for sport
led improvements to provision.

<« A prioritised area-by-area Action Plan to address key issues on a site-by-site basis.

A PPS delivers the evidence required to ensure that sufficient land is available to meet existing
and projected future outdoor sport requirements. Its robust evidence base should inform and
be implemented into planning policy and other relevant corporate strategies to enable local
policies, planning and sport development criteria to work efficiently and effectively.

The Strategy is capable of:

< Providing a clear framework for all playing pitch providers, including the public, private
and third sectors;

< Clearly addressing the needs of all identified sports within the area, picking up on
particular local demand issues;

4 Addressing issues of population growth and major growth/regeneration areas;

<« Addressing issues of cross boundary facility provision;

4 Addressing issues of accessibility, quality and management with regard to facility
provision;

< Standing up to scrutiny at a public inquiry as a robust study;

4 Supporting funding applications;

< Providing realistic aspirations which are implementable within the local authority’s
budgetary position and procurement regime.

The Strategy and Action Plan recommends a number of priority projects for Newcastle-under-
Lyme which should be realised over the Local Plan period. It provides a framework for
improvement and, although resources may not currently be in place to implement it, potential
partners and possible sources of external funding.

Partner organisations have a vested interest in ensuring that existing playing fields, pitches
and ancillary facilities are protected and enhanced. As such, many of the objectives and
actions within this document need to be delivered and implemented by a wide range of bodies
such as National Governing Bodies of Sport (NGBs), sports organisations, education
establishments and parish/town councils. In many instances, the Council will not be the
agency which delivers these actions or recommendations; the PPS is not just for the Council
to act upon, it applies to/for all the stakeholders and partners involved.

Page 39

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 3



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

1.1 Scope

The following types of outdoor sports facilities were agreed by the steering group for inclusion
in the Assessment and Strategy:

Football pitches (including 3G pitches)

Cricket pitches

Rugby union pitches (including 3G pitches)

Hockey pitches (sand based AGPSs)

Outdoor tennis courts

Outdoor netball courts

Outdoor bowling greens

Golf courses

Other sports (Ultimate Frisbee, lacrosse, American football)

A A A A A A A A A

All facilities are included regardless of ownership and/or management i.e. whether in the
public, private, education, or third sector.

It should also be noted that, although rugby league has been included within the wider scope
of the study, no such activity currently takes place within Newcastle-under-Lyme and no
future demand has been identified. As such, no information relating to the sport is included
within this document.

Pitch sports (e.g. football, rugby union, hockey and cricket) are assessed using the guidance
set out in Sport England’s Playing Pitch Strategy Guidance: An approach to developing and
delivering a playing pitch strategy.

Non-pitch sports (e.g. bowls, tennis/netball, golf) are assessed using Sport England’s
Assessing Needs and Opportunities Guidance (2014). This requires a different methodology
to assess supply and demand to that used for pitch sports.

1.2 Study area

Although the Strategy will report on Newcastle-under-Lyme as a whole, the Authority has been
divided into the five analysis areas that reflect on the geographical and demographical nature
of the area. These are:

Kidsgrove

Rural Central and Keele

Rural North

Rural South

Urban Newcastle North, South & Central (UNNS&C)

A A A A A

The Strategy will also examine explore cross boundary issues to determine the level of
imported and exported demand, recognising, for example, that people travel to and make use
of strategic facilities irrespective of administrative boundaries. Neighbouring authorities
include Cheshire East, City of Stoke-on-Trent, Shropshire, Stafford, Staffordshire Moorlands.

Page 40
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 4



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Figure 1.1: Analysis area map

Newcastle-under-Lyme

O Analysis Area

. . . CHESHIRE EAST
Population density per square mile

B 13,100 to 21,000
B 11,200 to 13,100
B 9.400 to 11,200
B 5200t0 9.400
B 65600t 8200
5100to 6,600
3.900to 5,100
2.600to 3.900
1300to 2,600
Oto 1,300

STAFFORDSHIRE
MOORLANDS

Rural North

Rural Central and Keele

Rural South

SHROPSHIRE

STAFFORD

Created by Knight, Kavanagh & Page (www.kkp.co.uk)
'@ Crown Copyright| All rights reserved. Licence number 100020577.

1.3 Context

The rationale for undertaking this study is to identify current levels of provision within NUL
across the public, education, voluntary and commercial sectors and to compare this with
current and likely future levels of demand. The primary purpose of the PPS is therefore to
provide a strategic framework that ensures the provision of playing pitch facilities meets the
local needs of existing and future residents.

Concern at national government level over the loss of playing fields prompted the development
of localised playing pitch assessments and strategies which identify current and future
requirements for playing fields. Developing a strategic approach to the analysis of playing pitch
supply and demand is necessary to:

<« Protect playing pitches against development pressures on land in, and around, urban
areas.
<« Identify pitch (natural grass and artificial) supply and demand issues in relation to
predicated population changes.
4 Address ‘demand’ pressures created as a result of specific sports development pressures
e.g. growth of mini soccer and wider use of artificial grass pitches.
4 To ensure that future investment into facilities is proportionate, delivered at the right time
and enhances the overall quality of outdoor sporting assets
Page 41

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 5



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

This strategy provides an evidence base for planning decisions and funding bids and
background evidence to support Local Plan policies in relation to formal recreation. It will
ensure that this evidence is sound, robust and capable of being scrutinised through
examination and meets the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

One of the core planning principles of the NPPF is to improve health, social and cultural
wellbeing for all and deliver sufficient community and cultural facilities and services to meet
local needs. Section 8 of the NPPF deals specifically with the topic of healthy communities;
Paragraph 96 discusses the importance of access to high quality open spaces and
opportunities for sport and recreation that can make an important contribution to the health
and well-being of communities.

Paragraphs 96 and 97 discuss assessments and the protection of “existing open space, sports
and recreational buildings and land, including playing fields”. As such, the Newcastle-under-
Lyme PPS will provide the evidence required to help protect playing fields to ensure sufficient
land is available to meet existing and projected future pitch requirements.

Paragraph 99 and 100 also promote the identification of important green spaces by local
communities and the protection of these facilities. Such spaces may include playing fields.

The Local Plan

Newcastle-under-Lyme Borough Council currently has three plans adopted that form the
statutory development for the entire Authority these are; the Newcastle-under-Lyme and
Stoke-on-Trent Core Spatial Strategy 2006 — 2026 (adopted October 2009), the Newcastle-
under-Lyme Local Plan 2011 (adopted in 2003) and the Saved Policies of the Newcastle-
under-Lyme Local Plan (Adopted 2003).

In cohesion with the Borough wide plans the Council has also adopted The Loggerheads
Neighbourhood Plan (2013-2033) and Chapel and Hill Chorton, Maer and Ashton and
Whitmore Plan. This former plan encompasses the entire area of Loggerheads Parish Council
which consists of four wards: Loggerheads, Ashley, Mucklestone and Tyrley. This
geographical area is significant and occupies the South and West of the Borough and borders
Shropshire. There are six designated neighbourhood plan areas. These are listed below with
their stage of progress:

< Loggerheads - Neighbourhood Development Plan was made on 15th February 2019,
and now forms part of the Councils Development Plan.

4 Chapel and Hill Chorton, Maer and Ashton and Whitmore - An Examiner’'s Report
was issued on 16 August 2019, and a Decision Statement on the 4th October 2019 with
the document now forming part of the Councils Development Plan (as of 21/01/20).

| Madeley - Neighbourhood Development Plan is currently at the Regulation 16 stage
having undertaken the Regulation 14 consultation in February 2020. The Qualifying
Body has also undertaken two public consultations on proposed Local Green Space
sites.

< Beltley, Balterley and Wrinehill - Neighbourhood Development Plan is currently at the
Regulation 14 stage (the Qualifying Body has undertaken a four week informal
consultation on a first draft of the Plan in August 2019) and a further consultation on the
Reg 14 Plan during October-November 2020.

| Keele - Neighbourhood Development Plan is currently at the pre-Regulation 14 stage.

| Kidsgrove - Neighbourhood Development Plan is currently at the pre-Regulation 14
stage.

All stages of plan making are set out within the Neighbourhood Planning (General)

Pad%ewtions 2012.

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 6



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

New Local Plan (2020 — 2037)

The Council is in the process of preparing a new Local Plan. This will set out how the Borough
of Newcastle-under-Lyme will grow and develop from 2020 to 2037. It identifies where new
homes, jobs and services will be located and how they will be provided. It will also set out the
policies to guide development and protect the environment and set aside land to meet
identified needs. In order for the new Local Plan to be compliant with the Government’s
‘National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) there is a need to commission consultants to
create a new Playing Pitch Strategy as the previous one, commissioned in 2014 has come to
the end of its five year life span.

Together Active formerly Sport Across Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent (SASSOT)

Together Active is the county active partnership. Its team provides services to partners
involved with the delivery of sport, physical education and active recreation. The following is
a brief overview of its stated services and programmes:

< Engaging with and supporting partners to develop their sport, PE and active recreation
plans and programmes.

Supporting volunteers and coaches.

Supporting club development.

Providing local insight/evidence of need for development of programmes and facilities.
Supporting the promotion of community sport and active recreation programmes.

Advice on Safeguarding young people and vulnerable adults in sport.

Equity and disability sport.

Management of Satellite Clubs, Aiming High Inspire Multi Sport Club programmes.
Supporting the development and delivery of Level 3 School Games Sports Festivals,
Primary School PE and Sport premium.

A A A A A A A A

Together Active’s indicates the rationale for the PPS strategy will help to deliver on the broader
agenda to increase physical activity levels which is critical to improving a range of health and
wellbeing outcomes such as rising obesity levels and poor mental health. The latest data
(Public Health England) for Newcastle-under-Lyme shows that:

< 36.3% of children and young people are physically active, this is the lowest of all districts
in Staffordshire and well below the national average of 46.8%

| 27.9% of reception age children are overweight or obese, this is the highest in the
County and well above the national average of 22.6%

| 22.3% of adults are physically inactive, this is above the County and national average
of 21.4%

Staffordshire County Council has identified obesity as a priority area and will be addressing
rising levels through the implementation of a Whole Systems Approach (WSA) which will bring
together all key stakeholders across the system, including the community, to work together in
an integrated way to bring about sustainable, long term system change. The WSA to obesity
is linked to a number of county wide strategies and plans including the Staffordshire Health
and Wellbeing Strategy outcome, to ‘help people stay as well as they can to reduce the
growing pressure on services'.

Everyone More Active More Often (2018-2021)

Together Active’s current strategy, Everyone More Active More Often, is a network of local
agencies committed to working together to increase the number of people taking part in
physical activity and sport. It is part of an England wide network of 43 Active Partnerships and

Page 43

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 7



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

is funded by national and local partners including Sport England, our Local Authorities and
Universities to promote physical activity and sport.

1.4 Headline findings

The table below highlights the quantitative headline findings identified for all main pitch sports
included in the preceding Assessment Report. MES stands for match equivalent sessions and
has been used as the comparable unit for natural grass pitches. Converting both the amount
of play a site can accommodate (its carrying capacity) and how much play takes place there
(its current use) into the same unit of demand enables a comparison to be undertaken.

Pitches have a limit of how much play they can accommodate over a certain period of time
before their quality, and in turn their use, is adversely affected. As the main usage of pitches
is for matches, it is appropriate for the comparable unit to be match equivalent sessions.

Based on how they tend to be played, this unit for football and rugby union pitches relates to
a typical week within the season for each sport. For cricket pitches it is appropriate to look at
the number of match equivalent sessions over the course of a season. How much play a
cricket pitch can accommodate is primarily determined by the number and quality of wickets
on a pitch. Only one match is generally played per pitch per day. However, play is rotated
across the wickets to reduce wear and allow for repair. Each wicket is able to accommodate
a certain amount of play per season as opposed to a week.

The PPS guidance does not advocate the conversion of MES to pitches as there is not always
a case for providing pitches to meet the demand/shortfalls expressed. For example, improving
the quality of pitches can also increase the capacity of existing pitches to accommodate such
demand. For qualitative findings and site-specific findings, please see Part 4: Sport Specific
Recommendations and Scenarios, and Part 6: Action Plan.

For artificial surfaces (AGPs and 3G pitches), how much play can be accommodated is
primarily determined by availability, rather than how much play it can accommodate before its
quality is adversely affected as with natural grass pitches. Therefore, whole pitches are used
as the comparable unit. Similarly, for the other non-pitch sports (i.e. tennis, netball bowls etc)
where it is not as easy to determine carry capacity, whole facilities are used as the comparable
unit.

Table 1.1: Quantitative headline findings

Sport Analysis area | Current demand (2019) Future demand (2037)
Pitch type Current capacity total | Future capacity total in
in MESI MES
Football Kidsgrove Adult Shortfall of 1
(grass Youth 11v11
pitches) Youth 9v9 Shortfall of 1.5 Shortfall of 2.5
Mini 7v7
Mini 5v5
Rural Central Adult Spare capacity of 1
and Keele Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 1.5
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 1
Mini 7v7 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 5v5 Shortfall of 1

P ad’éMEg_— match equivalent sessions per week (per season for cricket)

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 8



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Sport Analysis area | Current demand (2019) Future demand (2037)
Pitch type Current capacity total | Future capacity total in
in MESIY
Rural North Adult Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Youth 11v11 Spare capacity of 1 Spare capacity of 1
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 7v7
Mini 5v5
Rural South Adult Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 0.5 Shortfall of 2
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 0.5
Mini 7v7
Mini 5v5 Shortfall of 1
UNNS&C Adult Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 1
Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 2 Shortfall of 3
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 1.5
Mini 7v7
Mini 5v5 Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 4
Football Kidsgrove Full size / small Shortfall of 1 full sized | Shortfall of 1 full sized
(3G size, floodlit 3G pitch for team 3G pitch for team training
pitches) training
Rural Central
and Keele
Rural North
Rural South Shortfall of a small Shortfall of a small sized
sized 3G pitch for 3G pitch for team training
team training
UNNS&C Shortfall of 1 full sized | Shortfall of 2 full sized
3G pitch for team 3G pitches for team
training
Cricket Kidsgrove Senior Shortfall of 20
Junior Spare capacity of 8 Spare capacity of 4
Rural Central Senior Shortfall of 14 Shortfall of 14
and Keele Junior Spare capacity of 2 Shortfall of 10
Rural North Senior Shortfall of 12
Junior Spare capacity of 28 Spare capacity of 12
Rural South Senior
Junior Spare capacity of 4 Shortfall of 4
UNNS&C Senior Shortfall of 6 Shortfall of 26
Junior Shortfall of 6 Shortfall of 22
Rugby Kidsgrove Senior
union Rural Central | Senior
and Keele
Rural North Senior
Rural South Senior
UNNS&C Senior Shortfall of 4.5 Shortfall of 6

[2 Based on accommodating 38 teams on one full size pitch

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

Page 45



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Sport Analysis area | Current demand (2019) Future demand (2037)

Pitch type Current capacity total | Future capacity total in
in MESIY MES

Hockey NUL Full size, floodlit | Adequate provision Adequate provision

(sand

AGPs)

Tennis NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision

Bowls NUL Greens Adequate provision Adequate provision

Netball NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision

Golf NUL Courses (Driving | Adequate provision Adequate provision
ranges)

Other NUL Pitches Adequate provision Adequate provision

sports

Conclusions

From a quantitative perspective, the existing position for all sports is either that demand is
being met or that there is a shortfall, whereas the future position shows the creation of
shortfalls for some pitch types and in some areas where demand is currently being met and
the exacerbation of existing shortfalls. There are current and future shortfalls of 3G pitches,
rugby union pitches, cricket squares, youth 11v11 pitches (Rural South and UNNS&C analysis
areas) and youth 9v9 pitches (Kidgrove Analysis Area).

When taking into consideration future demand shortfalls worsen additional shortfalls arising
on adult pitches (Kidsgrove and UNNS&C analysis areas), youth 11v11 pitches (Rural Central
& Keele Analysis Area), youth 9v9 pitches (Rural central and Keele, Rural South and UNNS&C
analysis areas) and mini pitches (Rural Central and Keele, Rural South and UNNS&C analysis
areas).

Despite the above, it must be noted that the shortfalls evidenced are relatively minimal when
compared to other local authorities nationally. As such, for rugby union and football, it is
considered that shortfalls can be met through the better utilisation of existing provision, such
as via pitch re-configuration, improving quality and encouraging or enabling access to
unused/unavailable provision. In addition to improving quality of cricket squares shortfalls
need to be met through creation of Non Turf Pitches (NTPs) and potentially new grass
provision.

Notwithstanding, a shortfall of 3G pitches can only be met through increased provision. With
resources to improve the quality of grass pitches being limited, an increase in 3G provision
could also help reduce grass pitch shortfalls through the transfer of play, thus reducing
overplay, which in turn can aid pitch quality improvements.

There is suitable stock of hockey suitable AGPs, however, there are issues with quality which
need to be resolved. If these are not resolved there is a potential need to create a new pitch
to cater for Borough hockey demand.

Where provision is at capacity there is a need to sustain or improve, if required due to poor
guality, the provision to protect the quality of existing facilities.

Where demand is being met, this does not necessarily equate to a surplus of provision, with
any spare capacity instead considered as a solution to overcoming current or future demand
shortfalls. There is a resultant need to protect all existing outdoor sport provision until all
demand is met, or there is a requirement to replace provision in accordance with Sport
England’s Playing Fields Policy exceptions.

Page 46

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 10



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Recommendations on how to alleviate these shortfalls are identified below in the Part 4: Sport
Specific Issues Scenarios and Recommendation and Part 6: Action Plan.

Page 47

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 11



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

PART 2: VISION AND KEY RECOMMENDATIONS

Vision

Below is a vision for Newcastle-under-Lyme in regard to its playing pitch provision. It sets out

to capture the corporate themes within each authority to provide an all-encompassing vision.

“There will be a range of outdoor sports facilities to benefit all residents in Newcastle
under Lyme, resulting in an increase in participation in sport and physical activity.”

Key overall recommendations

For Newcastle-under-Lyme to obtain its vision it is recommended that priority should be
placed on improving the quality of playing and ancillary provision of current sites in addition
to the exploration of multi pitch hub sites rather than investment in single pitch sites,
particularly in the locality of areas with large scale housing development.

Furthermore, taking into consideration the challenges during and post COVID 19 there is a
need to improve and secure community access at educational sites, particularly those which
are dual use.

Below is a truncated list of key recommendations for each sport. For a full and
comprehensive list of key recommendations for each sports please see Part 4. Sport

Specific Issues, Scenarios and Recommendation

Grass football pitch recommendations

4

4

Protect existing quantity of pitches until all demand is being met (unless replacement
provision meets Sport England requirements and is agreed upon and provided).
Sustain pitch quality and seek improvements where necessary via utilisation of the FA’s
Pitch Improvement Programme.

Work to accommodate future demand at sites which are not operating at capacity or at
sites not currently available for community use that could be moving forward.

Explore the creation of a within grass pitch hub site in the UNNS&C Analysis Area in
order to provide clubs better quality ancillary and pitch provision in order to address
shortfalls.

3G recommendations

Protect current stock of 3G pitches.

Create two additional full size 3G pitches to alleviate all current shortfalls with one each in
the Kidsgrove and UNNS&C analysis areas.

Look to create a further small size 3G pitch to address future shortfalls in the Rural South
Analysis Area

Ensure the pitch at The Gordon Banks Sports Centre is refurbished and put on the FA
register with regular relevant testing.

Encourage more match play demand to transfer to 3G pitches and ensure that pitches
remain suitable to accommodate such demand through appropriate certification when it is
required.

Ensure that any new 3G pitches are priced competitively against the cost of hiring a grass
pitches and are aimed at local grassroots clubs.

Cricket recommendations

Page 48

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 12



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

4 Protect all cricket squares in current use.

< Work with clubs and grounds staff to review quality issues on squares to ensure
appropriate quality is achieved at sites assessed as standard and sustained at sites
assessed as good.

<« Look to sustain minimal levels of overplay at Newcastle and Hartshill Cricket Club and
Porthill Park Cricket Club through dedicated levels of enhanced maintenance and monitor
future levels of demand.

< Examine the feasibility of installing an NTP at Scot Hay Cricket Club in order to alleviate
overplay.

4 Explore options to accommodate expressed future demand through the provision of
additional grass cricket squares to the installation of NTPs, with preferences towards the
latter.

4 Support Audley CC to provide a second square closer to its existing home venue.

Rugby union recommendations

< Existing quantity of rugby union pitches to be protected or be fully mitigated to meet
National Planning Policy.

< Improve pitch quality at secure sites to alleviate overplay and create actual spare
capacity.

<« Support Newcastle RUFC in its ambition to create a training area adjacent to its first team
pitch.

< Work with Linley & Kidsgrove to improve poor quality changing provision at Bathpool
County Park.

4 Secure both clubs to long term agreements for respective home venues, providing each
with security of tenure.

Hockey recommendations

< Protect all existing full size sand-based AGPs for hockey use.

< As priority, seek to refurbish the pitch at Keele University Sports Centre in the near future
and ensure a sinking fund is in place for long-term sustainability.

< Explore the potential of returning Market Drayton HC demand back into Shropshire, if
suitable provision can be obtained, in order to create additional capacity for hockey
growth in Newcastle-under-Lyme.

< Explore the feasibility of creating a second full size hockey suitable AGP at Newcastle-
under-Lyme School to better service both club, curricular and extracurricular demand.

<« When the 3G pitch stock increases, encourage the transfer of football demand from the
sand-based AGPs in order to free up increased capacity for hockey activity.

Tennis recommendations

< Retain and sustain quality of club courts for competitive play through implementation of
appropriate maintenance regimes.

4 Support Basford TC with its aspiration to resurface two of the courts on site in the next few
years.

< Examine re-establishing demand at Westlands Sports Centre.

<« Explore the potential to establish indoor tennis provision at Newcastle-under-Lyme School
through a potential development of a sports hall through Newcastle Town NC.

< Improve quality of key local authority courts and accompanying ancillary provision, first
and foremost focusing on sites that best accommodate informal play.

< Explore implementation of ClubSpark, Rally and Gate Access schemes at appropriate
sites to enhance available provision for informal tennis.

Page 49

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 13



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Bowling Green recommendations

< Retain existing quantity of greens.
< Improvements of standard quality greens to good quality through and enhanced
maintenance regime is required at Wolstanton Park and Wolstanton High Street Club

Golf recommendations

< Retain all current golf courses.

< Ensure that if the provision at Keele Driving Range is lost it is re provided at another

suitable location such as one of the three golf courses in the Borough.

Netball recommendations

4 Protect quantity of courts.

4 Assist Newcastle Town NC in its aspirations to development a purpose built indoor facility
at Newcastle-under-Lyme School.
4

Seek to improve poor quality courts quality through resurfacing or improved maintenance.

Page 50

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 14



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

PART 3: AIMS

The following overarching aims are based on the three Sport England themes. It is
recommended that they are adopted by the Council and partners to enable delivery of the
overall PPS vision and Sport England planning objectives.

AIM 1

To protect the existing supply of outdoor sport facilities where it is needed to meet
current and future needs.

AIM 2

To enhance outdoor sport facilities and ancillary facilities through improving quality and
management of sites.

AIM 3
To provide new outdoor sport facilities where there is current or future demand to do so.

Figure 3.1: Sport England themes

PROTECT

PLANNING
poLicY

ASSESSMENT
OF NEEDS

PLANNING FOR SPORT

DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT

g
&
S
~

Source: Sport England, Planning for Sport Guidance (June 2019)

Page 51

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 15



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

PART 4: SPORT SPECIFIC ISSUES SCENARIOS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

In order to help develop the recommendations/actions and to understand their potential
impact, a number of relevant scenario questions are tested against the key issues in this
section for each playing pitch sport, resulting in sport specific recommendations.

4.1 Football — grass pitches

Assessment report summary

4

There is current spare capacity on adult pitches apart from the Kidsgrove Analysis
Area which is at capacity. When accounting for future demand the Kidsgrove and
UNNS&C become overplayed.

There is current overplay on youth 11v11 pitches in the Rural South and UNNS&C
areas with Rural North Analysis Area at capacity and the Rural North having spare
capacity. When accounting for future demand the Rural Central and Keele, Rural
South and UNNS&C become overplayed the Kidsgrove Analysis Area is at
capacity and the Rural South has spare capacity.

There is spare capacity on youth 9v9 pitches in all analysis areas apart from the
Kidsgrove area which is overplayed. When accounting for future demand all areas
become overplayed apart from the Rural North.

There is spare capacity on mini 7v7 pitches in the Rural Central and Keele
Analysis Area whereas the remaining areas are all at capacity. This remains the
same when taking into consideration future demand.

There is spare capacity on mini 5v5 pitches in the UNNS&C Analysis Area whereas
the remaining areas are all at capacity. When accounting for future demand the
Kidsgrove and Rural North areas are still at capacity with remaining areas
becoming overplayed.

The audit identifies a total of 128 grass football pitches within Newcastle-under-Lyme
across 53 sites. Of these, 102 pitches are available, at some level, for community use
across 43 sites.

There are informal pitches located at College Field (Madeley), Talk Talk Park (Madeley
Heath) and Whitmore Village Hall Recreation Field.

Loggerhead Parish Council indicates plans to develop a multi pitch football site within its
locality with accompanying ancillary facilities.

City of Stoke FC reports it has plans to develop additional pitches at North Staffs sports
Club.

In total, 17 pitches are assessed as good quality, 53 as standard quality and 32 as poor
quality.

The majority of poor quality pitches (53%) are located at educational sites.

Across the Borough 11 sites (33%) of sites actively used for football are not serviced by
any sort of clubhouse or changing rooms. In addition, a further five sites are serviced by
poor quality provision.

Several stakeholders indicate aspirations to create or improve the quality on ancillary
provision on the sites they use.

Across the Borough there is a proactive approach of leasing/licencing sites to prominent
clubs.

Through the audit and assessment, 207 teams from within 59 clubs are identified as
playing within Newcastle-under-Lyme.

There are six men’s teams that play in the football pyramid, whereas, there are four
women’s/girls’ teams that play in the women’s structure.

There are four clubs which export demand outside of the Borough these are Betley Youth
FC, Chesterton AFC Juniors, Butt Lane White Star FC and Audley Juniors FC.

Page 52

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 16



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

<« There are two clubs which import demand into the Borough from neighbouring authority
Stoke-on-Trent, these are; Stoke City FC and City of Stoke FC.
< When this future growth from TGRs is dissipated to individual analysis areas rather than
as a whole Borough the potential future growth is anticipated to be four senior men’s, one
youth boys 11v11 and one youth boys 9v9 team.
< The total future demand expressed by clubs amounts to 20 match equivalent sessions (40

teams).

< Actual spare capacity totals 12.5 match equivalent sessions across 19 pitches.

< When broken down, 4.5 match equivalent sessions of overplay takes place in the UNNS&C
Analysis Area, 1.5 match equivalent sessions in the Kidsgrove Analysis Area and 0.5
match equivalent sessions in the Rural South Analysis Area.

Scenarios

Alleviating shortfalls

In the Borough there is capacity to accommodate current levels of demand across all pitch
types apart from youth 11v11, however, when accounting for future demand, shortfalls also

become evident on adult, youth 9v9 and mini 5v5 pitch types, these are listed below.

Table 4.1: Summary of current and future pitch shortfalls by Analysis Area

pitches

Analysis | Current pitch | Current spare capacity| Future pitch Future spare
area shortfalls shortfalls
Kidsgrove | 1.5 match No identified spare 1 match equivalent No identified future
equivalent capacity sessions on adult spare capacity
sessions on pitches
youth 9v9 2.5 match equivalent
pitches sessions on youth 9v9
pitches
Rural No identified 1 match equivalent 1.5 match equivalent
Central and| shortfalls sessions on adult sessions on youth equivalent sessions
Keele pitches 11v11 pitches on mini 7v7 pitches
0.5 match equivalent 1 match equivalent
sessions on youth 9v9 | sessions on youth 9v9
pitches pitches
0.5 match equivalent 1 match equivalent
sessions on mini 7v7 sessions on mini 5v5
pitches pitches
Rural North| No identified 0.5 match equivalent No identified shortfalls
shortfalls sessions on adult equivalent sessions
pitches on adult pitches
1 match equivalent 1 match equivalent
sessions on youth sessions on youth
11v11 pitches 11v11 pitches
0.5 match equivalent
sessions on youth 9v9 equivalent sessions
pitches on youth 9v9
Rural 0.5 match 1 match equivalent 3 match equivalent 1 match equivalent
South equivalent sessions on adult sessions on youth sessions on adult
sessions on pitches 11v11 pitches
youth 11v11 1 match equivalent 1.5 match equivalent
pitches sessions on youth 9v9 | sessions on youth 9v9

pitches

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

Page 53
17



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Analysis | Current pitch | Current spare capacity| Future pitch Future spare
area shortfalls shortfalls capacity
1 match equivalent
sessions on mini 5v5
pitches
UNNS&C | 2 match 1 match equivalent 1 match equivalent No identified future
equivalent sessions on adult sessions on adult spare capacity
sessions on pitches pitches
youth 11vil 0.5 match equivalent | 3 match equivalent
pitches sessions on youth 9v9 | sessions on youth
pitches 11v11 pitches
2.5 match equivalent 1.5 match equivalent
sessions on mini 5v5 sessions on youth 9v9
pitches pitches

Alleviating this level of shortfall can be achieved through a variety of methods including
securing tenure at sites, improving secure poor quality pitches, creation of new 3G provision
(explored later in the report) or through the transferal of demand onto a dedicated football hub
site. The extent to which each of these has on addressing the shortfalls is explored below in
greater detalil.

The full supply and demand analysis for football pitches Borough wide and by Analysis Area
can be found in the accompanying assessment report.

Securing access to education sites

Education sites generally accommodate large areas of playing field and playing pitches.
However, as tenure on these sites is generally considered to be unsecure, potential spare
capacity has been discounted from the supply and demand analysis within the Assessment
Report. Securing access to these sites could provide an opportunity to help address future
shortfalls across Newcastle-under-Lyme. A summary of these pitches can be seen in the table
below.

Table 4.2: Summary of discounted peak time spare capacity at educational sites with
community access

Site | Site name Analysis area Pitch |Number | Amount of peak
ID type of time spare
pitches capacity
discounted due
to unsecure
tenure!
15 | Chesterton Community Sports UNNS&C (9v9) 1 1
College
31 | Madeley High School Rural Central and | Adult 2 2
Keele
35 | Newcastle Academy Grass Pitches UNNS&C Adult 3 2.5
57 | The Gordon Banks Sports Centre UNNS&C (9v9) 1 1
91 | Edenhurst Prep School UNNS&C (7v7) 1 1

There are several community available education sites in the Borough which contain football
pitches which have the potential to help address remaining shortfalls by securing access

P aglé/'S(Z! equivalent sessions

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 18



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

through community use agreements. In total, 7.5 match equivalent sessions of spare capacity
could potentially be generated if tenure to the abovementioned school site could be secured.

Table 4.3: Summary of potential peak time spare capacity at educational sites by analysis
area

Analysis area Summary of potential spare capacity (match equivalent sessions)
Adult |Youth 11v11 | Youth 9v9 | Mini 7v7 | Mini 5v5 | Totals
Kidsgrove - - - - - -
Rural Central and Keele 2 - - - - 2
Rural North - - - - - -
Rural South - - - - - -
UNNS&C 25 - 2 1 - 5.5
Total 4.5 - 2 1 - 7.5

If all this spare capacity could be secured through community use agreements (CUA) or long
term leases there would be no future shortfalls on adult provision in Newcastle-under-Lyme.
It would also reduce the future shortfall on youth 9v9 pitches to three match equivalent
sessions.

Although all these schools are identified as being community available, it does not necessarily
mean they are open to securing usage to a club for a set period of time, such as through a
CUA. This is due to schools wanting the flexibility to prioritise and protect the quality of their
pitches for curricular or extracurricular usage, for example, in periods of extended bad
weather.

Securing access and improving pitch quality at education sites
In addition to having unsecure tenure, it should also be noted that 11 of the education sites
also accommodate one or more poor quality pitches. There would be a need to secure tenure

and improve pitch quality at the sites in the table below.

Table 4.4: Summary of community available poor quality pitches at education sites with
unsecure tenure

December 2020

Strategy:

Knight Kavanagh & Page

Site | Site name Analysis | Pitch |[Number of | Amount of peak
ID area type pitches [time spare capacity
discounted due to
unsecure tenure
16 | Churchfields Primary School (Playing | UNNS&C | Adult 1 0.5
Fields)

20 | Friarswood Primary School UNNS&C | (7v7) 1 1

28 | Knutton St Marys Primary School UNNS&C | (7v7) 1 1

29 | Langdale Primary School UNNS&C | (7v7) 1 1

52 | Springhead Primary School Kidsgrove | (5v5) 1 1

55 | St Saviours CE Primary School Kidsgrove | (5v5) 1 1

55 | St Saviours CE Primary School Kidsgrove | (7v7) 1 1

63 | Wolstanton High School UNNS&C | (11v1l) 1 1

63 | Wolstanton High School UNNS&C | (9v9) 2 2

73 | Dovebank Primary School Kidsgrove | (7v7) 1 1

86 | Bradwell County Primary School UNNS&C | (9v9) 1 1

90 | Chesterton Primary School UNNS&C | (7v7) 1 1

92 | Hempstalls Primary School UNNS&C | (5v5) 2 2

Page

[EEN
O

55



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

If all this spare capacity could be secured through CUAs or long term leases, in addition to
having pitch quality improved, future shortfalls on youth 11v11 pitches would be reduced to
4.5 match equivalent sessions, future shortfalls on youth 9v9 pitches and mini 5v5 pitches
would each reduce to two match equivalent sessions.

Improving quality

There are a further 11 (non-education) sites containing poor quality pitches, these are:

4 Betley Cricket Club (Rural North) < Lower Milehouse (UNNS&C)

< Betley Youth FC (Rural North) < Redgate Clayton Football Club
<« Blackbank (UNNS&C) (UNNS&C)

4 Chester Road Playing Fields (Kidsgrove) 4 Salop Place (Kidsgrove)

< Halmerend Sports Ground (Rural North) 4 The Burntwood (Rural South)
< Jollies Field (UNNS&C) < The Wammy (UNNS&C)

Unlike educational sites they all have secure tenure. Therefore, improving their quality from
poor to standard would create peak time spare capacity which would more effectively help to
reduce overplay.

The table below identifies the amount of spare capacity which could be obtained through
improving poor quality pitches to standard quality. Please note this is just the non education
sites that have secure tenure.

Table 4.5: Summary of discounted peak time spare capacity due to poor quality

Analysis area Summary of discounted spare capacity (match equivalent sessions)
due to poor quality
Adult  |Youth 11v11 | Youth 9v9 | Mini 7v7 | Mini 5v5 Totals

Kidsgrove 1.5 - - - - 15
Rural Central and Keele - - - - - -
Rural North 2 - - - - 2
Rural South 0.5 - - - 0.5
UNNS&C 3 0.5 0.5 - - 4
Total 7 0.5 0.5 - - 8

If the above pitches were improved to a minimum of standard quality the actual spare capacity
generated would alleviate all future shortfalls expressed across the Borough on adult pitches,
in addition to creating a further five match equivalent sessions of spare capacity.

Creation of a hub grass pitch site (The Wammy and Lower Milehouse)

Most of the football demand in Newcastle-under-Lyme is generated in the UNNS&C Analysis
Area as this has the highest number of football pitches and therefore usage. On this basis, the
creation of a multi grass football pitch hub site within the area could alleviate identified
shortfalls.

The Council reports it has initial plans to improve the quality of provision at the Wammy and
Lower Milehouse in order to alleviate demand from surrounding football sites. The sites are
located adjacent to each other and will form a new strategic football grass pitch hub site. By
focusing on this new hub site it will be able to pool its funds, in conjunction with potential
grant/S106 monies, to improve and increase current capacity and create a purpose built

Page 56

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 20



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

ancillary provision. It should be noted that this project has initially been discussed with
Newcastle Town FC over a potential lease in cohesion with pitch and ancillary improvements.

Currently there are a total of three poor quality adult pitches across the two sites with an
additional youth 9v9 pitch to be established at the Wammy. If all these pitches were improved
to a minimum of standard quality a total of three match equivalent sessions on adult pitches
and one match equivalent session on youth 9v9.

In the UNNS&C Analysis Area this would alleviate the future shortfall on adult pitches whilst
reducing the future shortfalls on youth 9v9 pitches from 1.5 match equivalent sessions to a
marginal 0.5 match equivalent session.

Please note that if the above pitches were to be established it is recommended that suitable
ancillary provision is created to meet the increase in demand to the site.

It should be noted that a potential way the Council could assist in funding such a project would
be to consider the rationalisation of pitch sites considered to be low value.

A site is considered to be of low value in terms of their current contribution to formal pitch
supply with limited community use due to their geographical location. Investment in pitch
guality improvements and ancillary provision at these sites is therefore unlikely to yield high
returns given the scale of the facilities relative to the amount of investment that would be
needed to deliver substantive enhancements to the sites as standalone facilities.

As standalone facilities, these sites are currently limited in respect of the sporting contribution
they can make, and so, consideration could be given to releasing the sites for an alternative
use subject to appropriate mitigation secured to address the loss in line with the National
Planning Policy Framework Paragraph 97 and Sport England’s Playing Field Policy.

In conclusion, a mixture of securing usage at specific educational sites and improving poor
guality grass pitches and the creation of a multi pitch grass hub site in the UNNS&C Analysis
Area has the potential to alleviate any future shortfall across Newcastle-under-Lyme.

Recommendations

4 Protect existing quantity of pitches until all demand is being met (unless replacement
provision meets Sport England requirements and is agreed upon and provided).

<« Sustain pitch quality and seek improvements where necessary via utilisation of the FA’s
Pitch Improvement Programme.

<« Explore opportunities to gain long-term access to sites where community use is not
currently offered.

4 Work to accommodate future demand at sites which are not operating at capacity or at
sites not currently available for community use that could be moving forward.

<« Improve ancillary facilities where this is a clear need to do so.

< Ensure clubs playing within, or with aspirations to play within, the football pyramid can
progress.

<« Explore the creation of a within grass pitch hub site in the UNNS&C Analysis Area in
order to provide clubs better quality ancillary and pitch provision in order to address
shortfalls.

Page 57

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 21



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

4.2 Third Generation turf (3G) pitches
Assessment Report summary

4 There is an insufficient supply of full size 3G pitches to meet current and
anticipated future demand for football in Newcastle-under-Lyme.

4 There are four full size 3G pitches in Newcastle-under-Lyme that fully comply with the
above specification. The majority of which (75%) are located in the UNNS&C Analysis
Area, whilst the remaining pitch is located in the Rural Central and Keele Analysis Area.

4 The only 3G pitch not available for community use is at Stoke City FC Training Ground.

< Inaddition, there are also one smaller sized 3G pitches servicing Newcastle-under-Lyme
at Keele University Sports Centre.

4 There are ambitions to create or enhance current 3G provision in the Kidsgrove area,
The Gordon Banks Sports Centre, Roe Lane Playing Fields, North Staffs Sports Centre
and Madeley High School.

< In Newcastle-under-Lyme one of the three community available 3G pitches is FA
certified, this being Keele University Sports Centre. In addition, the pitch at Stoke FC
Training Ground is FIFA certified, however, as previously indicated the latter pitch is not
available for community access.

4 The 3G pitch at Chesterton Community Sports College, Keele University Sports Centre
and The Gordon Banks Sports Centre are all managed through their respective
educational providers.

< All community available full size floodlit 3G pitches are marginally reduced in availability
due to them all being located at education sites.

4 Thefull size 3G pitches at Chesterton Community Sports College and The Gordon Banks
Sports Centre are standard quality, whereas, the pitch a Keel University Sports Centre
is good quality.

<« On an analysis area level there is a need for a further two full size 3G pitches, one each
in the Kidsgrove, Rural South and UNNS&C analysis areas to accommodate training
demand and one small size pitch in the Rural South Analysis Area.

<« When factoring in future demand the overall shortfall increases to a need for four full size
pitches. One each in the Kidsgrove and Rural South analysis areas and two in the
UNNS&C Analysis Area.

Scenarios

Accommodating football training demand

As evidenced in the preceding Assessment Report, in order to satisfy current football training
demand (based on the FA’s model of one full size 3G pitch being able to cater for 38 teams)

there is a need for three full size 3G pitches, one each in the Kidsgrove, Rural South and
UNNS&C analysis areas to accommodate training demand.

Page 58

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 22



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Table 4.6: Current demand for 3G pitches by analysis area

Analysis | Current Current Current | Current Future Future Future
area number | requirement | number | shortfall | number | requirement | shortfall
of of full of
teams size 3G teams?
pitches
Kidsgrove 32 084-1 - 1 36 094-1 1
Rural 27 0.71-1 1 - 37 097-1 -
Central
and
Keele
Rural 4 0.10-0 - - 4 0.10-0 -
North
Rural 20 052-1 - 1 29 076 -1 1
South
UNNS&C 124 3.26-3 2 1 144 3.78-4 2

This being said, demand in the Rural South Analysis Area has been rounded up from 0.52,
therefore, a smaller sized floodlit 3G pitch rather than a full size pitch may better suit this
training need. If this approach is taken there would be a need for two full size and one smaller
sized pitch within the Borough.

As seen in the table above, when factoring in future demand the overall shortfall increases to
a need for four full size pitches. One each in the Kidsgrove and Rural South analysis areas
and two in the UNNS&C Analysis Area.

It should be noted that any development of an artificial pitch in the Kidsgrove Analysis Area
should take into consideration the recent creation of a 3G pitch at Alsager Sports Hub in the
neighbouring authority of Cheshire East which is located approximately three miles away.
Staffordshire FA is currently examining if this would be problematic for the development of 3G
pitches within Kidsgrove. However, initial analysis suggests there to be enough demand within
the area to sustain at least a small size 3G pitch.

Moving match play to 3G pitches

To further the use of 3G pitches for matches, the FA is particularly keen to work with local
authorities to understand the potential demand for full size floodlit 3G pitches should all
competitive matches that are currently played on Council pitches be transferred. The following
table therefore calculates the number of teams currently using Council facilities in Newcastle-
under-Lyme for each pitch type at peak time.

Table 4.7: Number of teams currently using council pitches (peak time)

Pitch type Pitch size Peak period No. of teams
Adult 11v11 Sunday AM 6
Youth 11vil Sunday AM 11
Youth 9v9 Sunday AM 7

Mini T Sunday AM 5
Mini 5v5 Sunday AM 5
Total 34

2 Based on increased demand forecasted from team generation rates and club aspirational demand, both re-applied
to the Area where the club is based for training purposes

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 23

Page 59



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

The FA suggests an approach for estimating the number of full size, floodlit 3G pitches
required to accommodate the above demand for competitive matches, as seen in the table

below.

Table 4.8: Full size 3G pitches required for the transfer of council pitch demand

Format No teams per No matches at 3G units Total units 3G pitches

time PEAK TIME per match required required

(%) (y) =x/2 (2 formats B=(A)/64

(A)=()*()

Adult 6 3 32 96 1.5
11v11 11 5.5 32 176 2.75
9v9 7 3.5 10 35 0.54
7 5 25 8 20 0.31
5v5 5 25 4 10 0.15

Given that peak time is the same for each pitch type, the number of 3G pitches required
needs totalling together. This equates to the demand for six 3G pitches (rounded up from
5.25). As this figure is substantially more than the number of 3G pitches required to
accommodate current and future training needs, it suggests that this is not a feasible option
as creating so many 3G pitches will result in the stock being unsustainable. A less intensive
approach could be to transfer demand in a phased approach, such as youth 11v11 matches
(with three full size 3G pitches being required).

Creating additional full size 3G pitches for football

As discussed in the preceding Assessment Report the creation of new full size 3G pitches
should work towards providing one additional pitch in the Kidsgrove, Rural South and
UNNS&C analysis areas and a smaller sized floodlit 3G pitch in the Rural South Analysis
Area.

In the UNNS&C Analysis Area the key strategic site for football Roe Lane Playing Fields as
this accommodates demand from the largest club in Newcastle-under-Lyme, Newcastle
Town FC. The Club has long term security of tenure on the site through a long term lease
from the Council. It should be noted that before any new full size pitch provision is created in
the area it is recommended that the pitch at The Gordon Banks Sports Centre is refurbished
and put on the FA register.

In comparison the best location for a full size 3G pitch in the Kidsgrove Analysis Area is
undetermined. A potential option would be Birchenwood Pavilion to accompany grass football
pitches and multiple teams already utilising the site. This being said the feasibility of the
creation of any 3G provision within the Analysis Area would need to be fully explored as part
of the PPS Stage E review.

Potential options for a small size 3G provision in the Rural South Analysis Area is limited due
to its geographical size, however, due to the increase in demand from City of Stoke FC there
is scope to create such provision at North Staffs Sports Club. Alternatively, if there is creation
of any new sporting provision within Loggerheads Parish Council there is possibility to create
a small size 3G pitch in situ. Similarly, the feasibility of the creation of any 3G provision within
the Rural South Analysis Area would need to be fully explored as part of the PPS Stage E
review.

Page 60

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 24



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

If additional 3G provision is created in the Authority potential future overplay on grass pitches
on mini and youth grass pitches could be alleviated. This would require any new provision to
meet the correct specifications (FA certification) in order to accommodate competitive mini
and youth teams for competitive fixtures. In the interim, as suggested above, it is
recommended that the pitch at The Gordon Banks Sports Centre is refurbished and put on
the FA register in order to alleviate current and future overplay, particularly on youth and mini
pitches.

World Rugby compliant 3G pitches

World Rugby has produced a ‘performance specification for artificial grass pitches for rugby’,
more commonly known as ‘Regulation 22’. This contains the necessary technical detail to
produce pitch systems appropriate for rugby union.

There is currently one World Rugby compliant 3G pitch in Newcastle-under-Lyme that is
located at Keele University Sports Centre. This is reportedly being used to capacity midweek
meaning there is no availability for either Newcastle RUFC or Linley & Kidsgrove RUFC to
access it for training demand. It should be stated that Keele University RFC do access the
3G pitch for training demand. This is not an issue as neither Newcastle RUFC nor Linley &
Kidsgrove RUFC reports an immediate aspiration to access 3G provision for training.

Recommendations

4 Protect current stock of 3G pitches.

< Create two additional full size 3G pitches to alleviate all current shortfalls with one each in
the Kidsgrove and UNNS&C analysis areas.

< Look to create a further small size 3G pitch to address future shortfalls in the Rural South
Analysis Area

< Ensure that any new 3G pitches have community use agreements in place.

< Ensure all current and future providers have in place a sinking fund to ensure long-term
sustainability.

< Ensure that all new 3G pitches are constructed to meet FA/ World Rugby recommended
dimensions and quality performance standards.

< Ensure the pitch at The Gordon Banks Sports Centre is refurbished and put on the FA
register with regular relevant testing.

< Encourage more match play demand to transfer to 3G pitches and ensure that pitches
remain suitable to accommodate such demand through appropriate certification when it is
required.

< Ensure that any new 3G pitches are priced competitively against the cost of hiring a grass
pitches and are aimed at local grassroots clubs.

Page 61

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 25



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

4.3 Cricket pitches

Assessment report summary

4

In summary, there is insufficient supply of cricket provision to cater for current
senior demand across Newcastle-under-Lyme, whereas there is an overall spare
capacity for junior demand.

When factoring in future demand, a shortfall for junior cricket becomes evident with
the shortfall for senior cricket worsening.

There are 15 grass wicket squares in Newcastle-under-Lyme located across 14 sites. All
of the squares are available for community use.

There are previously unused cricket squares located at Keele University Sports Centre
and North Staffs Sports Club. There is also a lapsed square at the previous home of
Onneley Cricket Club.

In Newcastle-under-Lyme, there are four NTPs that accompany grass wicket squares in
addition to five standalone NTPs.

All clubs apart from Keele University CC have secure tenure at their designated home site.
Audley CC and Porthill Park CC both aspire to formalise tenure at their secondary grounds,
which are Hales Cricket Club and Scot Hay Cricket Club respectively.

The non-technical assessment of grass wicket squares in the Borough found the majority
(12 or 75%) to be good quality with the remaining three being standard quality.

The audit of ancillary facilities determines that all but two sites currently accessed for
affiliated cricket in Newcastle-under-Lyme are accompanied by either good or standard
guality changing rooms. Poor quality facilities are at Hales Cricket Club and Scot Hay
Cricket Club.

There are 12 clubs competing in Newcastle-under-Lyme generating 101 teams. As a
breakdown, this equates to 40 senior men’s, one senior women’s and 58 junior boys’ and
two junior girls’ teams.

Newcastle & Hartshill CC currently exports its third and fourth Saturday teams into the
neighbouring authority of Stafford.

Although not technically classified as exported demand, Audley CC reports issues
accessing its secondary venue Hales Cricket Club.

Of clubs that responded to consultation, total future growth totals three senior men’s, two
senior women’s and 13 junior teams.

In the Study Area, Audley, Betley, Kidsgrove, Leycett, Onneley and Silverdale cricket clubs
all run All Stars Cricket centres in 2019.

There is a total of seven squares that can accommodate at least one additional junior team
during the week. There is ho spare capacity to accommodate additional senior demand at
senior peak time.

There are three sites in Newcastle-under-Lyme considered to be overplayed by a total of
20 match equivalent sessions per season.

Scenarios

Loss of unsecured sites

There are two cricket clubs which have unsecure tenure at sites which they access.

Table 4.9: Summary of unsecure cricket demand across Newcastle-under-Lyme

Site | Site name Analysis area Club name Amount of unsecure
ID demand?
47 | Scot Hay Cricket Club | Rural Central and Keele | Porthill Park CC 46
P ag?é/lﬁcz equivalent sessions

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 26



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site name Analysis area Club name Amount of unsecure
ID demand?®
106 | Hales Cricket Club Rural South Audley CC 17

If access to these sites was lost there will be a need to accommodate 63 match equivalent
sessions per season elsewhere in Newcastle-under-Lyme. This equates to 46 match
equivalent sessions per season in the Rural Central and Keele Analysis Area and 17 match
equivalent sessions in the Rural South Analysis Area.

There is no capacity to accommodate additional demand at senior peak time across the
Borough. Therefore, there would be a need to create new provision in each of the two analysis
areas if these clubs were to lose access to their existing sites. Any new provision created
would also need to meet ECB ball strike regulations.

Alternatively, an option would be to secure tenure for the above clubs at their current sites
through a long-term lease or licence agreement with the owners. Both clubs are known to
have aspirations to formalise long-term usage agreements at their respective second sites.
However, Audley CC reports issues accessing its secondary venue Hales Cricket Club. The
Club currently travels across the Borough approximately 30 minutes (16 miles) to access
Hales Cricket Club from Audley Cricket Club. It indicates the ground was the closest it could
find with spare capacity on a Saturday having examined surrounding provision including
education sites. The Club would prefer to create a secondary square closer to its home venue.
To meet current demand, this site would need to accommodate at least five grass wickets.

Alleviating overplay

As seen in the table below, a total of three sites are overplayed by 20 match equivalent
sessions per season across the Borough and have no capacity to accommodate additional
play. This equates to 14 match equivalent sessions of overplay per season in Rural Central
and Keele Analysis Area and six match equivalent sessions of overplay per season in
UNNS&C Analysis Area.

Table 4.10: Summary of overplay on grass cricket squares across Newcastle-under-Lyme

Site | Site name Analysis area Number Overplay
ID of (matches per
squares season
37 | Newcastle and Hartshill Cricket Club | UNNS&C 1
47 | Scot Hay Cricket Club Rural Central and Keele 1
77 | Porthill Park Cricket Club UNNS&C 1
Total 3

As a guide, those sites which display overplay of less than 10 matches per season (Newcastle
and Hartshill Cricket Club and Porthill Park Cricket Club) are generally able to sustain this with
appropriate and rigorous maintenance.

For Porthill Park CC, one solution could be to consider installing non-turf wickets to
accompany the grass wickets. Please note that inclusion of a non-turf wicket for the
management of fixtures would alleviate overplay issues, however this would be subject to
league rules and minimum pitch specifications (the overall ground size is 115m which can
accommodate a nine strip square (see ECB S9 pitch layout). Where possible the addition of
a non-turf wicket could be considered for junior cricket (up to U15s) and potentially lower
league cricket which will take the burden off remaining wickets due to intensification of use.

Page 63

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 27



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

All Stars - Future demand

In partnership with the ECB and Chance to Shine cricket clubs in the Study Area can register
to become an ECB All Stars Cricket Centre. Once registered, a club can deliver the
programme which aims to introduce cricket to children aged from five to eight. Subsequently,
this may lead to increased interest and demand for junior cricket at clubs.

Audley, Betley, Kidsgrove, Leycett, Onneley and Silverdale cricket clubs all ran All Stars
Cricket centres in 2019 and are subsequently likely to experience significant interest and
growth in junior participation in the 2020 season.

The table below examines the current supply and demand analysis of cricket provision across
Newcastle-under-Lyme. This is then compared to if each of the above clubs had future growth
of one additional junior team generated from All Stars. These additional teams have been
accredited four match equivalent sessions which is the average for a junior team in the Study
Area.

If this increase were to occur, projected future shortfalls in four of the five analysis areas would
be further exacerbated, whilst the Rural South Analysis area would remain at capacity. After
considering potential demand generated from All Stars Cricket, there is expected to be a future
shortfall of 96 match sessions per season across the Borough.

Table 4.11: Supply and demand analysis of cricket across the Authority with anticipated All
Stars Cricket demand

Sub area Actual spare capacity Demand (match sessions)
(sessions per season)| Qverplay | Current | Future | Total
total demand
Kidsgrove -
Rural Central and Keele -
Rural North -
Rural South -
UNNS&C -
Total -
Sub area Actual spare capacity Demand (match sessions)
(sessions per season)| Qverplay | Current | Future | Total
total demand

With anticipated All Stars Demand
Kidsgrove -
Rural Central and Keele -
Rural North -
Rural South -
UNNS&C -

Total -

Dynamos cricket future growth

A key development area for the ECB in delivering on the outcomes of ‘Inspiring Generations’
will be the Dynamos Cricket programme for 8-11 year olds launching in 2020. This builds on
the significant growth of the All Stars Cricket programme for 5-8 year olds established in 2017
and will develop the pathway to retain juniors progressing from All Stars Cricket into Dynamos
Cricket.

Page 64

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 28



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Where All Stars Cricket seeks to engage children in cricket activity and learning the skills,
Dynamos Cricket seeks to engage children in learning how to play, introducing a modified soft
ball format as competitive progression with a view to eventual transition through to hardball
cricket. The programme will be strongly linked to The Hundred, a new short format competition
also launching in 2020.

Based on the success of All Stars cricket in Newcastle-under-Lyme it is also thought likely that
the launch of Dynamos will grow participation at the these ages and as such will have some
impact on the capacity of cricket provision in the Area in a similar way to All Stars.

Women’s and girls’ cricket - future demand

Women’s and girls’ cricket is a national priority and there is a target to establish two girls’ and
one women’s team in every local authority over the next five years. 8-10% of the Whole Sport
Plan funding is focused around women and girls and talent ID. Currently, Porthill Park CC is
the only community club with dedicated women and girls’ teams, with one senior women’s
team and two junior girls’ teams. The Club acts as a focus for women’s and girls’ cricket
development in the area.

Audley CC, Newcastle & Hartshill CC and Whitmore CC have all stated that they are starting
women and girls’ softball sessions for the start of the 2020 season.

Similar to the All Stars future demand, the table below examines if each of the abovementioned
clubs had future growth of one additional women’s team generated. These additional teams
have been accredited five match equivalent sessions which is the average for a women’s team
in the Study Area.

Table 4.12: Supply and demand analysis of cricket across the Authority with anticipated
women’s and girls’ demand

Sub area Actual spare capacity Demand (match sessions)
(sessions per season) |Qverplay | Current | Future | Total
total demand
Kidsgrove -
Rural Central and Keele -
Rural North -
Rural South -
UNNS&C -
Total -
Sub area Actual spare capacity Demand (match sessions)
(sessions per season) | Overplay| Current | Future | Total
total demand

With anticipated Women’s and Girls increase
Kidsgrove -
Rural Central and Keele -
Rural North -
Rural South -
UNNS&C -
Total -

As seen in the table above, after considering the potential impact of growth from women and
girls’ cricket in the Borough, all five analysis areas are expected to become overplayed, with
an overall shortfall of 87 match sessions per season.
Page 65

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 29



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

It should be noted the scenarios of growth from All Stars and Women'’s and Girls above do not
take into consideration individual sites. If sites do not have capacity to accommodate additional
demand due to poor quality or overplay it is recommended that no further play takes place
until these issues are resolved. Therefore, an increase in provision is likely to be required to
accommodate future demand in the Borough, whether this be through the creation of more
grass cricket squares in the Authority or the installation of NTPs.

Recommendations

4
4

Protect all cricket squares in current use.

Work with clubs and grounds staff to review quality issues on squares to ensure
appropriate quality is achieved at sites assessed as standard and sustained at sites
assessed as good.

Look to sustain minimal levels of overplay at Newcastle and Hartshill Cricket Club and
Porthill Park Cricket Club through dedicated levels of enhanced maintenance and monitor
future levels of demand.

Examine the feasibility of installing an NTP at Scot Hay Cricket Club in order to alleviate
overplay.

Explore options to accommodate expressed future demand through the provision of
additional grass cricket squares to the installation of NTPs, with preferences towards the
latter.

Support Audley CC to provide a second square closer to its existing home venue.
Ensure security of tenure for all clubs with lease arrangements in place by ensuring
agreements have over 25 years remaining.

Support pavilion developments where it is required.

Explore options to provide large clubs without practice nets with suitable provision at their
home ground/s.

Any new cricket provision created should have a ball strike assessment carried out as a
matter of due course. Where new housing or building developments are under
consideration within proximity to existing facilities a ball strike risk assessment should be
undertaken. In addition, any clubs which could be potentially affected by this issue should
be signposted to the ECB.

Deliver the All Stars Cricket and women & girls programmes and seek to increase junior
and female participation as a result.

Work to increase women and girls’ participation in line with the emerging Inspiring
Generations ECB Strategy and protect existing provision so that women and girls have a
suitable place to practise and play.

4.4 Rugby union - grass pitches

Assessment report summary

4

Overall, there is a current shortfall of 4.5 match equivalent sessions per week on
senior rugby union pitches to meet current demand. This is further exacerbated
when considering future demand, resulting in a shortfall of six match equivalent
sessions.

Within Newcastle-under-Lyme there are 11 senior pitches, two junior pitches and two mini
pitches provided, with all but four pitches being available for community use.

Since the previous PPS in 2014 there are two sites which has stopped maintaining rugby
union provision. These are North Staffs Sports Club and Madeley High School.

Both Newcastle (Staffs) RUFC and Linley & Kidsgrove RUFC either rent or lease from the
Council are each considered to have secure tenure.

Of the community available pitches in Newcastle-under-Lyme, four are assessed as good
guality and seven as poor quality.

Page 66

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 30



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

<« The quality of ancillary facilities at Newcastle RUFC is good with Newcastle (Staffs) RUFC
investing into the provision in order to sustain its condition. In comparison Linley &
Kidsgrove RUFC has access to poor quality changing rooms at Bathpool Country Park.

< There are two community rugby union clubs based in Newcastle-under-Lyme, in addition
to demand generated from Keele University, providing a total of 20 teams.

< Newcastle (Staffs) RUFC aspires to install floodlights on an unused grassed area to utilise
for training in order to alleviate demand off its main pitch.

< Newcastle (Staffs) RUFC is the only Club through consultation to indicate aspirations to
increase the number of teams it fields.

4 There are five sites which display potential spare capacity to accommodate additional
play in Newcastle-under-Lyme totalling 16.5 match equivalent sessions; however, in
practice, there is no actual spare capacity for an increase in senior demand.

< All 4.5 match equivalent sessions of overplay is located in the UNNS&C Analysis Area at
just one site which is Newcastle RUFC.

Scenarios
Improving pitch quality at secure sites

Newcastle RUFC, Bathpool Country Park and Clough Hall Park are the only rugby union sites
in the Borough that are considered to have secure tenure. Newcastle RUFC is overplayed by
a total of 4.5 match equivalent sessions per week whilst spare capacity at Bathpool Country
Park and Clough Hall Park is discounted due to poor pitch quality.

As shown in the table overleaf, improving maintenance from poor (M0) to standard (M1) or
standard (M1) to good (M2) at sites with secure tenure would create additional capacity of 2.5
match equivalent sessions per week, as well as alleviating overplay equating to 0.5 match
equivalent sessions per week.

Page 67

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 31



99 abed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Table 4.13: Increasing maintenance by one increment

Site | Site name Analysis No. of Pitch Floodlit? Current Current Improved New capacity
ID Area pitches type quality capacity quality rating®
rating*
38 | Newcastle RUFC UNNS&C 1 Senior Yes Good
(M2/D1) M2/D1
38 | Newcastle RUFC UNNS&C 1 Senior No Poor Standard
(M0/D1) (M1/D1)
38 | Newcastle RUFC UNNS&C 2 Junior No Poor Standard
(M0/D1) (M1/D1)
83 | Bathpool Country Park Kidsgrove 1 Mini No Poor Standard
(M0/D1) (M1/D1)
83 | Bathpool Country Park Kidsgrove 1 Senior No Poor
(M0/D1) (M1/D1)
101 | Clough Hall Park Kidsgrove 1 Senior No Poor Standard
(M0/D1) (M1/D1)

As shown above, overplay on the poor senior quality pitch at Newcastle RUFC would be alleviated whilst pitches played to capacity at Newcastle
RUFC and Bathpool Country Park would now provide capacity of one and 0.5 match equivalent sessions per week respectively. Actual spare
capacity at Bathpool Country Park and Clough Hall Park would no longer be discounted due to poor quality.

Overplay of the main pitch at Newcastle RUFC would not be affected as the pitch is already maintained to the highest level.

Installing or improving drainage systems at secure sites would also improve pitch quality and increase the carrying capacity of pitches.

As shown in the table overleaf, improving drainage systems from (D1) to good (D2) at sites with secure tenure would create additional capacity
of 1.25 match equivalent sessions per week, as well as reducing overplay by 0.5 match equivalent sessions per week.

Pitch improvements via gqualitative enhancements to drainage, in addition to the increase of maintenance on pitches can be seen overleaf.

4 Match equivalent sessions include both training and competitive demand
5 Match equivalent sessions

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 32



69 abed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Table 4.14: Increasing drainage and maintenance by one increment (where applicable)

Site | Site name Analysis No. of Pitch Floodlit? Current Current Improved New capacity
ID Area pitches type quality capacity quality rating”’
rating®
38 | Newcastle RUFC UNNS&C 1 Senior Yes Good
(M2/D1) M2/D2
38 | Newcastle RUFC UNNS&C 1 Senior No Poor
(M0/D1) (M1/D2)
38 | Newcastle RUFC UNNS&C 2 Junior No Poor Standard
(M0/D1) (M1/D2)
83 | Bathpool Country Park Kidsgrove 1 Mini No Poor Standard
(M0/D1) (M1/D2)
83 | Bathpool Country Park Kidsgrove 1 Senior No Poor
(M0/D1) (M1/D2)
101 | Clough Hall Park Kidsgrove 1 Senior No Poor Standard
(M0/D1) (M1/D2)

As shown above, total overplay at Newcastle RUFC would fall from 4.5 to f3.75 match equivalent sessions per week whilst the junior pitches on
site would have spare capacity equating to two match equivalent sessions per week. Actual spare capacity at Bathpool Country Park and Clough
Hall Park would no longer be discounted due to poor quality, generating an additional five match equivalent sessions of capacity per week.

6 Match equivalent sessions include both training and competitive demand
7 Match equivalent sessions

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 33



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

This shows that focus should be placed on improving maintenance of secure pitches alone is
sufficient to alleviate the majority of capacity issues across the Borough, whilst improving
drainage is likely to have minimal effect on capacity.

After accounting for pitch maintenance improvements, the only persisting issue regarding
overplay is the main pitch at Newcastle RUFC where overplay would remain at four match
equivalent sessions per week. The Club has indicated ambition to take ownership of an
unused patch of grass located adjacent to its first team pitch in order to install floodlights on
the land to create a training area. If achievable, it would be able to transfer training demand
off its main pitch to the new area in order to alleviate demand off its main pitch.

Currently, the Club’s training demand equates to five match equivalent sessions per week.
Therefore, the provision of a training area for the Club would alleviate overplay of the main
pitch on site.

Recommendations

< Existing quantity of rugby union pitches to be protected or be fully mitigated to meet
National Planning Policy.

<« Improve pitch quality at secure sites to alleviate overplay and create actual spare
capacity.

4 Support Newcastle RUFC in its ambition to create a training area adjacent to its first team
pitch.

< Work with Linley & Kidsgrove to improve poor quality changing provision at Bathpool
County Park.

4 Secure both clubs to long term agreements for respective home venues, providing each
with security of tenure.

< Continue to develop strong relationships between rugby clubs and schools through
curricular and extracurricular programmes in order to increase levels of mini and junior
participation.

4.5 Hockey pitches (sand/water-based AGPs)

Assessment report summary

4 Thereis a need for two full size hockey suitable AGPs to accommodate all current
demand. When accounting for the future demand of one additional senior team, the
requirement remains the same.

< Inorder to adequately meet demand, thereis a need to improve one of the two poor
guality pitches as a priority to ensure continued use for competitive hockey.

4 There are three full size hockey suitable AGPs in Newcastle-under-Lyme. The majority of
provision (66%) is located in the UNNS&C Analysis Area, whereas the remaining pitch is
in the Rural Centre and Keele Analysis Area.

< In addition, there are two smaller sized sand-based AGPs at Kidsgrove Secondary and
The King’s Church of England School.

< All hockey suitable AGPs in Newcastle-under-Lyme are managed within the education
sector with one pitch each at Keele University, Newcastle-under-Lyme School and
Clayton Hall Academy.

< The hockey suitable pitch at Newcastle-under-Lyme School is good quality having been
resurfaced in 2018. In contrast, the AGPs at Keele University Sports Centre and Clayton
Hall Academy are both poor quality.

< All three full size hockey suitable AGPs are located at educational sites and as a result
suffer from reduced hours of community access.

Page 70
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 34



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

< North Stafford HC and Newcastle-under-Lyme School have ambitions to create a second
full size hockey suitable AGP at the School.

< Market Drayton HC currently imports three men’s teams from neighbouring authority
Shropshire to the hockey suitable AGP at Keele University Sports Centre.

<« North Stafford HC exports partial senior competitive demand to The Excel Academy
(Stoke-on-Trent) when there is fixture congestion on Saturdays.

Scenarios
Hockey Suitable AGP at Keele University Sports Centre

As discussed in the preceding Assessment Report, the hockey suitable AGP at Keele
University Sports Centre is poor quality having not been resurfaced since 2007, this means it
is substantially over its 10 year recommended lifespan.

It is currently being used by three teams from Market Drayton HC (imported from Shropshire)
on a Saturday (senior competitive peak time) in addition Keele University HC for training
midweek and one competitive team at peak time.

However, the latter club reports it frequently is forced to export its demand out of Newcastle-
under-Lyme to the pitch at Crewe Vagrants Sports Club in Cheshire East due to its poor
quality.

If the pitch at Keele University Sports Centre deteriorates to such as level where it cannot be
used this demand would need to find alternative venue. The only remaining suitable full size
hockey suitable provision within Newcastle-under-Lyme were this demand could be relocated;
Clayton Hall Academy or Newcastle-under-Lyme School.

The former site is also poor quality having not been refurbished since 2009, therefore, it is
recommended no further demand be placed on this pitch until quality is improved. In
comparison, the pitch at Newcastle-under-Lyme School is at capacity at peak time and cannot
accommodate any additional demand.

As a result, if the hockey suitable AGP is lost at Keele University Sports Centre the demand
would either be forced to relocate out of the Borough or dissipate.

Given most of the demand at peak time is imported (Market Drayton HC) it is likely this would
return back to Shropshire. However, there is limited available pitch options for Market Drayton
HC to access in its own Authority, this issue has led the club to import its demand into
Newcastle-under-Lyme. Consequently, if the pitch at Keele University Sports Centre became
unusable it is possible Market Drayton HC would fold if it could not find an alternative venue.

In comparison, Keele University HC already exports its competitive demand to Cheshire East.
Hence it is likely this will remain the same if it could not use the one at the University.

Returning of imported demand

Market Drayton HC currently imports three teams at senior peak time (Saturday) to the hockey
suitable AGP at Keele University Sports Centre from the neighbouring authority of Shropshire.

If this demand were to return to its original Authority, it would create spare capacity for an
additional three teams in Newcastle-under-Lyme. This could potentially allow for the exported
demand from North Stafford HC from Stoke-on-Trent to return back into the Borough.
Alternatively, it could allow the Club to actualise its latent demand, which it currently cannot

Page 71
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 35



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

establish, as it does not have access to sufficient pitches at its home venue (Newcastle-under-
Lyme School).

It should be noted this is based on the hockey suitable AGP at Keele University Sports Centre
being refurbished as it is not recommended the pitch continue to be used whilst it is in poor
condition.

Furthermore, as mentioned, this would require there to be enough suitable provision available
for Market Drayton HC to return to Shropshire. Presently there is not enough provision for the
Club in its own Authority as all the pitches in the locality or Market Drayton Town are used to
capacity. As a result, the Club will likely remain exporting its demand into Newcastle-under-
Lyme unless a new community accessible pitch is created in north east of Shropshire.

Creation of a full size hockey suitable AGP

North Stafford HC and Newcastle-under-Lyme School have ambitions to create a second full
size hockey suitable AGP at the School. The main reason for this is to enable future growth
and return aforementioned exported demand from Stoke-on-Trent as the current pitch is
operating at capacity.

In addition, a second pitch would allow the Club to train more, run EH initiatives such as
Hockey Heroes as well as provide additional capacity at senior peak time (Saturday). It would
also allow the School to run more programmes and coaching sessions in addition to host
higher levels of competitions.

The School has an excellent relationship with the Club and has assisted in its growth with
students progressing from curricular/extracurricular into club demand. If required, the School
reports it will be able to give the Club security of tenure on the site in order for it to access
potential grant funding.

It should be noted that the creation of any new provision would need to take into consideration
other provision in the Borough. For example, if the pitch at Keele University Sports Centre is
refurbished and demand from Market Drayton HC returns back into Shropshire there would
be capacity created for North Staffs HC to grow, however, on the assumption this does not
take place there would still be other requirements needed.

For a new pitch to be viable its usage would need to be maximised. According to Sport
England’s Facilities Planning Model a full size AGP has an overall peak period of 34 hours,
this is 18 hours midweek (Monday to Thursday 17:00-21:00; Friday 17:00-19:00) and 16 hours
at the weekend (09:00-17:00).

Therefore, the School and Club would need to provide evidence that it could maximise
midweek usage through curricular and extracurricular activity, hockey club training, other sport
club training and EH initiatives such as Back to Hockey and Hockey Heroes.

The pitch would also need to be maximised at the weekend, again through curricular and
extracurricular activities or through additional senior teams from North Stafford HC. If the Club
by itself had to maximise Saturday usage it would require an additional five teams.

In addition, there would also need to be a comprehensive business plan created with evidence
on how the pitch would be funded, managed, operated and maintained with evidence of a
revenue stream and sinking fund.

Page 72
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 36



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Recommendations

<« Protect all existing full size sand-based AGPs for hockey use.

< As priority, seek to refurbish the pitch at Keele University Sports Centre in the near future
and ensure a sinking fund is in place for long-term sustainability.

4 There is also a need to refurbish the pitch at Clayton Hall Academy, however, this does
not currently accommodate hockey demand.

< Explore the potential of returning Market Drayton HC demand back into Shropshire, if
suitable provision can be obtained, in order to create additional capacity for hockey
growth in Newcastle-under-Lyme.

< Explore the feasibility of creating a second full size hockey suitable AGP at Newcastle-
under-Lyme School to better service both club, curricular and extracurricular demand.

< Ensure that future demand from new England Hockey initiative, Hockey Heroes (aimed at
growing participation for under 10s) can be accommodated.

< When the 3G pitch stock increases, encourage the transfer of football demand from the
sand-based AGPs in order to free up increased capacity for hockey activity.

4.6 Tennis courts
Assessment report summary

4 Thereis a sufficient supply of courts to accommodate club based demand.

4 Thereis also spare capacity existing on non-club courts, meaning the focus should
be on improving quality and encouraging further usage.

4 There are 64 tennis courts identified in Newcastle-under-Lyme across 15 sites, with 54
courts available for community use.

< Both the LTA and Basford TC report aspirations to develop dedicated indoor tennis
provision in Newcastle-under-Lyme. There is potential to establish indoor tennis provision
at Newcastle-under-Lyme School through a potential development of a sports hall through
Newcastle Town NC.

< Since the 2014 PPS there has been a reduction in courts at Chesterton Community
College, Madeley High School, Wolstanton High School, Keele University Sports Centre
and Chesterton Park.

4 There are disused courts at Knutton Recreation Centre and Westlands Sports Centre.

< Basford LTC reports holding the freehold on its four artificial courts. Comparatively the
Council owns at operates a total of 20 courts.

4 The majority of courts in Newcastle-under-Lyme have a macadam surface (78%).

4 Following a non-technical assessment, of the 54 community available courts, 18 were
assessed as good quality, 27 as standard quality and nine as poor quality.

<« Basford LTC is the only tennis club currently operating within Newcastle-under-Lyme. The
Club reports it has 103 senior and 58 junior members.

4 Since the previous PPS in 2014 Westlands TC, that were based at Westlands Sports
Centre, has folded. The LTA reports it is in contact with the Council to discuss potential
ways to re-establish demand on the site.

< Latent demand across the Authority is actually higher than current levels of active
participation.

Page 73

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 37



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Scenarios
Informal tennis

The LTA has developed a package of support for LA to grow the use of park tennis courts by
removing key barriers to participation. The three products are ClubSpark, Rally and Gate
Access and can be used individually or in combination. The products are used to provide a
remote booking and access system.

Instead of providing free access, some local authorities are now securing their courts as per
a membership scheme that allows members access through the use of a fob system following
payment of a small yearly fee. Not only does this deter unofficial use of courts but it also allows
official use to be tracked, thus providing data on how well and how often courts are being
accessed. In addition, it provides income generation that can go towards ongoing maintenance
of the courts.

The LTA has identified Birchenwood Pavilion, Clough Hall Park, Silverdale Park, Bradwell
Lodge, Westlands Sports Centre and Wolstanton Park as key sites across the Borough for the
development of informal tennis. In order to facilitate this demand, it is likely that floodlights
would have to be provided, in addition to court improvements and potential provision or
improvement of changing facilities.

Recommendations

< Retain and sustain quality of club courts for competitive play through implementation of
appropriate maintenance regimes.

4 Support Basford TC with its aspiration to resurface two of the courts on site in the next few
years.

4 Examine re-establishing demand at Westlands Sports Centre.

<« Explore the potential to establish indoor tennis provision at Newcastle-under-Lyme School
through a potential development of a sports hall through Newcastle Town NC.

< Improve quality of key local authority courts and accompanying ancillary provision, first
and foremost focusing on sites that best accommodate informal play.

< Explore implementation of ClubSpark, Rally and Gate Access schemes at appropriate
sites to enhance available provision for informal tennis.

4 Consider the feasibility of operating LTA programmes such as Tennis for Kids, Tennis for
Free and Great British Tennis Weekend in the Borough to attract new players to the sport.

4.7 Bowling greens
Assessment report summary

< All clubs are willing to accept new members. As such, it is considered that anyone
within Newcastle-under-Lyme that would like to start participating could so at the
clubs and greens already in existence. This means there is enough supply of
greens within the Authority.

< Any club aspiration to improve their ancillary offering as achieving this will likely
be the most beneficial action to bowls. Further to this, improving the quality of
existing bowling greens, which are not good quality, will likely improve the capacity
for provision to accommodate increase levels of demand.

4 There are 12 bowling greens in Newcastle-under-Lyme located across ten sites. This
includes two double greens sites at Westlands Sports Centre and Wolstanton Park with
the remaining eight sites accommodating one green each.

Page 74
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 38



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

4 Across the Borough there are five sites which have previously accommodate at least one
bowling green these are Bichenwood Pavilion, Bradwell Lodge, Clough Hall Park, Knutton
Recreation Centre and Silverdale Park.

< Exactly half of the 12 bowling greens in Newcastle-under-Lyme are owned and managed
by the Council. The remaining greens are either managed by their respective sports clubs,
privately or through a community organisation with no issue with access.

4 The majority of greens (Nine or 75%) are assessed as good quality with three greens
assessed as standard quality.

< Most (75%) greens in Newcastle-under-Lyme are not serviced by floodlighting.

< Across Newcastle-under-Lyme there are 228 participants playing bowls where known
through consultation.

4 This is an overall total future demand of 11 senior and five junior members.

Scenarios

As no clubs in Newcastle-under-Lyme indicate a requirement to access an additional green or
report that green quality has deteriorated, it is considered that the current provision for bowls
is sufficient to meet current and future demand in the Borough. Therefore, focus should be on
increasing participation and improving or maintaining the current stock of bowling greens in
the Authority.

Recommendations

< Retain existing quantity of greens.

< Improvements of standard quality greens to good quality through and enhanced
maintenance regime is required at Wolstanton Park and Wolstanton High Street Club

<« Assist clubs, where possible, with any future ancillary provision improvements

4 Support clubs with plans to increase membership so that growth can be maximised.

4.8 Golf courses
Assessment report summary

< It is considered that the current supply of facilities in Newcastle-under-Lyme can
meet current and future demand, with emphasis placed on ensuring sites are able
to retain current members and users as well as assisting them in capitalising on any
untapped demand and future demand.

<« If provision at Keele Driving Range were to be lost there would be a loss of
associated participation within Newcastle-under-Lyme.

4 There are three golf courses situated in the Borough, these are; Newcastle-under-Lyme
Golf Club, Onneley Golf Club and Wolstanton Golf Club.

< Allthree of the golf courses located within Newcastle-under-Lyme are privately owned and
operated and each provides 18 holes. In comparison Keele Driving Range is currently on
a short term lease to a private owner.

< All of these courses and the driving range are considered to be good quality, with a
dedicated maintenance regimes carried out at each facility.

< Onneley Golf Club reports it is in the process of redesigning holes two, three, four and five
in order to improve the overall provision on site as well as attract new members.

< In Newcastle-under-Lyme, all courses offer memberships and pay and play green fees.
That being said, most clubs in the area are primarily membership clubs.

< Demand is likely to be highest for Wolstanton Golf Club, with 81,962 potential users,
followed by Newcastle-under-Lyme Golf Club, which has 78,118 potential users. Demand
is lowest for Onneley Golf Club, which has 21,861 potential users.

< It should be noted that demand for Keele Driving Range is actually higher than that for
Onneley Golf Club with 54,071 potential users.

Page 75

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 39



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Scenarios

With three golf courses and one driving range (Keele Driving Range) across the Borough, it is
considered that the supply of golf facilities is sufficient to meet current and future levels of
demand. Therefore, focus should be on preserving the current stock of golf courses and clubs
in Newcastle-under-Lyme as well as exploring the feasibility of providing non-traditional golf
formats in the District to attract different profiles of golfing members to the game.

Keele Driving Range is the only Driving Range provision in Newcastle-under-Lyme and
accommodates demand from within the Authority, including Keele University, as well as
demand from surrounding local authorities such as Staffordshire, Cheshire and Shropshire.
It provides 26 floodlit covered bays over a 250 yard outfield.

If this facility were to be lost there would be a loss of associated participation in the Borough.
Therefore, it is recommended there would be a need to replace this provision if it were to be
repurposed.

It is proposed that the most suitable locations to relocate would be one of the golf courses
currently in the Authority; Newcastle-under-Lyme Golf Club, Onneley Golf Club or Wolstanton
Golf Club. This is on the basis that these sites would be best suited as they already
accommodate golfing demand and have the relevant infrastructure in situ to meet the
demand.

This being said, before any relocation takes place a dedicated and comprehensive feasibility
study should be undertaken.

Recommendations

< Retain all current golf courses.

4 Sustain course quality and seek improvements where necessary through
implementation of appropriate maintenance regimes.

4 Support clubs in membership retention and potential growth.

< Encourage clubs and providers to work more collaboratively in terms of creating
pathways for existing and new players.

< Ensure that if the provision at Keele Driving Range is lost it is re provided at another
suitable location such as one of the three golf courses in the Borough.

4.9 Netball courts
Assessment report summary

< In summary, there is enough outdoor netball provision in Newcastle-under-Lyme
to meet current demand therefore a priority should be placed on improving court
guality and ensuring courts remain.

4 Thereis a need to assist Newcastle Town NC in its aspirations to development a
purpose built indoor facility at Newcastle-under-Lyme School.

< In total, there are 28 outdoor macadam netball courts located across eight sites in
Newcastle-under-Lyme.

< All outdoor netball courts in Newcastle-under-Lyme have a macadam surface.

< In Newcastle-under-Lyme all sites, apart from Kidsgrove Secondary and Wolstanton
High School, are overmarked for tennis.

< In Newcastle-under-Lyme, there is one netball club (Newcastle Town NC) which
generates some outdoor demand for courts.

< In order to grow, and to better facilitate its current levels of demand, Newcastle Town TC
plans to create a purpose built indoor netball facility at Newcastle-under-Lyme School.

Page 76
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 40



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

4 There are Back 2 Netball, Walking Netball and Netball Now sessions held at Newcastle-
under-Lyme School, Michelin Sports Centre and Keele University Sports Centre,
respectively.

Scenarios

Improving court quality at education sites

England Netball aspires to form closer links with education sites across Staffordshire to ensure

that netball remains on the School curriculum. In order to facilitate this, it hopes to improve all

netball courts at education sites to at least standard quality.

Table 4.15: Netball courts at education sites in Newcastle-under-Lyme

Site | Site Analysis Available for | Floodlit? Number Quality
ID area community of courts
use?

17 | Clayton Hall UNNS&C Yes No 4 Standard
Academy

24 Keele University Rural Central Yes Yes 4 Good
Sports Centre and Keele

36 | Newcastle Academy | UNNS&C Yes No 2 | Poor |

39 | Newcastle-under- UNNS&C Yes No 3 Standard
Lyme School

39 | Newcastle-under- UNNS&C Yes No 3 Good
Lyme School

51 Sir Thomas Boughey | Rural North Yes No 1 -
High School

51 Sir Thomas Boughey | Rural North Yes No 2 Standard
High School

54 | St John Fisher UNNS&C No No 3 Standard
Catholic College

60 | Kidsgrove Secondary | Kidsgrove No No 4 Standard

63 | Wolstanton High UNNS&C No No 2
School

The table above reveals the court quality at education sites across Newcastle-under-Lyme. In
order to meet England Netball's aspiration, the courts at Newcastle Academy, Sir Thomas
Boughey High School and Wolstanton High School would require improvements.

Recommendations

4 Protect quantity of courts.

4 Assist Newcastle Town NC in its aspirations to development a purpose built indoor facility
at Newcastle-under-Lyme School.

4 Seek to improve poor quality courts quality through resurfacing or improved maintenance.

<« Look to continue and expand the use of courts for England Netball initiatives such as Back
to Netball and Walking Netball.

< Facilitate improved engagement between England Netball and schools.

Page 77
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 41



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

PART 5: STRATEGIC RECOMMENDATIONS

The strategic recommendations for the Strategy have been developed via the combination
of information gathered during consultation, site visits and analysis which culminated in the
production of an assessment report, as well as key drivers identified for the Strategy. They
reflect overarching and common areas to be addressed, which apply across playing pitch
facilities and may not be specific to just one sport.

AIM 1

To protect the existing supply of outdoor sport facilities where it is needed for meeting
current and future needs.

Recommendations:

a. Ensure, through the use of the PPS, that outdoor sport facilities are protected
through the implementation of local planning policy.

b. Secure tenure and access to sites for high quality, development minded clubs,
through a range of solutions and partnership agreements.

c. Maximise community use of education facilities where needed.

Recommendation (a) — Ensure, through the use of the PPS, that playing pitch facilities
are protected through the implementation of local planning policy.

The PPS shows that all existing playing pitch sites require protection or replacement and
therefore no provision can be deemed surplus to requirements because of shortfalls now and
in the future. Reflecting the outcomes of the PPS, local planning policy should echo this
situation.

When shortfalls are evident, a playing pitch facility can only be permanently lost when the
current picture changes to the extent that the site in question is no longer needed as a result
of no shortfalls existing, or unless replacement provision is provided and agreed upon by all
stakeholders.

NPPF paragraph 96 states that existing open space, sports and recreational buildings and
land, including playing fields, should not be built on unless:

< Anassessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space, buildings
or land to be surplus to requirements; or

4 The loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or
better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location; or

< The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the needs for which
clearly outweigh the loss.

The PPS should be used to help inform development management decisions that affect
existing or new playing pitch provision and accompanying ancillary facilities. All applications
are assessed by the Local Planning Authority on a case by case basis taking into account
site specific factors. In addition, Sport England is a statutory consultee on planning
applications that affect or prejudice the use of playing field used within the last five years and
will use the PPS to help assess that planning application against its Playing Fields Policy.

Page 78

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 42



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Policy Exception E1:

‘A carefully quantified and documented assessment of current and future needs has
demonstrated to the satisfaction of Sport England that there is an excess of playing field
provision in the catchment, and the site has no special significance to the interests of sport’.

Where the PPS cannot demonstrate that the site, or part of a site, is clearly surplus to
requirements then replacement of the site, or part of a site, will be required to comply with
the remaining Sport England policy exceptions.

Policy Exception E2

‘The proposed development is for ancillary facilities supporting the principal use of the site
as a playing field and does not affect the quantity and quality of playing pitches or otherwise
adversely affect their use’.

Policy Exception E3

The proposed development affects only land incapable of forming part of a playing pitch and
does not:

< Reduce the size of any playing pitch;

< Result in the inability to use any playing pitch (including the maintenance of adequate
safety margins and run-off areas);

< Reduce the sporting capacity of the playing field to accommodate playing pitches or the
capability to rotate or reposition playing pitches to maintain quality;

< Result in the loss of other sporting provision or ancillary facilities on the site;

<« Prejudice the use of any remaining areas of playing field on the site’.

Policy Exception E4:

‘The playing field or fields to be lost as a result of the proposed development would be
replaced, prior to the commencement of development, by a new playing field site or sites:

< of equivalent or better quality and

< of equivalent or greater quantity;

<« in a suitable location and,;

4 subject to equivalent or better management arrangements.

Policy Exception E5

‘The proposed development is for an indoor or outdoor facility for sport, the provision of which
would be of sufficient benefit to the development of sport as to outweigh the detriment caused
by the loss, or prejudice of use, of the area of playing field’.

Lapsed and disused sites should also be protected from development or replaced in
accordance with Sport England’s policy exceptions as they currently provide a solution to
reducing identified shortfalls. Any disused/lapsed playing fields are included within the Action
Plan together with a recommendation in relation to bringing the site back into use or to
mitigate the loss on a replacement site to address the shortfalls identified.

It may be appropriate to consider rationalisation of certain low value playing pitch sites (i.e.
one/two pitch sites with no changing provision) to generate investment in creating bigger and
better venues (hub sites). It is vital, however, that there is no net loss of facilities and that
replacement provision is in place and available for use prior to existing provision being lost.

Page 79

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 43



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Recommendation (b) — Secure tenure and access to sites through arange of solutions
and partnership agreements.

A number of education sites are being used in the Borough for competitive play, predominately
for football. The following schools are already used for community use at varying levels but
have no secure community usage:

Chesterton Community Sports College
Churchfields Primary School (Playing Fields)
Clayton Hall Academy

Keele University Sports Centre

Madeley High School

Newcastle Academy Grass Pitches

The Gordon Banks Sports Centre

A A A A A A A

Not having fully formalised usage presents a risk for those clubs using these sites as
community use could technically be terminated at any time. Securing community use at such
as will help to create additional pitch capacity and could help to address deficiencies as
demonstrated within the Football Scenarios.

Further partnership working with NGBs should be carried out to encourage schools to put in
place Community Use Agreement (CUA) including access to changing provision where
required.

There are also some clubs playing on private sites in the Borough which are not considered
to have secure tenure. For example,

< Holditch Miners Club — Hamptons Metals FC, Holditch United FC and Men Unite

NGBs, Sport England and other appropriate bodies such as Sport Across Staffordshire can
often help to negotiate and engage with providers where the local authority may not have
direct influence. This is particularly the case at sites that have received funding from these
bodies or are going to receive funding in the future as community access can be a condition
of the agreement.

In the context of the Government’s 2010 Spending Review, which announced significant public
spending cuts, it is increasingly important for the Council to work with voluntary sector
organisations to enable them to take greater levels of ownership and support the wider
development and maintenance of facilities. To facilitate this, where practical, the Council
should support and enable clubs to generate sufficient funds, providing this is to the benefit of
sport.

The Council should explore opportunities to grant clubs security of tenure through lease
agreements (minimum 25 years as recommended by Sport England and NGBs). The focus
should be on clubs at poor quality local authority sites where there is opportunity to improve
pitch and / or ancillary facilities. Security of tenure would encourage clubs to take more care
of the site through responsible play. It would motivate them to look at ways of enhancing their
facilities by using external funding mechanisms that the local authority may not be able to
access. Clubs with lease arrangements already in place with other owners should review
existing agreements when the term dips below 25 years.

Each club interested in leasing a site should be required to meet service and/or strategic
recommendations. An additional set of criteria should also be considered, which takes into
account club quality, aligned to its long-term development objectives and sustainability, as
seen in the table below.

Page 80

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 44



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Table 5.1: Recommended criteria for lease of sport sites to clubs/organisations

Club Site

Clubs should have NGB accreditation award. Sites should be those identified as ‘Local Sites’
Clubs commit to meeting demonstrable local (recommendation d) for new clubs (i.e. not
demand and show pro-active commitment to those with a Borough-wide significance) but
developing school-club links. that offer development potential.

Clubs are sustainable, both in a financial sense | For established clubs which have proven
and via their internal management structures in | success in terms of self-management ‘Key

relation to recruitment and retention policy for Centres’ are also appropriate.

both players and volunteers. Sites should acquire capital investment to
Ideally, clubs should have already identified (and | improve or be leased with the intention that
received an agreement in principle) any match investment can be sourced to contribute
funding required for initial capital investment towards improvement of the site.

identified.

Clubs have processes in place to ensure
capacity to maintain sites to the existing, or
better, standards.

Local sports clubs should be supported by partners including the Council and NGBs to
achieve sustainability across a range of areas including management, membership, funding,
facilities, volunteers and partnership work. All clubs could be encouraged to look at different
management models such as registering as Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC)2.
They should also be encouraged to work with partners locally — such as volunteer support
agencies or local businesses.

The Council could establish core outcomes to derive from clubs taking on a lease
arrangement to ensure that the most appropriate are assigned sites. Outcomes may, for
example, include:

Increasing participation.

Supporting the development of coaches and volunteers.

Commitment to quality standards.

Improvements (where required) to facilities, or at minimum retaining existing standards.

A A A A

In addition, clubs should be made fully aware of the associated responsibilities/liabilities
when considering leases of multi-use public playing fields. It is important in these instances
that the site, to some degree, remains available for other purposes or for other users.

For clubs with lease arrangements already in place, these should be reviewed when fewer
than 25 years remain to improve security of tenure and aid the attraction of funding; clubs
with fewer than 25 years remaining on a lease agreement are unlikely to be eligible for
external funding.

Recommendation (c) - Maximise community use of education facilities where needed

To maximise community use, development of a more coherent, structured relationship with
schools is recommended. The ability to access good facilities within the local community is
vital to any sports organisation, yet many clubs struggle to find good quality places to play
and train. A key issue in Newcastle-under-Lyme is a lack of access to high quality provision
located at its several private educational establishments.

A large number of sporting facilities are located on education sites and making these available
to sports clubs can offer significant benefits to both the schools and local clubs. It is, however,

8 http://www.cascinfo.co.uk/cascbenefits page 81
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 45



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

common for school stock not to be fully maximised for community use, even on established
community use sites.

In some instances, outdoors sports facilities are unavailable for community use due to poor
guality and therefore remedial works will be required before it can be established. The low
carrying capacity of these pitches sometimes leads to them being played to capacity or
overplayed simply due to curricular and extra-curricular use, meaning they cannot
accommodate any additional use by the community.

Although there is a growing number of academies over which the Council has little or no
control, it is still important to understand the significance of such sites and attempt to work with
the schools where there are opportunities for community use. In addition, the relevant NGB
has a role to play in supporting the Council to deliver the strategy and communicating with
schools where necessary to address shortfalls in provision, particularly for football pitches.

As detailed earlier, NGBs and Sport England can often help to negotiate and engage with
schools where the local authority may have limited direct influence. This is particularly the
case at sites that have received funding from the relevant bodies or are going to receive
funding in the future as community access can be a condition of the funding agreement.

Page 82

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 46



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

management of sites.

Recommendations:
d. Maintain quality and seek improvements where necessary

e. Adopt atiered approach (hierarchy of provision) to the management and
improvement of sites.

f.  Work in partnership with stakeholders to secure funding

AlM 2
l To enhance outdoor sport facilities and ancillary facilities through improving quality and
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

g. Secure developer contributions

Recommendation (d) — Improve quality

There are a number of ways in which it is possible to improve quality, including, for example,
addressing overplay and improving maintenance. Given that the majority of councils’ face
reducing budgets it is currently advisable to look at improving key sites as a priority (e.g. the
largest sites that are the most overplayed or the poorest). The action plan within this document
provides a starting point for this, identifying key sites, poor quality site and/or sites that are
overplayed.

With such pressures on budgets, any wide-ranging direct investment into pitch quality is
challenging and other options for improvements should be considered. This could be via asset
transfer as highlighted in Objective 1, with clubs taking on maintenance, whilst other options
may include equipment banks and the pooling of resources for maintenance.

Addressing quality issues

Quiality across Newcastle-under-Lyme is variable but generally most pitches are assessed as
poor or standard quality. Where facilities are assessed as standard or poor quality and/or
overplayed, maintenance regimes should be reviewed and, where possible, improved to
ensure that what is being done is of an appropriate standard to sustain/improve pitch quality.
Ensuring continuance of existing maintenance of good quality sites is also essential.

It is also important to note the impact the weather has on quality. The worse the weather, the
poorer facilities tend to become, especially if no drainage systems are in place or if existing
drainage systems are inadequate. This also means that quality can vary, year on year,
dependent upon the weather and levels of rainfall.

Based upon an achievable target using existing quality scoring to provide a baseline, a
standard should be used to identify deficiencies and investment should be focused on those
sites which fail to meet the proposed quality standard (using the site audit database as
provided in electronic format). The strategic approach to outdoor sports facilities achieving
these standards should be to enhance quality and therefore the planning system should seek
to protect them.

Page 83

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 47



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

For the purposes of quality assessments, outdoor sports facilities and ancillary facilities are
separately reported as being of ‘Good’, ‘Standard’ or ‘Poor’ quality. Some good quality sites
may have poor quality elements and vice versa (e.g. a good quality pitch may be serviced by
poor quality changing facilities).

Good quality refers to pitches that have, for example, good grass cover, an even surface, are
free from litter. For rugby, a good quality pitch is also pipe and/or slit drained. In terms of
ancillary facilities, good quality refers to access for disabled people, sufficient provision for
referees, juniors/women/girls and appropriate provision of showers, toilets and car parking.

Standard quality refers to pitches that have, for example, adequate grass cover, minimal signs
of wear and tear and goalposts may be secure but in need of minor repair. For rugby, drainage
is natural but adequate. In terms of ancillary facilities, standard quality refers to adequately
sized changing rooms, storage provision and provision of toilets.

Poor quality refers to provision with, for example, inadequate grass cover, uneven surfaces
and poor drainage. In terms of ancillary facilities, poor quality refers to inappropriate changing
rooms with no showers, no running water and/or old, dated interiors. If a poor quality site
receives little or no usage that is not to say that no improvement is needed, it may instead be
the case that it receives no demand because of its quality, thus an improvement in said quality
will attract demand to the site, potentially from overplayed standard or good quality sites.

Without appropriate, fit for purpose ancillary facilities, good quality pitches may be
underutilised. Changing facilities form the most essential part of this offer and therefore key
sites should be given priority for improvement.

In order to prioritise investment into key sites it is recommended that the Steering Group within
each local authority works up a list of criteria, relevant to the authority, to provide a steer on
future investment.

Addressing overplay

In order to improve the overall quality of the outdoor facility stock; it is necessary to ensure
that provision is not overplayed beyond recommended carrying capacity. This is determined
by assessing quality (via a hon-technical site assessment) and allocating a match limit to each
(daily for hockey, weekly for football and rugby union and seasonal for cricket).

The FA, the RFU, the ECB and EH all recommend a number of matches that pitches should
take based on quality, as seen in the table below. For other grass pitch sports, no guidelines
are set by the NGBs although it can be assumed that a similar trend should be followed.

Table 5.2: Capacity of pitches

Sport Pitch type No. of matches
Good quality Standard quality Poor quality
Football Adult pitches 3 per week 2 per week 1 per week
Youth pitches 4 per week 2 per week 1 per week
Mini pitches 6 per week 4 per week 2 per week
Rugby Natural Inadequate (DO) 2 per week 1.5 per week 0.5 per week
union Natural Adequate (D1) 3 per week 2 per week 1.5 per week
Pipe Drained (D2) 3.25 per week 2.5 per week 1.75 per week
Pipe and Slit Drained 3.5 per week 3 per week 2 per week
(D3)
Page 84

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 48



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Sport Pitch type No. of matches
Good quality Standard quality Poor quality
Cricket One grass wicket 5 per season 4 per season 0 per season
One synthetic wicket 60 per season
Hockey Full size AGP 4 per day 4 per day 4 per day

It is imperative to engage with clubs to ensure that sites are not played beyond their capacity.
Play should therefore be encouraged, where possible, to be transferred to alternative venues
that are not operating at capacity. This may include transferring play to 3G pitches or to sites
not currently available for community use but which may be in the future.

A cost-effective way to reduce unofficial use (and therefore overplay), particularly for football,
could be to remove goalposts in between match days, principally at open access, high traffic
sites that are managed by clubs. This will, however, require adequate, secured storage to be
provided.

For cricket, an increase in the usage of NTPs is key to alleviating overplay as this allows for
the transfer of junior demand from grass wickets. It also does not require any additional playing
pitch space as NTPs can be installed in situ to existing squares.

For rugby union, additional floodlighting can mitigate some of the overplay as it allows training
demand to be spread across a greater number of pitches or unmarked areas. If permanent
floodlighting is not possible, portable floodlighting is an alternative, as is the installation of a
World Rugby compliant 3G pitch.

Increasing maintenance

Standard or poor grass pitch quality may not just be a result of poor drainage. In some
instances, ensuring there is an appropriate maintenance for the level/standard of play can
help to improve quality and therefore increase pitch capacity. Each NGB can provide
assistance with reviewing pitch maintenance regimes.

The FA has the Pitch Improvement Programme (PIP) which has been developed in
partnership with Grounds Management Association (GMA) to develop a grass pitch
maintenance service that can be utilised by grassroots clubs with the aim of improving
knowledge, skills and therefore the quality of pitches. The key principles behind the service
are to provide clubs with advice/practical solutions in a range of areas, with the simple aim of
improving playing surfaces. The programme is designed to help clubs on sites that they
themselves manage and maintain but can also be used to advise council-maintained sites.

In addition, PIP also aims to focus on developing an improved maintenance programmes with
local authorities that can be utilised at local authority maintained sites.

For cricket and the ECB, the equivalent is the Grounds and Natural Turf Improvement
Programme, which is jointly funded by the ECB, FA, Football Foundation and the GMA. Its
aim is to raise the standards of sports surfaces as well as the understanding of sports turf
management practices among grassroots sports clubs across England Wales.

In relation to cricket specifically, maintaining high pitch quality is the most important aspect of
the sport. If the wicket is poor, it can affect the quality of the game and, in some instances,
become dangerous. The ECB recommends full technical assessments of wickets and pitches
available through a Performance Quality Standard Assessment (PQS). The PQS assesses a
cricket square to ascertain whether it meets the standards that are benchmarked by the GMA

Page 85

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 49



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Improving changing provision

There is a need to address changing provision at some sites in the Borough, these are
generally centred at either club or parish council managed sites.

Sites which predominantly accommodate adult and/or older junior age group sports should be
prioritised for improvements, whilst there is a trend for younger junior age groups (particularly
for football) not to require use of changing provision, with suitable male and female toilet
provision for players and spectators considered to be of greater importance. For example:

Birchenwood Pavilion
Chester Road Playing Fields
Manor Road Playing Fields
The Burntwood

Scot Hay Cricket Club

Hales Cricket Club

A A A A A A

Recommendation (e) — Adopt a tiered approach (hierarchy of provision) to the
management and improvement of sites

To allow for facility developments to be programmed on a phased basis the Council should
adopt a tiered approach to the management and improvement of outdoor sport sites and
associated facilities. Please refer to Part 6: Action Plan for the proposed hierarchy.

Recommendation (f) — Work in partnership with stakeholders to secure funding

Partners should ensure that appropriate funding secured for improved sports provision is
directed to areas of need, underpinned by a robust strategy for improvement in outdoor sport
provision and accompanying ancillary facilities.

To address community need, target priority areas and reduce provision duplication, a
coordinated approach to strategic investment is required. In delivering this recommendation,
the Council should maintain a regular dialogue with local partners through the PPS Steering
Group.

Although some investment in new provision will not be made by the Council directly, it is
important that the Steering Group directs and leads a co-ordinated approach to facility
development whether made at/by education sites, NGBs, sports clubs and the commercial
sector. This is to ensure that the extent to which it addresses community need is optimised
and duplication is avoided.

One of sport’s key contributions is its positive impact on public health. It is therefore important
to lever in investment from other sectors such as, for example, health and wellbeing. Sport
and physical activity can have a profound effect on peoples’ lives, and plays a crucial role in
improving community cohesion, educational attainment and self-confidence.

Please refer to Appendix Two for further funding information which includes detail in respect
of current opportunities, likely funding requirements and indicative project costs.

Page 86
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 50



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Recommendation (g) —Secure developer contributions

This strategy should inform policies and supplementary planning documents by setting out
the approach to securing sport and recreational facilities through new housing development,
which is especially pertinent to Newcastle-under-Lyme given the level of identified housing
growth within the Borough.

A development located within an accessible distance from a high-quality outdoor sport facility
does not necessarily negate need for further provision or improvement to existing provision
in the locality to accommodate additional demand arising from that development. The PPS
should be used to help determine the likely impact of a new development on demand, the
capacity of existing sites in the area, and whether there is a need for improvements to
increase capacity or new provision is required.

For playing pitches, the Council should use Sport England’s new Playing Pitch Demand
Calculator (see Part 7) as a tool to determine developer contributions linking to sites within
the locality. This uses team generation rates from the Assessment Report to determine how
many new teams will be generated from an increase in population, as per that derived from
hosing growth. This is then converted into pitch requirements for each sport alongside the
associated costs.

The guidance should be the basis for negotiation with developers to secure contributions to
include provision within the development and/or enhancement of appropriate playing fields
and subsequent maintenance on existing sites within the locality. Section 106 contributions
can also be used to improve the condition and maintenance regimes of pitches which, in turn,
will increase pitch capacity to accommodate more matches.

A number of planning policy objectives should be implemented to enable the above to be
delivered:

4 Most new developments which create net additional floor space of 100 square metres
or more or create a new dwelling.

< Planning consent should include appropriate conditions and/or be subject to specific
planning obligations. Where developer contributions are applicable, a Section 106/CIL
Agreement or equivalent must be completed that specifies, when applied, the amount
that will be linked to Sport England’s Building Cost Information Service® from the date of
the permission and timing of the contribution/s to be made.

< Contributions should also be secured towards the first ten years of maintenance on new
pitches. NGBs and Sport England can provide further and up to date information on the
associated costs.

<« External funding should be sought/secured to achieve maximum benefit from the
investment into appropriate outdoor sport facility enhancement and its subsequent
maintenance.

< Where new multiple pitches are provided, appropriate changing rooms and associated
car parking should be located on site.

< All new or improved outdoor sport facilities on school sites should be subject to
community use agreements.

9 https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-quidance/cost-guidance/

Page 87

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 51


https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

AIM 3
To provide new outdoor sport facilities where there is current or future demand to do so.

Recommendations:

1
h. ldentify opportunities to add to the overall stock to accommodate both current and |
future demand. 1

1

|

I_i. Rectify quantitative shortfalls through the current stock.
Recommendation (h) - Identify opportunities to add to the overall stock to
accommodate both current and future demand

The Steering Group should use the Action Plan within this Strategy for improvements to the
Council’'s own outdoor sports facilities whilst recognising the need to support partners. The
Action Plan lists improvements to be made to each site focused upon both qualitative and
guantitative improvements as appropriate on an area by area basis.

Although there are identified shortfalls of match equivalent sessions, most current and future
demand is currently being met and most shortfalls can be addressed via quality improvements
and/or improved access to sites that are presently used minimally or currently unavailable.
Adding to the current stock, particularly in the short term, is therefore not recommended as a
priority, except in the case of 3G pitches where there is a discrete need, where there is
significant housing growth, or where sites fall out of use and require mitigation.

It is important that there is a joined-up approach between the relevant neighbouring authorities
to ensure that 3G pitches are developed at the most appropriate sites, such as by selecting
sites that can contribute towards accommodating demand from neighbouring authorities. This
approach will also ensure there is no duplication of provision that will compete against each
other to attract demand.

Where new schools are provided in major new residential developments, they should be
designed to facilitate community access, with opportunities for meeting the community’s
outdoor sports needs explored at the planning stage to maximise potential demand and ensure
the correct facility provision. For example, full size 3G pitches are often best suited to
secondary school sites, whereas mini football pitches and MUGAs/small sided AGPs on
primary school sites.

Recommendation (i) - Rectify quantitative shortfalls through the current stock

The Council and its partners should work to rectify identified inadequacies and meet identified
shortfalls as outlined in the preceding Assessment Report and the sport by sport specific
recommendations (Part 3) as well as the following Action Plan (Part 6).

It is important that the current levels of provision are protected, maintained and enhanced to
secure provision now and in the future. For most sports the current and future demand for
provision identified in Newcastle-under-Lyme can be overcome through maximising use of
existing stock through a combination of:

Improving quality in order to improve the capacity to accommodate more demand.
Transferring demand from overplayed sites to sites with spare capacity.

The re-designation of facilities.

Securing long term community use at school sites including those currently unavailable.
Working with commercial and private providers to secure tenure and increase usage.

Page 88

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 52

A A A A A



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Unmet demand, changes in sport participation and trends, and proposed housing growth
should be recognised and factored into future facility planning. Assuming an increase in
participation and housing growth occurs, it will impact on the future need for certain types of
sports facilities. Sports development work also approximates unmet demand which cannot
currently be quantified (i.e. it is not being suppressed by a lack of facilities) but is likely to
occur. The following table highlights the main development trends in each sport and their likely
impact on facilities. However, it is important to note that these may be subject to change.

Furthermore, retaining some spare capacity allows some pitches to be rested to protect overall
pitch quality in the long-term. Therefore, whilst in some instances it may be appropriate to re-
designate a senior pitch where there is low demand identified a holistic approach should be
taken to re-designation for the reasons cited. The site-by-site action planning will seek to
provide further clarification on where re-designation is suitable.

Likely future sport-by-sport demand trends

Sport
Football

Future sports development trend

Demand for adult football is likely to be
sustained with the FA focusing on
retention. There is also likely to be some
continued movement towards small
sided football for adults.

Strategy impact

Additional need for 3G pitches.

Sustain current pitch stock but give
consideration to pitch reconfiguration to
accommodate youth 11v11 football.
Qualitative improvements.

Sustain current stock and consideration
given to reconfigure pitches if required.
Qualitative improvements.

Where possible utilise new or existing 3G
pitches to further accommodate this
demand and ensure FA testing.

Demand for grass pitches and 3G pitches
is likely to increase.

Demand for mini and youth football is
likely to increase and the FA has a key
objective to deliver 50% of mini and
youth football on 3G pitches.

The FA'’s strategy for Women'’s and
Girls’ football: 2017 — 2020 was released
in March 2017. One of the major goals
of the new strategy will be to double
participation.

3G Demand for 3G pitches for football is

Requirement for new 3G pitches to be

quality, ECB predicts further growth in
cricket demand for pitch use over the
next few years.

pitches high and will continue to increase. It is provided and a need for community use
likely that future demand for the use of agreements to be in place for any new
3G pitches will increase for both training | pitches as well as sinking funds.
and match play purposes. Requirement for 3G pitches to be FA/FIFA
tested to host competitive matches.
Utilise Sport England/NGB guidance on
choosing the correct surface.
Cricket Except for grounds identified as poor Pitches that are already identified in the

PPS as being at capacity will not be able to
accommodate additional playing demand
generated and it is predicted there will be
demand for additional cricket playing
facilities or as an alternative the installation
of NTP’s at existing facilities.

All Stars Cricket, the ECB national
programme for 5-8 year olds, is
engaging large numbers of children and
has already been delivered over the past
3-4 years, with increasing numbers of
participants year on year, alongside
Chance to Shine cricket delivery in
primary schools.

Greater usage of outfields to accommodate
demand from All Stars Cricket.

Shorter formats of cricket, and additional
formats including softball cricket, are also
driving up demand for pitches.

An increase stock of NTPs likely to be
required to accommodate demand.

P
Page 89

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 53




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Sport Future sports development trend Strategy impact
Dynamos Cricket is the latest launch by
the ECB, building on the existing All
Stars programme for 5-8-year-olds.

Participants will continue to develop their

skills and be introduced to a countdown

style of cricket match.

Women'’s and girls’ cricket is a national Increased requirement for peak time

ECB priority and there is a target to access to pitches.

establish more female teams in every Need to ensure access to good quality

local authority. facilities including, segregated changing
and toilet provision.

Rugby Locally, the RFU want to ensure access | Clubs are likely to field more teams in the

union to pitches satisfies existing demand and | future. It is important, therefore, to work
predicted growth. It is also an aim to with the clubs to maintain the current pitch
protect and improve pitch quality, as well | stock and support facility development. In
as ancillary facilities. particular, capital improvements are

required to the existing natural turf pitches
as is improvements to the quality of
changing rooms, where appropriate. All
clubs should have access to high quality
floodlit pitches to support training and
match play demand.

Hockey Current playing level is likely to increase. | Ensure continued use of sand-based AGPs
to accommodate current demand and
ensure sinking funds are in place for long-
term sustainability.

Ensure that no 3G pitch conversions take
place that are detrimental to hockey.

High profile events (Hockey World Cup These high profile events aim to raise the

2018 Legacy) profile of the game within England and
there will be community events in the build-
up within clubs and a promotional
programme through clubs and local
schools. This will inevitably raise the profile
of the game with the aim to increase
participation.

New 2019 launched England Hockey Ensure that outfields are able to

initiative, Hockey Heroes (aimed at accommodate additional future demand.

growing participation for under 10s).

Bowls No expected net increase in Likely that any future increase could be
memberships. accommodated on existing greens.

Tennis The LTA has a key priority for the Increases in participation can be
strategic development and growth of accommodated through providing
tennis at both a club and wider additional courts that are floodlit.
community level such as local parks. An increase in casual play can be

encouraged through adopting LTA
initiatives such as digital access systems.

Netball Membership of clubs is expected to Likely that any future increase could be
increase. accommodated on existing courts,

however, providing more courts that are
floodlit would be beneficial.

Golf Declining membership expected to ‘level | Clubs should tailor their offer towards non-
off’. Non-traditional formats of play are traditional formats of play to attract new
becoming increasingly popular. users.

Page 90

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 54




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

PART 6: ACTION PLAN

The site-by-site action plan seeks to address key issues identified in the preceding Assessment
Report. It provides recommendations based on current levels of usage, quality and future
demand, as well as the potential of each site for enhancement. It should be reviewed in the light
of staff and financial resources in order to prioritise support for strategically significant provision
and provision that other providers are less likely to make. The Action Plan is separated by
analysis area.

The Council should make it a high priority to work with NGBs and other partners to comprise a
priority list of actions based on local priorities, NGB priorities and available funding. To allow for
facility developments to be programmed within a phased approach, the Council should adopt a
tiered approach to the management and improvement of outdoor facility sites and associated
provision.

The identification of sites is based on their strategic importance within the Borough i.e. they
accommodate the majority of demand, or the recommended action has the greatest anticipated
impact on addressing shortfalls (identified either on a sport-by-sport basis or across the Council
area as a whole).

Table 6.1: Proposed tiered site criteria

Criteria

Hub sites

Key centres

Local sites

Site location

Strategically located in
the Borough. Priority
sites for NGBs.

Strategically located
within the analysis area.

Services the local
community.

Site layout

Accommodates three or
more grass pitches,
including provision of an
AGP.

Accommodates two or
more grass pitches.

Accommodates one or
more pitches.

Type of sport

Single or multi-sport
provision.

Could also operate as a
central venue.

Single or multi-sport
provision.

Could also operate as a
central venue.

Single or multi-sport
provision.

Management

Management control
remains within the local
authority/other provider
or with an appropriate
lease arrangement
through a committee or
education owned.

Management control
remains within the local
authority/provider or
with an appropriate club
on a lease
arrangement.

Management control
remains within the local
authority/provider or with
an appropriate club on a
lease arrangement.

Maintenance

Maintenance regime

Maintenance regime

Standard maintenance

sufficient changing
rooms and car parking to
serve the number of
pitches.

sufficient changing
rooms and car parking
to serve the number of
pitches.

regime aligns with NGB aligns with NGB regime either by the club
guidelines. guidelines. or in house maintenance
contract.
Ancillary Good quality ancillary Good quality ancillary No changing room access
facilities facility on site, with facility on site, with on site or appropriate

access to accommodate
both senior and junior use
concurrently (if required).

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

Page 91

55




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Hub sites are of strategic Borough wide importance where users are willing to travel to access
the range and high quality of facilities offered and are likely to be multi-sport. These have been
identified on the basis of the impact that the site will have on addressing the issues identified
in the assessment.

Key centres are more community focused sites, although some are still likely to service a
wider analysis area. There may be more of a focus on a specific sport.

Additionally, it is considered that some financial investment may be necessary to improve the
ancillary facilities at both hub sites and key centre sites to complement the pitches in terms of
access, flexibility (i.e. single-sex changing if necessary), quality and that they meet the rules
and regulations of local competitions.

Local sites refer to those sites offering minimal provision or that are of minimal value to the
wider community. Primarily they are sites with one facility or a low number of facilities that
service just one or two sports. The level of priority attached to them for external investment
may be relatively low.

For local authority sites, consideration should be given, on a site-by-site basis, to the feasibility
of a club taking on a long-term lease (if not already present), in order that external funding can
be sought. Such sites will require some level of investment, either to the outdoor sport facilities
or ancillary facilities, and is it anticipated that one of the conditions of offering a hire/lease is
that the Club would be in a position to source external funding to improve/extend the provision.

Other sites considered in this tier may be primary school sites or secondary school sites that
are not widely used by the community or that do not offer community availability.

Some local sites are suitable for rationalisation providing that capital receipts are allocated
to replace the lost provision at larger, multi-pitch sites.

Management and development

The following issues should be considered when undertaking sports related site development
or enhancement:

< Financial viability.

4 Security of tenure.

< Planning permission requirements and any foreseen difficulties in securing permission.

4 Adequacy of existing finances to maintain existing sites.

<« Business Plan/Masterplan — including financial package for creation of new provision
where need has been identified.

< Analysis of the possibility of shared site management opportunities.

<« The availability of opportunities to lease sites to external organisations.

4 Options to assist community groups to gain funding to enhance existing provision.

< Negotiation with landowners to increase access to private hub sites.

<« Football investment programme/3G pitch development with the FA and Football
Foundation

Partners

The column indicating partners refers to the main organisations that the Council would look to
work with to support delivery of the actions. Given the extent of potential actions it is reasonable
to assume that partners will not necessarily be able to support all of the actions identified but
where the action is a priority and resource is available the partner will endeavour to provide
support.

Page 92

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 56



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Priority

Although hub sites are mostly likely to have a high priority level as they have wide importance,
high priority sites have been identified on the basis of the impact that the site will have on
addressing the key issues identified in the assessment. Therefore, some key centres and local
sites are also identified as having a high priority level. It is these projects/sites which should
generally, if possible, be addressed within the short term (1-2 years).

The majority of key centres are a medium priority, have analysis area importance and have
been identified on the basis of the impact that the site will have on addressing the issues
identified in the assessment.

The low priority sites tend to be single pitch or single sport sites and often club or education
sites with local specific importance but that may also contribute to addressing the issues
identified in the assessment for specific users.

Costs

The strategic actions have also been ranked as low, medium or high based on cost. The
brackets are:

< (L) -Low - less than £50k;
< (M) -Medium - £50k-£250k;
<« (H) -High £250k and above.

These are based on Sport England’s estimated facility costs which can be found at:
https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-quidance/

Timescales

The Action Plan has been created to be delivered over a ten-year period. The information
within the Assessment Report, Strategy and Action Plan will require updating as developments
occur.

The indicative timescales relate to delivery times and are not priority based:
< (S) -Short (1-2 years);

< (M) - Medium (3-5 years);

< (L) - Long (6+ years).

Aim

Each action seeks to meet at least one of the three aims of the Strategy; Enhance, Provide,
Protect.

Page 93

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 57


https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

KIDSGROVE ANALYSIS AREA

Sport Analysis area | Current demand (2020) Future demand (2037)
Pitch type Current capacity total | Future capacity total in
in MES MES
Football Kidsgrove Adult Shortfall of 1
(grass Youth 11v11
pitches) Youth 9v9 Shortfall of 1.5 Shortfall of 2.5
Mini 7v7
Mini 5v5
NUL Adult Spare capacity of 3.5 Shortfall of 1
Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 1.5 Shortfall of 5.5
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 1 Shortfall of 5
Mini 7v7 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 5v5 Spare capacity of 2.5 Shortfall of 6
Football Kidsgrove Full size, floodlit | Shortfall of 1 full sized | Shortfall of 1 full sized
(3G 3G pitch for team 3G pitch for team training
pitches) training
Cricket Kidsgrove Senior Shortfall of 20
Junior Spare capacity of 8 Spare capacity of 4
NUL Senior Shortfall of 20 Shortfall of 72
Junior Spare capacity of 36 Shortfall of 20
Rugby Kidsgrove Senior
union NUL Senior Shortfall of 4.5 Shortfall of 6
Hockey NUL Full size, floodlit | Adequate provision Adequate provision
(sand
AGPs)
Tennis NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Bowls NUL Greens Adequate provision Adequate provision
Netball NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Golf NUL Courses (Driving | Adequate provision Adequate provision
ranges)
Other NUL Pitches Adequate provision Adequate provision
sports

Key recommendations

4 To meet the future shortfalls, improve poor quality football pitches through enhanced

levels of maintenance.

< In addition, explore the feasibility of developing a of a full size floodlit 3G FA approved
pitch to accommodate both competitive and training demand.
<« Ensure future demand for cricket can be met through increase usage of onsite NTPs

4 Assist clubs in ancillary provision improvements where required

P ad’él\/gg_— match equivalent sessions per week (per season for cricket)

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

58




G6 obed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site

Site

Sport

Management

Current status

Recommended actions

Partners

Site
hierarchy
tier

Priority

Timescales'®

Cost!?

Aim

10

Birchenwood Pavilion

Football

Tennis

Bowls
(disused)

Council /
Sports club

Three adult, two youth 11v11, one youth
9v9, two mini 7v7 and two mini 5v5
pitches, all of standard quality. The
youth 9v9 pitch is overplayed by 1.5
match equivalent sessions per week
whilst all remaining pitch types are
played to capacity at peak time.

The pitch is reported to be poorly
maintained, with grass often left
overgrown.

A PIP reported in 2019 established a
mowing regime on site and once a
license/lease agreement between
Kidsgrove Lads & Dads and the Council
is in place, the club will undertake
additional improvements such as
aeration and slitting.

Ancillary facilities are reported to be in
poor changing due to being tired and
dated, as well as being unsuitable to
accommodate male and female teams.

Improve pitch quality through enhanced
maintenance regime in line with the PIP
and LFFP.

Support ancillary facility improvements
in line with the LFFP.

These improvements need to be
led/funded by Kidsgrove Lads & Dads.

Two poor quality macadam tennis
courts that are available for community
use but without floodlighting.

Courts have been decommissioned and
let to Kidsgrove Lads & Dads as part of
its lease.

Retain as current use with any
improvements to provision led/funded
by Kidsgrove Lads & Dads.

One disused bowling green that has
stopped being maintained due to a lack
of demand.

Green has been decommissioned and
let to Kidsgrove Lads & Dads as part of
its lease.

Retain as current use with any
improvements to provision led/funded
by Kidsgrove Lads & Dads.

Council
Sports Club

SFA
FF

LTA
BCGBA
SFA

Hub

Protect
Enhance
Provide

14

Chester Road Playing
Fields - Kidsgrove

Football

Council

One poor quality adult pitch which has
actual spare capacity although this has
been discounted due to poor pitch
quality.

Butt Lane White Star FC aspires to
invest in pitch maintenance
improvements once a license/lease
agreement is in place for the site. The
Club also has plans to install fencing
around the site to reduce dog fouling,
unauthorised access and damage to the
playing surface.

The site is serviced by poor quality
ancillary facilities. The building is
reported to require improved heating
and insulation.

Improve pitch quality through enhanced
maintenance regime.

Support Butt Lane White Star FC to
agree a long-term usage agreement in
order to further improve pitch quality
and facilities on site.

Council
Sports Club

SFA
FF

Local

Protect
Enhance

10 (S) -Short (1-2 years); (M) - Medium (3-5 years); (L) - Long (6+ years)
11 (L) -Low - less than £50k; (M) -Medium - £50k-£250k; (H) -High £250k and above

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

59




96 abed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales!® | Cost!! Aim

ID hierarchy

tier

20 | Friarswood Primary School Football Education One poor quality mini 7v7 pitch which is | Improve pitch quality through enhanced School Local L L Protect
available for community use. The pitch maintenance regime to better SFA
has actual spare capacity although this | accommodate curricular demand. FF
has been discounted due to poor pitch
quality and unsecure tenure.

26 | Kidsgrove Athletic Football Football Sports club One adult pitch of standard quality that Sustain pitch quality through appropriate | Sports Club Local L L Protect

Club is played to capacity. The pitch suffers maintenance regime. SEA Enhance
from poor drainage. Explore the feasibility of rectifying FF
The site is serviced by standard quality | drainage issues on site.
ancillary facilities. However, Kidsgrove Support Kidsgrove Athletic FC to
Athletic FC reports that there is no improve changing facilities and
dedicated female or officials changing floodlighting on site.
rooms and the floodlights on site are in
need of modernisation.

27 | Kidsgrove Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local L L Protect
with 10 wickets and an NTP. appropriate maintenance regime. ECB
The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities. The square is played
to capacity at peak time.

46 | Salop Place - Kidsgrove Football Council One poor quality adult football pitch Determine future use of the provision Council Local L L Protect
which is unused although spare based on the following priority order of SFA Enhance
capacity is discounted due to poor pitch | options: FE
quality. 1) Retain/allocate site as strategic

reserve.

2) Explore feasibility to bring back into
use.

3) Use as open space to meet local
needs.

4) Redevelop site and mitigate loss to
meet Sport England Playing Field Policy
requirements.

52 | Springhead Primary School Football Education One mini 5v5 pitch of poor quality which | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L Protect
is unused although spare capacity is maintenance regime. SEA Enhance
discounted due to poor pitch quality and FE
unsecure tenure.

55 | St Saviours CE Primary Football Education One mini 7v7 and one mini 5v5 pitch, Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L Protect

School both of poor quality. Spare capacity is maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
discounted due to poor pitch quality and FE
unsecure tenure.
60 | Kidsgrove Secondary Hockey Education One small-size hockey suitable AGP Sustain pitch quality through appropriate Education Local L L Protect
(AGP) which is without floodlighting and maintenance regime for curricular EH
unavailable for community use. demand.
Tennis Three standard quality tennis courts that | Sustain court quality through L L
are without floodlighting and unavailable | appropriate maintenance regime for
for community use. curricular demand.
Netball Four standard quality netball courts that | Sustain court quality through L L
are without floodlighting and unavailable | appropriate maintenance regime for
for community use. curricular demand.
61 | Kidsgrove Secondary Football Education An unattached school playing field that Determine future use of the provision Education Local - - -
(Gloucester Road Pitches) (disused) previously accommodated two youth based on the following priority order of Council
11v11 and one adult football pitch. It is options: SFA
unknown when the site was last actively | 1) Retain/allocate site as strategic FE
used, however, according to satellite reserve.

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

60




/6 abed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales!® | Cost!! Aim
ID hierarchy
tier
imaginary the were at last visibly 2) Explore feasibility to bring back into
marked circa 2011. use.
3) Use as open space to meet local
needs.
4) Redevelop site and mitigate loss to
meet Sport England Playing Field Policy
requirements.
71 | Clough Hall Bowls Club Bowls Sports Club One good quality green that is used by Ensure green quality through sustained Sports club Local L L L Protect
Clough Hall BC. levels of dedicated maintenance. BCGBA
SBA
73 | Dovebank Primary School Football Education One mini 7v7 pitch of poor quality which | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
is unused although spare capacity is maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
discounted due to poor pitch quality and FE
unsecure tenure.
83 | Bathpool Country Park Rugby Council One senior and one mini pitch, both of Improve pitch quality through enhanced Council Local L L L Protect
union poor (M0/D1) quality. The pitches on maintenance regime. RFU Enhance
site have issues with dog fouling and Assist to secure the Club long term
litter. The mini pitch is played to tenure.
capacity through training demand by Changing room is to be added to Ski
Linley & Kidsgrove RUFC using portable i
floodﬁ hts Tr?e senior pitch haiz are Club lease and rugby club changing
gnts. or p P relocated to Clough Hall Park.
capacity although this has been
discounted due to poor pitch quality.
Ancillary facilities on site are said to be
in poor condition.
97 | St. Thomas' CE Primary Football Education One mini 5v5 of poor quality which is Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
School unavailable for community use. maintenance regime to better SFA
accommodate curricular demand. FE
101 | Clough Hall Park Rugby Council One senior pitch of poor (M0O/D1) Improve pitch quality through enhanced Council Local L L L Protect
union quality. The pitch has issues with dog maintenance regime. RFU Enhance
fouling and litter. Seek to lease the facility to Linley & LTA Provide
The pitch has spare capacity although Kidsgrove RFU and enhance changing BCGBA
this has been discounted due to poor provision. SBA
pitch quality.
Tennis Two poor quality macadam tennis Improve court quality and explore the M M M
courts that are available for community feasibility of installing floodlighting on
use but are without floodlighting. site to facilitate informal tennis demand.
The site has been identified by the LTA | This is dependent on community
as a key site in the Borough to develop | consultation and master planning
informal tennis. currently in progress.
Bowls Two disused bowling greens that have Based on levels of no identified demand
(disused) stopped being maintained due to a lack | for the use of these greens they are to
of demand. be decommissioned with alternative use
to be determined by master planning.
Any alternative use needs to take into
consideration Sports England
Guidelines.
105 | The King's Church of Hockey Education One poor quality small-size AGP which Look to enhance pitch quality to meet Education Local L L M Protect
England School (AGP) has floodlighting. The site was closed to | the requirements for curricular and extra EH Enhance
the community in 2017. curricular demand. FE
SFA
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 61




g6 abed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales!® | Cost!! Aim
ID hierarchy
tier
118 | Clough Hall Playing Fields Rugby Education / Two lapsed rugby union pitches last As there is no strategic need identified Education Local - - - -
union Council formally marked circa 2011. Site is for the site either Council
(lapsed) leased to Kings CE(VA) School 1) Use as open space to meet local RFU
(formerly Clough Hall High). needs.
2) Redevelop site following Sport
England Playing Field Policy
requirements.
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 62




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

RURAL CENTRAL AND KEELE ANALYSIS AREA

Sport Analysis area | Current demand (2020) Future demand (2037)
Pitch type Current capacity total | Future capacity total in
in MESH MES
Football Rural Central Adult Spare capacity of 1
(grass and Keele Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 1.5
pitches) Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 1
Mini 7v7 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 5v5 Shortfall of 1
NUL Adult Spare capacity of 3.5 Shortfall of 1
Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 1.5 Shortfall of 5.5
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 1 Shortfall of 5
Mini 7v7 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 5v5 Spare capacity of 2.5 Shortfall of 6
Football Rural Central Full size, floodlit
(3G and Keele
pitches)
Cricket Rural Central Senior Shortfall of 14 Shortfall of 14
and Keele Junior Spare capacity of 2 Shortfall of 10
NUL Senior Shortfall of 20 Shortfall of 72
Junior Spare capacity of 36 Shortfall of 20
Rugby Rural Central Senior
union and Keele
NUL Senior Shortfall of 4.5 Shortfall of 6
Hockey NUL Full size, floodlit | Adequate provision Adequate provision
(sand
AGPs)
Tennis NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Bowls NUL Greens Adequate provision Adequate provision
Netball NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Golf NUL Courses (Driving | Adequate provision Adequate provision
ranges)
Other NUL Pitches Adequate provision Adequate provision
sports

Key recommendations

4

To meet the future football shortfalls secure access to educational sites through CUAs

in addition to improve poor pitch quality through enhanced levels of maintenance.

Examine the feasibility of the refurbishment of hockey suitable AGP at Keele Sports
University Sports Centre to better accommodate future and imported demand. This need
to take into consideration on going develops in the neighbouring authority of Shropshire

(Market Drayton)

(11 MES — match equivalent sessions per week (per season for cricket)

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

Page 99
63



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

< Look to secure tenure for Porthill CC at Scot Hay Cricket Club in conjunction with
ancillary and square improvements.

4 Assist clubs in pitch and ancillary provision enhancements where required.

Page 100
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 64



TOT obed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost®® Aim
D hierarchy 2
tier
24 | Keele University Sports Football University Five adult pitches and one youth 9v9 Sustain pitch quality through appropriate University Hub M L L Protect
Centre pitch. One of the adult pitches is of good | maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
quality whilst the remaining pitches are | ook to formalise community use FF
of standard quality. All pitCh formats agreements to pro\/ide users with RFU
have spare capacity although this has security of tenure. ECB
been discounted due to unsecure Explore the feasibility of improving EH
tenure. ancillary facilities on site. LTA
Ancillary facilities on site are said to be EN
of standard quality although are
considered to be dated and tired.
Football One full-size 3G pitch which is FA and Sustain pitch quality through appropriate L L L
(3G) WR certified, as well as a small-size 3G | maintenance regime.
pitch. Both pitches are floodlit and Explore the feasibility of improving
available for community use. The full- anci”ary facilities on site.
size pitch is good quality. Despite the
full-size pitch being WR compliant, it
does not meet minimum dimensions to
accommodate competitive demand.
Ancillary facilities on site are said to be
of standard quality although are
considered to be dated and tired.
Rugby Three senior rugby union pitches of Sustain pitch quality through appropriate M L L
union which all are good quality (two of M2/D2 | maintenance regime.
and one M2/D1). Ancillary facilities on Look to formalise community use
site are said to be of standard quality agreements to provide users with
although are considered to be dated and | security of tenure.
tired. Ancillary facilities on site are said Explore the feasibility of improving
to be of standard quality although are ancillary facilities on site.
considered to be dated and tired.
All three pitches have spare capacity
although this has been discounted due
to spare capacity.
Cricket There was previously a grass cricket Explore the feasibility of reinstating the - - -
(disused) square on site with six wickets although | cricket wicket based on levels of
this was not provided for the 2019 demand.
season to reduce expenditure. The two
University teams will play at Leycett
Cricket Club although the University
reports it will reinstate the square if there
is a significant level of demand.
Hockey One full-size AGP which is floodlit and Improve pitch quality through resurfacing H S H
(AGP) actively used by community hockey as soon as feasibly possible to ensure
clubs (Keele University HC, Market continued use for hockey.
Drayton HC and ad hoc use by North Ensure pitch is retained as a hockey
Stafford HC). The pitch was last suitable surface to meet levels of
resurfaced in 2007 and does not drain demand in Newcastle-under-Lyme.
adequately, leading to the build-up of Explore the feasibility of improving
moss and mildew on the playing ancillary facilities on site.
surface.
12 (S) -Short (1-2 years); (M) - Medium (3-5 years); (L) - Long (6+ years)
13 (L) -Low - less than £50k; (M) -Medium - £50k-£250k; (H) -High £250k and above
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 65




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

o
jab]
«Q
D
=
o
N

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost®® Aim

D hierarchy 2

tier
Ancillary facilities on site are said to be
of standard quality although are
considered to be dated and tired. The
University aspires to modernise the
building although finances to improve
the facilities are reported to be limited.
Tennis Five good quality macadam tennis Sustain court quality through appropriate L L L
courts that are floodlit and available for maintenance regime.
community use.
Netball Four good quality macadam netball Sustain court quality through appropriate L L L
courts that are floodlit and available for maintenance regime.
community use.

31 | Madeley High School Football Education Two standard quality adult pitches that Sustain pitch quality through appropriate Education Local M L L Protect
are available for community use. Both maintenance regime. SFA
pitches have spare capacity although Look to formalise community use FF
this has been discounted due to agreements to provide users with ECB
unsecure tenure. security of tenure. RFU

Cricket One standalone NTP which is Sustain wicket quality through LTA L L L
(NTP) unavailable for community use. appropriate maintenance regime.
Rugby One senior rugby union pitch which is no | Explore the feasibility of reinstating the - - -
union longer marked on site. pitch based on levels of demand.
(disused)
Tennis Two macadam courts that are no longer | Explore opportunities to bring back into - - -
(disused) maintained and only used for use for alternative uses.
recreational purposes. Tree roots are
now cracking the tarmac. The School
aspires to improve court quality in the
long-term although it does not currently
have available funds for resurfacing
work.

32 | Manor Road Playing Fields Football Sports club One adult, one youth 11v11, one youth Sustain pitch quality through appropriate | Sports Club Local M M M Protect
9v9, one mini 7v7 and one mini 5v5 maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
pitch, all of standard quality. The youth | Seek to utilise actual spare capacity via FF
9v9 pitch has 0.5 match equivalent the transfer of demand from overplayed
sessions of actual spare capacity whilst | sites or through future demand.
the remqining pitch types are all played Support Madeley White Star FC to
to capacity at peak times. improve ancillary facilities on site.

A PIP report on site recommended an
enhanced maintenance regime including
slitting, aeration and weed killing.
The site is serviced by poor quality
ancillary facilities. The Club reports that
it requires a purpose built clubhouse to
meet league requirements and allow its
senior team to return to the site. Manor
Road Playing Fields was identified in the
LFFP for ancillary facility improvements.
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 66




€0T abed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost®® Aim
D hierarchy 2
tier
47 | Scot Hay Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One standard quality grass cricket Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local H S M Protect
square with eight wickets. The square is | appropriate maintenance regime. ECB Enhance
overplayed by 14 match equivalent Explore the feasibility of installing an Provide
sessions per season and suffers from NTP on site to alleviate overplay.
unsecure tenure. Look to formalise a long-term usage
The square is serviced by poor quality agreement to provide security of tenure.
ancillary facilities. Porthill CC hopes to Support Porthill CC to improve ancillary
improve ancillary provision on site facilities on site.
although states that this is not currently
financially viable.
74 | Leycett Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
with 14 wickets. The square is played to | appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
capacity at peak time. FF
The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.
76 | Onneley Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
with eight wickets. The square is played | appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
to capacity at peak time. Explore increasing the capacity on the FF
The site is serviced by good quality site if future demand is actualised.
ancillary facilities.
110 | Onneley Golf Club Golf Sports Club One 18-hole golf course. The Club is Sustain course quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
currently in the process of redesigning appropriate maintenance regime. EG
three holes on site.
Club membership has increased over
recent years but remains below the
national average, with 324 members.
112 | Keele Driving Range Golf Commercial | A 26 bay, floodlit, covered driving range | Sustain range quality through current Commercial Local H L L Protect
with a 250 yard outfield. maintenance regime. Council
The Council has plans to develop Ensure that the site is retained or EG
housing on site. adequately re-provided as part of the
Keele growth corridor exercise.
- Previous Onneley Cricket Cricket Private A grass cricket square which has been There was no demand identified in the Private Local - - - -
Club (lapsed) unused since Onneley CC vacated the proceeding Assessment Report to bring ECB
site in 2014 due to increased rental the course back into use.
costs. The future of the site is unknown.
- Keele Golf Course Golf Council The site has been closed to the public There was no demand identified in the Council Local - - - -
(lapsed) since 2014 and is now accessed as proceeding Assessment Report to bring EG
open space by local residents. The site the course back into use.
has been identified for potential housing
development by the Borough Council,
however, as it sits within green belt land
it requires the land to be released
through the development of the new
local plan.
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 67




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

RURAL NORTH ANALYSIS AREA

Sport Analysis area | Current demand (2020) Future demand (2037)
Pitch type Current capacity total | Future capacity total in
in MESIY MES
Football Rural North Adult Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
(grass Youth 11v11 Spare capacity of 1 Spare capacity of 1
pitches) Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 7v7
Mini 5v5
NUL Adult Spare capacity of 3.5 Shortfall of 1
Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 1.5 Shortfall of 5.5
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 1 Shortfall of 5
Mini 7v7 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 5v5 Spare capacity of 2.5 Shortfall of 6
Football Rural North Full size, floodlit
(3G
pitches)
Cricket Rural North Senior Shortfall of 12
Junior Spare capacity of 28 Spare capacity of 12
NUL Senior Shortfall of 20 Shortfall of 72
Junior Spare capacity of 36 Shortfall of 20
Rugby Rural North Senior
union
NUL Senior Shortfall of 4.5 Shortfall of 6
Hockey NUL Full size, floodlit | Adequate provision Adequate provision
(sand
AGPs)
Tennis NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Bowls NUL Greens Adequate provision Adequate provision
Netball NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Golf NUL Courses (Driving | Adequate provision Adequate provision
ranges)
Other NUL Pitches Adequate provision Adequate provision
sports

Key recommendations

4 Sustain pitch quality through sustained levels of dedicated maintenance.

4 Assist clubs in pitch and ancillary provision enhancements where required.

4 Explore options to increase cricket capacity at sites, such as installing NTPs or creation
of additional wicket, if future demand is actualised.

(11 MES — match equivalent sessions per week (per season for cricket)

Page;104,,c 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

68




GOT obed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost® Aim

D hierarchy v

tier

1 Audley & District FC Football Sports club Two adult pitches and one mini 7v7 pitch. | Sustain pitch quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
One adult pitch is of good quality whilst appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
the r'emaining two pitches are of standard | Seek to utilise actual spare capacity FF
quality. via the transfer of demand from
The good quality adult pitch has one overplayed sites or through future
match equivalent session of actual spare | demand.
capacity per week whilst the mini 7v7
pitch has 0.5 match sessions of actual
spare capacity. The second adult pitch is
played to capacity at peak time.

The site is serviced by standard quality
ancillary facilities.
5 Alsagers Bank Sports Football Community One adult, one youth 11v11 and one Sustain pitch quality through Community Local L L L Protect
Ground organisation | youth 9v9 pitch, all of standard quality. appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
The youth 11v11 pitch has one match Seek to utilise actual spare capacity FF
equivalent session of actual spare via the transfer of demand from
capacity whilst the adult and youth 9v9 overplayed sites or through future
pitch each have 0.5 match equivalent demand.
sessions of actual spare capacity at peak
time.
The site is serviced by standard quality
ancillary facilities.

7 Audley Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
with 15 wickets. The square is played to appropriate maintenance regime. ECB
capacity at peak times.

The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.

8 Betley Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
with 12 wickets. The square is played to appropriate maintenance regime. ECB Enhance
capacity at peak times. SFA
The site is serviced by standard quality FF
ancillary facilities.

Football One poor quality adult football pitch which | Improve pitch quality through L L L
is currently unused although spare enhanced maintenance regime.
capacity has been discounted due to poor
pitch quality.

9 Bignall End Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
with 12 wickets. The square is played to appropriate maintenance regime. ECB
capacity at peak times.

The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.
51 | Sir Thomas Boughey High Football Education Two youth 11v11 pitches of poor quality Improve pitch quality through Education Local L L L Protect
School that are unavailable for community use. enhanced maintenance regime to SFA Enhance
better accommodate curricular FE
demand. LTA
Cricket One NTP that is unavailable for Improve wicket quality through EN L L L
(NTP) community use. The wicket is reported to resurfacing to better accommodate
be of poor quality. curricular demand.
14 (S) -Short (1-2 years); (M) - Medium (3-5 years); (L) - Long (6+ years)
15 (L) -Low - less than £50k; (M) -Medium - £50k-£250k; (H) -High £250k and above
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 69




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

o
jab]
«Q
D
=
o
(@))

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost®® Aim

D hierarchy v

tier
Tennis Four macadam tennis courts that are Sustain court quality through L L L
available for community use but without appropriate maintenance regime for
floodlighting. Three courts are of standard | curricular demand.
quality and the remaining court is of poor
quality.
Netball Three macadam netball courts that are Sustain court quality through L L L
available for community use but without appropriate maintenance regime for
floodlighting. Two courts are of standard curricular demand.
quality whilst the remaining court is of
poor quality.

65 | Wood Lane Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
with ten wickets. The square is played to appropriate maintenance regime. ECB
capacity at peak times. Explore increasing the capacity on the
The site is serviced by good quality site if future demand is actualised.
ancillary facilities.

68 | Betley Youth FC Football Sports club One poor quality adult pitch that has Improve pitch quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
actual spare capacity of 0.5 match enhanced maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
equivalent sessions although this has FE
been discounted due to poor pitch quality.

85 | Halmerend Sports Ground Football Community One poor quality adult pitch that has Improve pitch quality through Community Local L L L Protect

organisation | actual spare capacity of 0.5 match enhanced maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
equivalent sessions although this has FE
been discounted due to poor pitch quality.
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 70




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

RURAL SOUTH ANALYSIS AREA

Sport Analysis area | Current demand (2020) Future demand (2037)
Pitch type Current capacity total | Future capacity total in
in MESIY MES
Football Rural South Adult Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
(grass Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 0.5 Shortfall of 2
pitches) Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 0.5
Mini 7v7
Mini 5v5 Shortfall of 1
NUL Adult Spare capacity of 3.5 Shortfall of 1
Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 1.5 Shortfall of 5.5
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 1 Shortfall of 5
Mini 7v7 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 5v5 Spare capacity of 2.5 Shortfall of 6
Football Rural South Full size, floodlit | Shortfall of a small Shortfall of a small sized
(3G sized 3G pitch for 3G pitch for team training
pitches) team training
Cricket Rural South Senior
Junior Spare capacity of 4 Shortfall of 4
NUL Senior Shortfall of 20 Shortfall of 72
Junior Spare capacity of 36 Shortfall of 20
Rugby Rural South Senior
union
NUL Senior Shortfall of 4.5 Shortfall of 6
Hockey NUL Full size, floodlit | Adequate provision Adequate provision
(sand
AGPs)
Tennis NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Bowls NUL Greens Adequate provision Adequate provision
Netball NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Golf NUL Courses (Driving | Adequate provision Adequate provision
ranges)
Other NUL Pitches Adequate provision Adequate provision
sports

Key recommendations and likely impact on shortfalls identified

4 To meet the future shortfalls, improve poor/standard quality football pitches through
enhanced levels of maintenance.

< In addition, explore the feasibility of developing a of a small size floodlit 3G FA approved
pitch to accommodate both competitive and training demand.

4 Assist clubs in pitch and ancillary provision enhancements where required.

< Improve cricket square quality through enhance levels of maintenance.

<« Look to secure tenure for Audley CC at Hales Cricket Club in conjunction with ancillary
and square improvements.

(11 MES — match equivalent sessions per week (per season for cricket)

Page 107

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 71



80T abed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost!’ Aim

D hierarchy e5

tier
3 The Burntwood Football Parish Council | One poor quality adult pitch which is Improve pitch quality through enhanced Parish Local L L M Protect
played to capacity. maintenance regime. Council Enhance
Loggerheads Parish Council is applying | Support the Parish to provide changing SFA Provide
for planning permission in order to install | facilities on site. FF
basic changing rooms to accommodate | Explore the feasibility of assisting
Loggerheads FC’s senior team. Loggerheads Parish Council in the
Loggerheads Parish Council also has creation of additional grass football
plans to create additional football pitches and small size floodlit 3G pitch.
pitches to allow for the future growth of
the club.

40 | North Staffs Sports Club Football Sports club One adult, two youth 11v11, one youth Improve pitch quality through enhanced Sports Club Key M M H Protect
9v9, one mini 7v7 and one mini 5v5 maintenance regime. SEA Enhance
pitch, all of standard quality. The adult Seek to utilise actual spare capacity via FF Provide
pitch and youth 9v9 pitches have actual | the transfer of demand from overplayed ECB
spare capacity equating to 0.5 and one | sites or through future demand. RFU
match e_quwalent session per we_:ek Support City of Stoke FC with its
respectively. The youth 11v11 plt_ches development plans.
are overplayed by 0.5 match equivalent Explore the feasibility of creating a small
sessions per week whilst the mini 7v7 size floodlit 3G pitchyonsite
and 5v5 pitches are played to capacity '
at peak time.

City of Stoke FC has plans to develop

additional pitches on site, as well as

installation fencing, improving

maintenance, creating a ‘Step’ standard

pitch and improving ancillary provision.

The Club also aspires to install a floodlit

3G pitch on site.

The site is currently serviced by

standard quality ancillary facilities.
Cricket A cricket square was previously located | As identified shortfalls for cricket can be - - -
(lapsed) on site but is no longer maintained. It met through improvements to other

was last known to be maintained in sites in the analysis area use this area

2014. of playing fields land to accommodate

demand from City of Stoke FC.
Rugby The site previously accommodated a As there is no current or future demand - - -
union senior rugby union pitch although this for rugby union provisions in the

(lapsed) has not been maintained since Handford | analysis area reconfigure the pitch to

RFC folded. The pitch was last known to | better suit the onsite requirements

be maintained in 2014.

62 | Whitmore Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One standard quality grass cricket Improve square quality in order to create | Sports Club Local L L L Protect
square with 14 wickets. The square is additional capacity to accommodate any ECB Enhance
played to capacity at peak time. future growth opportunities. Provide
The site is serviced by standard quality Support Whitmore CC to improve
ancillary facilities. Whitmore CC aspires | training facilities.
to improve training nets and provide
more training equipment for children on
site.

96 | St Marys CE Primary Football Education One poor quality mini 5v5 pitch which is | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect

School unavailable for community use. maintenance regime to better SFA Enhance
accommodate curricular demand. FFE
16 (S) -Short (1-2 years); (M) - Medium (3-5 years); (L) - Long (6+ years)
17 (L) -Low - less than £50k; (M) -Medium - £50k-£250k; (H) -High £250k and above
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 72




60T abed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost!’ Aim
D hierarchy e5
tier
106 | Hales Cricket Club (Audley Cricket Sports club One standard quality grass cricket Improve square quality in order to create | Sports Club Local L L L Protect
CC 2nd Ground) square with five wickets. The square is additional capacity to accommodate any ECB Enhance
played to capacity. future growth opportunities.
The site is serviced by poor quality Support Audley CC to improve facilities
ancillary facilities and is without training | on site if it cannot find an alternate
facilities and develop clubhouse venue.
provision if it cannot identify an alternate | Assis the Club in securing long term
site closer to its home venue. tenure on the site.
73




Pag

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

URBAN NEWCASTLE NORTH, SOUTH AND CENTRAL ANALYSIS AREA

Sport Analysis area | Current demand (2020) Future demand (2037)
Pitch type Current capacity total | Future capacity total in
in MESH MES
Football UNNS&C Adult Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 1
(grass Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 2 Shortfall of 3
pitches) Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 1.5
Mini 7v7
Mini 5v5 Spare capacity of 0.5 Shortfall of 4
NUL Adult Spare capacity of 3.5 Shortfall of 1
Youth 11v11 Shortfall of 1.5 Shortfall of 5.5
Youth 9v9 Spare capacity of 1 Shortfall of 5
Mini 7v7 Spare capacity of 0.5 Spare capacity of 0.5
Mini 5v5 Spare capacity of 2.5 Shortfall of 6
Football UNNS&C Full size, floodlit | Shortfall of 1 full sized | Shortfall of 2 full sized
(3G 3G pitch for team 3G pitches for team
pitches) training training
Cricket UNNS&C Senior Shortfall of 6 Shortfall of 26
Junior Shortfall of 6 Shortfall of 22
NUL Senior Shortfall of 20 Shortfall of 72
Junior Spare capacity of 36 Shortfall of 20
Rugby UNNS&C Senior Shortfall of 4.5 Shortfall of 6
union NUL Senior Shortfall of 4.5 Shortfall of 6
Hockey NUL Full size, floodlit | Adequate provision Adequate provision
(sand
AGPs)
Tennis NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Bowls NUL Greens Adequate provision Adequate provision
Netball NUL Courts Adequate provision Adequate provision
Golf NUL Courses (Driving | Adequate provision Adequate provision
ranges)
Other NUL Pitches Adequate provision Adequate provision
sports

Key recommendations

< To meet the future shortfalls, improve poor quality football pitches through enhanced

levels of maintenance.

< Refurbish the 3G pitch at The Gordon Banks Sports Centre and ensure it goes on the
FA pitch registry.
< In addition, explore the feasibility of developing a of a full size floodlit 3G FA approved
pitch to accommodate both competitive and training demand.
4 Ensure future demand for cricket can be met through qualitative improvements and/or
increase usage of onsite NTPs

4 Assist clubs in ancillary provision improvements where required.

(11 MES — match equivalent sessions per week (per season for cricket)

e 110

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

74




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

< Assist both rugby union clubs in secure tenure on the provision they utilise.
< Look to reduce rugby union shortfalls through the improvement of pitches through
increased levels of maintenance and better drainage. In addition look to create a

dedicated training area for Newcastle RUFC in order for it to transfer demand of its match
pitches.

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page Paglg 111



o
jab]
«Q
D
=
=
N

session per week.

PIP report in 2019 revealed that
drainage on site is repaired and
enhanced maintenance is undertaken
including fertilisation, aeration and weed
killing.

The site is serviced by poor quality
ancillary facilities. The LFFP identified

improve ancillary facilities on site in line
with the LFFP.

Seek to utilise actual spare capacity via
the transfer of demand from overplayed
sites or through future demand.

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN
Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim
ID hierarchy =
tier
2 Crackley Bank - Chesterton Football Council One adult pitch which was last marked Determine future use of the provision Council Local - - - -
(lapsed) circa 2011. The site is now used as based on the following priority order of SEA
open space. options: FF
1) Use as open space to meet local
needs.
2) Redevelop site and mitigate loss to
meet Sport England Playing Field Policy
reguirements.
4 Wye Road - Clayton Football Council The site previously accommodated two | Determine future use of the provision Council Local - - - -
(lapsed) adult and one youth 9v9 pitch circa based on the following priority order of SEA
2003. This decreased to one adult pitch | options: FE
until approximately 2012. No pitches 1) Retain/allocate site as strategic
have been maintained since. reserve.
2) Explore feasibility to bring back into
use.
3) Use as open space to meet local
needs.
4) Redevelop site and mitigate loss to
meet Sport England Playing Field Policy
requirements.
It should be noted that discussions are
in progress with a local club for potential
pitch hire/lease.

11 | Blackbank Football Sports club Two adult, three youth 9v9 and two mini | As the site is identified in the Knutton County Key M L L Protect
7v7 pitches, all of poor quality. All three | Village masterplan for housing ensure Council Enhance
pitch formats have actual spare the County Council complies with NPPF SFA
capacity although this has been if the site is lost. EE
discounted due to poor pitch quality. Explore potential options to relocate the
Site has historically been disused until a | club to a suitable site, if required.
recent short term lease was given to If the site is not lost explore giving the
Knutton Community FC by land owner | ¢,y jong term tenure on the site in
Staffordsh_we County Council. The Club | ~qdition to improving pitch quality.
has ambitions to develop both pitch and
ancillary provision, however, this would
require a longer term agreement. It
should be noted that this site has been
identified in the Knutton Village
masterplan for housing.

12 | Bradwell Community Football Community One adult pitch of standard quality Improve pitch quality as advised by the Community Local M L M Protect

Centre organisation | which has actual spare capacity PIP report. SEFA Enhance
equating to one match equivalent Support Wolstanton United FC to FF

18 (S) -Short (1-2 years); (M) - Medium (3-5 years); (L) - Long (6+ years)
19 (L) -Low - less than £50k; (M) -Medium - £50k-£250k; (H) -High £250k and above

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

76




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim

ID hierarchy =

tier
Bradwell Community Centre for
ancillary improvements.
15 | Chesterton Community Football Education One youth 11v11 and one youth 9v9 Sustain pitch quality through Education Local L L L Protect
Sports College pitch, both of standard quality. The appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
youth 11v11 pitch is played to capacity | Look to formalise community use FF
whilst the youth 9v9 pitch has actual agreements to provide users with
spare capacity although this has been security of tenure.
discounted due to unsecure tenure.
The site is serviced by poor quality
ancillary facilities.
Football One standard quality full-size 3G pitch Sustain pitch quality through L L L
(3G) which is floodlit and available for appropriate maintenance regime.
community use. Ensure sinking fund is in place for when
The site is serviced by poor quality refurbishment/resurfacing is required.
ancillary facilities.
16 | Churchfields Primary Football Education One poor quality adult pitch which is Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
School (Playing Fields) available for community use and has maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
actual spare capacity although this has | ook to formalise community use FF
been discounted due to unsecure agreement to provide users with
tenure. security of tenure.

17 | Clayton Hall Academy Football Education One youth 11v11 and one mini 7v7 Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
pitch, both of poor quality. The youth maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
11v11 pitch is played to capacity whilst | | ook to formalise community use FF
the mini 7v7 pitch is played to capacity | agreement to provide users with RFU
at peak time. The site suffers from security of tenure. EH
unsecure tenure.

Rugby One mini pitch of poor (M0/D0) quality Improve pitch quality through enhanced Lg,\'f‘ L L L
union that is unavailable for community use. maintenance regime to better
The pitch is played to capacity through accommodate curricular demand.
curricular demand.
Hockey One full-size hockey suitable AGP of Improve pitch quality through H S H
(AGP) poor quality which is floodlit and resurfacing as soon as feasibly
available for community use. possible.
Ensure sinking fund is in place for future
refurbishment/resurfacing when
necessary.
Tennis Five standard quality macadam tennis Sustain court quality through L L L
courts that are available for community | appropriate maintenance regime.
use but without floodlights.
Netball Four standard quality macadam netball | Sustain court quality through L L L
courts that are available for community | appropriate maintenance regime.
use but without floodlights.

20 | Friarswood Primary School Football Education One poor quality mini 7v7 pitch which Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
has actual spare capacity although this | maintenance regime. SFA
has been discounted due to poor pitch | | ook to formalise community use FF
quality and unsecure tenure. agreements to provide users with

security of tenure.

¢TT obed

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

77




o
jab]
«Q
D
=
=
D

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN
Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim
ID hierarchy 18
tier

21 | Holditch Miners Club Football Private One standard quality adult pitch which Improve pitch quality through enhanced Private Local M L L Protect
is overplayed by 0.5 match equivalent maintenance regime to alleviate SEA Enhance
sessions per week. overplay. FF
The site is serviced by good quality Look to formalise community use
ancillary facilities. agreements to provide users with

security of tenure.
22 | Jollies Field (Silverdale Football Sports club One poor quality adult pitch which is Improve pitch quality through enhanced Sports Club Local L L L Protect
Park) played to capacity. maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
FF
25 | Kents Lane Community Football Sports club One adult and youth 9v9 pitch, both of Sustain pitch quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
Building standard quality. The adult pitch has 0.5 | appropriate maintenance regime. SEA
match equivalent sessions of actual EE
spare capacity whilst the youth 9v9
pitch is played to capacity at peak
times.
The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities, however, Silverdale
Athletic report an aspiration to apply for
grant funding to further improve on site
facilities.
28 | Knutton St Marys Primary Football Education One mini 7v7 pitch of poor quality which | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
School has spare capacity although this has maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
been discounted due to poor pitch Look to formalise a community use FF
quality and unsecure tenure. agreement to provide potential users
with security of tenure.

29 | Langdale Primary School Football Education One mini 7v7 pitch of poor quality which | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
has spare capacity although this has maintenance regime. SEA Enhance
been discounted due to poor pitch Look to formalise a community use FF
quality and unsecure tenure. agreement to provide potential users

with security of tenure.
34 | Michelin Sports and Football Commercial One standard quality adult football pitch | Sustain pitch quality through Commercial Local L L L Protect
Conference Centre which is played to capacity at peak appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
time. Look to formalise a community use FF
The site is serviced by good quality agreement to provide potential users
ancillary facilities. with security of tenure.
35 | Newcastle Academy Grass Football Education Three standard quality adult football Sustain pitch quality through Education Local M L L Protect
Pitches pitches that have actual spare capacity | appropriate maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
although this has been discounted due Look to formalise a community use FE
to unsecure tenure. agreement to provide potential users RFU
with security of tenure.
Rugby One senior rugby union pitch of poor Improve pitch quality through enhanced L L L
union (M0/D1) quality. The pitch has potential | maintenance regime.
spare capacity although this has been Look to formalise a community use
discounted due to poor pitch quality and | agreement to provide potential users
unsecure tenure. with security of tenure.

36 | Newcastle Academy Tennis Education Two good quality macadam tennis Sustain court quality through Education Local L L L Protect
courts that are available for community | appropriate maintenance regime. LTA
use but without floodlighting. EN

Netball Two poor quality macadam netball Improve court quality through enhanced L L L
courts that are available for community | maintenance regime.
use but without floodlighting.
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 78




GTT obed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

available for community use. The pitch
is played to capacity at peak time.

The School aspires to create a second
full-size, hockey suitable AGP on site in
partnership with North Stafford HC.

Explore the feasibility of creating a
second full size hockey suitable AGP on
the site to better accommodate clubs
and school demand. This would be
dependant on the quality and
accessibility of other pitch in Newcastle-

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim
ID hierarchy =
tier
37 | Newcastle and Hartshill Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain wicket quality through Sports Club Local M S L Protect
Cricket Club with 13 wickets and an NTP. The appropriate maintenance regime. ECB
square is currently overplayed by four Consider increased utilisation of the
match equivalent sessions per season. | NTP on site to alleviate overplay.
The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.
38 | Newcastle RUFC Rugby Sports club Two senior and two junior pitches. One | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Sports club Local H L M Protect
union senior pitch is good (M2/D1) quality and | maintenance regime. Council Enhance
is floodlit. The Club has a long-term Support the Club’s aspiration to RFU Provide
lease agreement in place for this pitch. | construct a training area to alleviate
This pitch is currently overplayed by overplay from the match pitches.
four match equivalent sess_io_ns per Assist to secure the Club long term
week due to match and training tenure on all its pitch stock.
demand.
The remaining senior and two junior
pitches are rented on an annual basis
from the Council. These pitches are
without floodlighting and are of poor
(M0/D1) quality. This senior pitch is
overplayed by 0.5 match equivalent
sessions per week whilst the junior
pitches are played to capacity.
The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.
The Club aspires to convert a patch of
grass adjacent to the main pitch into a
floodlit training area to accommodate
training demand.
39 | Newcastle-Under-Lyme Football Education Two youth 9v9 and one mini 7v7 pitch Sustain pitch quality through Education Key L L L Protect
School all of good quality. None of the pitches appropriate maintenance regime for SFA Provide
are available for community use. curricular demand. EE
Rugby Three senior pitches of good (M2/D1) Sustain pitch quality through RFU L L L
union quality which are all floodlit and appropriate maintenance regime for ECB
unavailable for community use. curricular demand. EH
Cricket Two good quality grass cricket squares, | Sustain square quality through LTA L L L
one with eight wickets and the second appropriate maintenance regime. EN
with five wickets and an NTP. There is
also a standalone NTP on site.
The squares are available for
community use but are played to
capacity at peak times through
curricular demand.
The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary provision.
Hockey One good quality full-size, hockey Sustain pitch quality through L L L
(AGP) suitable AGP which is floodlit and appropriate maintenance regime.

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

79




o
jab]
«Q
D
=
=
(@))

The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary provision, however, there is a

ancillary facilities.

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN
Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim
ID hierarchy =
tier
under-Lyme (Keele University Sports
Centre)
Tennis Six macadam tennis courts that are Sustain court quality through current L L L
without floodlighting and eight artificial maintenance regime.
tennis courts that are floodlit which are Consider the feasibility of providing a
overmarked on the hockey suitable sports hall for indoor tennis.
AGP. All courts are available for
community use.
The School is applying for planning
permission to create a new sports hall
for indoor tennis although this would
require three macadam tennis courts to
be lost.
Three of the six macadam courts are of
standard quality whilst the remaining
macadam and artificial courts are of
good quality.
Netball Three standard and three good quality Sustain court quality through current L L L
netball courts. maintenance regime.
The School is applying for planning Consider the schools aspiration to
permission to create a new sports hall provide a sports hall for indoor netball.
for indoor netball although this would
require three macadam netball courts to
be lost.
41 | Pool Dam Football Sports club | One youth 11v11, one youth 9v9, one Sustain pitch quality through current Sports Club Local L L L Protect
mini 7v7 and one mini 5v5 pitch, all of maintenance regime. SFA
standard quality. All pitches are Support Newcastle Lads & Dads to FF
currently played to capacity at peak improve pitch quality through enhanced
time. maintenance.
Newcastle Lads & Dads aspire to
improve drainage on site. A PIP from
2019 recommends inspecting the
existing drainage system, investment
into maintenance equipment and
aerating and weed Killing the pitches.
42 | Red Industries Lyme Valley Football Sports club One good quality adult pitch which has Sustain pitch quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
Stadium actual spare capacity although this has | appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
been discounted to preserve pitch FE
quality for Step football.
The site is serviced by standard quality
ancillary facilities.
43 | Red Street Community Football Sports club One adult and one youth 11v11 pitch, Sustain pitch quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
Centre both of good quality. The youth 11v11 appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
pitch is played to capacity at peak times FF
whilst the adult pitch has actual spare
capacity this has been discounted to
preserve pitch quality for Step football.
The site is serviced by standard quality
ancillary facilities.
44 | Redgate Clayton Football Football Council One adult football pitch of poor quality Improve pitch quality through enhanced Council Local H L H Protect
Club which is overplayed by 1.5 match maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
equivalent sessions per week. Support Redgate Clayton FC to improve FF Provide

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

80




/TT obed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

The adult and youth 11v11 pitches are

overplay.

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim

ID hierarchy =

tier
need to install a hard standing area for | Any funding for the above
supporters, floodlights and extended improvements needs to be led by the
changing rooms for ground grading club.
requirements.

45 | Roe Lane Playing Fields Football Sports club Three adult, one youth 11v11, three Sustain pitch quality through Sports Club Strategic M S H Protect
youth 9v9, two mini 7v7 and three mini appropriate maintenance regime. SFA Provide
5v5 pitches, all of good quality. The Look to reallocate fixtures/reconfigure FF
adult, youth 9v9 and mini 5v5 pitches all | pitch types to alleviate overplay on site.
have actual spare capacity, equating to | consider the feasibility of the provision
two, 2.5 and 0.5 match equivalent of a full-size 3G pitch on site.
sessions per week respectively. The
youth 11v11 pitch is overplayed by one
match equivalent session per week
whilst the mini 7v7 pitches are played to
capacity at peak time.

The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.

The LFFP identified the site as a priority
for a full size 3G pitch development.

48 | Seabridge Primary School Football Education One poor quality mini 7v7 pitch which is | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
unavailable for community use. maintenance regime to better SFA

accommodate curricular demand. EE

49 | Silverdale Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
with ten wickets and an NTP. The appropriate maintenance regime. ECB
square is played to capacity at peak Explore creating additional capacity on
times. the site if future demand is actualised.

The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.

53 | St Giles And St George's C Football Education One mini 7v7 pitch of standard quality Sustain pitch quality through Education Local L L L Protect

of E Academy which is unavailable for community use. | appropriate maintenance regime for SFA
curricular demand. FF
54 | St John Fisher Catholic Tennis Education Four macadam tennis courts that are Sustain court quality through Education Local L L L Protect
College unavailable for community use and are | appropriate maintenance regime. LTA
without floodlighting. EN
Netball Three standard quality netball courts Sustain court quality through L L L
that are unavailable for community use | appropriate maintenance regime.
and are without floodlighting.
56 | Stoke City FC Training Football Private Six adult, one youth 11v11, one youth Sustain pitch quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
Ground (Clayton Wood) (Sports Club) | 9v9, three mini 7v7 and two mini 5v5 appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
pitches, all of good quality. The pitches FF
are unavailable for community use.
The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.
Football One full-size, standard quality floodlit Sustain pitch quality through L L L
(3G) 3G pitch which is FIFA registered but appropriate maintenance regime.
unavailable for community use. Ensure sinking fund is in place for
refurbishment/resurfacing when
necessary.
57 | The Gordon Banks Sports Football Education Two adult, one youth 11v11 and one Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Key M S L Protect
Centre youth 9v9 pitch, all of standard quality. maintenance regime to alleviate Enhance

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

81




o
jab]
«Q
D
=
=
(00]

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN
Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim
ID hierarchy =
tier
overplayed by 0.5 and one match Look to formalise community use SFA
equivalent session per week agreement to provide users with FF
respectively, whilst spare capacity on security of tenure.
the youth 9v9 pitch has been
discounted due to unsecure tenure.
The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.
Football One standard quality, full-size, floodlit Improve pitch quality through M M H
(3G) 3G pitch which is available for resurfacing when necessary.
community use. Resurfacing of this Ensure sinking fund is in place for
pitch was identified as a priority project, | refurbishment/resurfacing when
as well as ensuring the pitch features necessary.
on the FA register. Seek to get the pitch featured on the FA
register.

30 | Lower Milehouse Football Council One poor quality adult football pitch Explore the feasibility of creating a multi Council Local H M H Protect
which has actual spare capacity grass pitch hub site to alleviate SFA (potential Enhance
although this has been discounted due identified shortfalls in the area. This EE Hub) Provide
to poor pitch quality. would involve the creation of ancillary

58 | The Wammy Football Council Two poor quality adult football pitches | Provision and improve pitches to a
which are currently unused. The pitches | Minimum standard quality.
have actual spare capacity although this | Explore having an anchor club as a
has been discounted due to quality. Site | tenant on a long term agreement, such
currently is not serviced by ancillary as Newcastle Town FC, in order to
provision. assist in raising funds for ancillary and

pitch improvements in addition to
maintaining the site.

63 | Wolstanton High School Football Education One youth 11v11 and two youth 9v9 Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
which are all of poor quality. All three maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
pitches are played to capacity through Look to formalise community use FF
curricular demand. agreements through security of tenure. ECB

Cricket One poor quality standalone NTP which | Improve wicket quality through LTA L L L
(NTP) is unavailable for community use. Due resurfacing to better accommodate EN
to poor quality, the wicket is now curricular demand.
disused by the School.
Tennis Two macadam courts that were Re-mark tennis if demand arises from L L L
(disused) previously marked for tennis although the School.
are now only marked for netball.
Netball Two poor quality macadam tennis Improve court quality through enhanced L L L
courts that are unavailable for maintenance regime to better
community use. accommodate curricular demand.

69 | Bradwell Lodge Tennis Council One poor quality macadam tennis court | If future demand increases examine the Council Local L L L Protect
which is available for community use feasibility of improving court quality. If LTA Enhance
but without floodlighting. demand does not increase explore BCGBA

alternative potential sporting and SBA
recreational uses.
Bowls One disused bowling green that has Alternative use already determined and
(disused) stopped being maintained due to a lack | leased to local business for dog
of demand. exercise/training.
70 | Chesterton Park Bowls Council One good quality bowling green that is Ensure green quality through sustained Council Local L L L Protect
used by Chesterton BC. levels of dedicated maintenance. BCGBA
Improvements and funding needs to be SBA
led by the Club.
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 82




6TT obed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim

ID hierarchy =

tier
Tennis Previously three tennis courts which Consider alternative sporting or LTA - - - -
(disused) now lie disused. recreational uses.
72 | Knutton Recreation Centre Bowls Councll Four disused macadam tennis courts As there is no local demand identified to Council Local - - - -
Tennis and one bowling green. The site has bring back into use for tennis and bowls BCGBA
; been identified for potential housing (although further evidence of this may LTA
(disused)
development. be required) mitigation for loss of the
The 3G pitch which was previously on site should be to invest in other sites
the site has been relocated the Keele locally.
University Sports Centre. Identify where and if there is demand for
mitigation in line with Sports England
guidance.

75 | London Road Bowling Club Bowls Sports club One good quality bowling green that is Ensure green quality through sustained Sports club Local L L L Protect

used by London Road BC. levels of dedicated maintenance. BCGBA
SBA

77 | Porthill Park Cricket Club Cricket Sports club One good quality grass cricket square Sustain square quality through Sports club Local M L L Protect
with 12 wickets. The square is appropriate maintenance regime. ECB Provide
overplayed by two match sessions per | Consider the feasibility of installing an
season. NTP on site to alleviate overplay.

The site is serviced by good quality
ancillary facilities.

78 | Westlands Sports Centre Tennis Council Ten standard quality macadam tennis Sustain court quality through Council Key H L L Protect
courts that are available for community | appropriate maintenance regime. LTA
use but without floodlighting. Explore methods including LTA BCGBA
There are also two disused atrtificial schemes in order to increase SBA
courts on site with are overgrown with participation on site.
moss and lichen. These where last Explore community appetite to form
formally marked circa 2006. club/manage the site.

The LTA and Council are currently in

discussions regarding re-establishing

participation on site after Westlands TC

(the previous tenants) folded.

Bowls Two good quality bowling greens that Sustain green quality through regular

are used by Westerlands BC. maintenance and retain as current use.
These improvements need to be led by
the club.

80 | Wolstanton Park Tennis Council Four standard quality macadam tennis Sustain court quality through Council Local L L L Protect
courts that are available for community | appropriate maintenance regime. LTA Enhance
use but without floodlighting. BCGBA

Bowls Two standard quality bowling greens Improve green quality with an enhanced SBA
used by Wolstanton Park BC. maintenance regime. These
improvements need to be led by the
club.
81 | Wolstanton High Street Bowls Sports club One standard quality bowling green Improve green quality with an enhanced | Sports club Local L L L Enhance
Club used by Wolstanton High Street BC. maintenance regime. BCGBA
SBA
86 | Bradwell County Primary Football Education One youth 9v9 pitch of poor quality Improve pitch quality to better Education Local L L L Protect
School which is available for community use accommodate curricular demand. SEFA
although it is played to capacity through | Look to formalise community use FF
curricular demand. agreements to provide potential users
with security of tenure.
88 | St Margaret's Junior School Cricket Education One standalone NTP which is Improve wicket quality through Education Local L L L Protect
(NTP) unavailable for community access. The | enhanced maintenance regime or ECB Enhance
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 83




o
jab]
«Q
D
=
N
(@)

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim

ID hierarchy =

tier
wicket is in poor quality due to age and | resurfacing to accommodate curricular
lack of suitable maintenance and is no demand.
longer used.

89 | Basford Lawn Tennis Club Tennis Sports club Four artificial tennis courts that are Sustain and improve court quality Sports Club Local L L M Protect
available for community use and floodlit. | through appropriate maintenance LTA Enhance
Two courts are of good quality whilst regime.
the remaining two courts are of In the longer term, consider the need to
standard quality. refurbish the ancillary facilities.

Ancillary facilities on site are standard
quality and car parking is reported to be
restricted.

90 | Chesterton Primary School Football Education One mini 7v7 pitch of poor quality which | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
is available for community use. The maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
pitch is currently unused by the Look to formalise community use FF
community although spare capacity has | agreement to provide potential users
been discounted due to unsecure with security of tenure.
tenure and poor pitch quality.

91 | Edenhurst Prep School Football Education One standard quality mini 7v7 pitch Sustain pitch quality through Education Local L L L Protect
which is available for community use appropriate maintenance regime. SFA
although spare capacity has been Look to formalise community use FF
discounted due to unsecure tenure. agreement to provide potentia| users

with security of tenure.
Tennis Three artificial tennis courts that are Sustain court quality through L L L
without floodlighting and unavailable for | appropriate maintenance regime to
community use. accommodate curricular demand.

92 | Hempstalls Primary School Football Education Two mini 5v5 pitches of poor quality. Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
The pitches are unused by the maintenance regime. SFA Enhance
community although spare capacity has | ook to formalise community use FF
been discounted due to poor pitch agreement to provide potential users
quality and unsecure tenure. with security of tenure.

94 | St Chad Primary School Football Education One standard quality mini 7v7 pitch Sustain pitch quality through Education Local L L L Protect
which is unavailable for community use. | appropriate maintenance regime for SFA

curricular demand. FE
95 | St Marys Catholic Primary Football Education One poor quality mini 5v5 pitch which is | Improve pitch quality through enhanced Education Local L L L Protect
School unavailable for community use. maintenance regime to better SFA Enhance
accommodate curricular demand. FF

98 | Westlands Primary School Football Education One mini 7v7 and one mini 5v5 pitch, Sustain pitch quality through Education Local L L L Protect
both of standard quality. Both pitches appropriate maintenance regime to SEFA
are unavailable for community use. accommodate curricular demand. FE

103 | Silverdale Park Tennis Council One poor quality macadam tennis court | If future demand increases look to Council Local L L L Protect
which is available for community use improve court quality. LTA Enhance
but without floodlighting. BCGBA

Bowls One disused bowling green that has As there is no demand for the green - - -
(Disused) stopped being maintained due to a lack | explore alternative recreation use.
of demand.
109 | Newcastle under Lyme Golf Golf Sports club One 18 hole course with a practice Sustain course quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
Club area, putting green and good quality appropriate maintenance regime. EG
clubhouse. The Club currently has 433
members.
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 84




T2T obed

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

adult pitch as was stopped being used
due to poor drainage.

1) Use as open space to meet local
needs.

2) Redevelop site and use developer
contributions to improve capacity at
other playing pitch sites in line with
Sport England Playing Field Policy.

Site | Site Sport Management | Current status Recommended actions Partners Site Priority | Timescales | Cost'® Aim
ID hierarchy =
tier
111 | Wolstanton Golf Club Golf Sports club One 18 hole course with a chipping Sustain course quality through Sports Club Local L L L Protect
green, putting green and short game appropriate maintenance regime. EG
practice area. The Club currently has
466 members.
113 | Sheldon Grove Lapsed Council Site has been disused for 10 years and | Use as open space to meet local needs. Council Local - - - -
is now considered lapsed.
114 | Park Road Lapsed Council Site has been disused for 10 years and | Determine future use of the provision Council Local - - - -
is now considered lapsed. It is not based on the following priority order of
currently used due to drainage issues. options:
1) Use as open space to meet local
needs.
2) Redevelop site and use developer
contributions to improve capacity at
other playing pitch sites in line with
Sport England Playing Field Policy.
This site is included in the Keele
masterplan which will determine its
future use.
115 | Conservative Club Bowling Bowls Council Disused bowling green. The Bowling Explore opportunities to bring back into Council Local - - - -
Green (lapsed) Association is not aware of any formal use for alternative uses. BCGBA
play on this site as there are no
affiliated clubs that report use of the
green.
116 | Knype Way Football Council Site has been disused for approximately | Determine future use of the provision Council Local - - - -
(lapsed) eight years and is now considered based on the following priority order of SFA
lapsed. Previously accommodated one | options: FF

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

85




NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

PART 7: HOUSING GROWTH SCENARIOS

The PPS provides an estimate of demand for pitch sports based on population forecasts and
club consultation to 2037 (in line with the emerging Local Plan period). This future demand is
translated into teams likely to be generated, rather than actual pitch provision required. The
Sport England New Development Playing Pitch Calculator (NDC) adds to this, updating the
likely demand generated for pitch sports based on housing increases and converts the
demand into match equivalent sessions and the number of pitches required. This is achieved
via team generation rates (TGRs) in the Assessment Report to determine how many new
teams would be generated from an increase in population derived from housing growth and
gives the associated costs of supplying the increased pitch provision.

Experience shows that only housing sites with 600 dwellings or more are likely to generate
demand for new provision to be created. For large scale developments, it is likely that demand
will be potentially generated for larger sports such as football and/or cricket. Consideration
should be given to providing multi-pitch sites with suitable ancillary provision, including
appropriate clubhouse/changing facilities and carparking. Single pitch sites which have been
provided traditionally by developers are not considered to provide long term sustainable
provision for pitch sports.

Where demand does not warrant new pitch provision, contributions should be used to enhance
existing provision in the locality through, for example, improving quality or providing new or
improved ancillary provision. The Action Plan in this document, as well as consultation with
appropriate NGBs, should be used to assist in the selection of suitable sites and suitable
enhancements.

The scenarios below show the additional demand for pitch sports generated from housing
growth. The demand is shown in match equivalent sessions per week for the majority of sports,
with the exception of cricket, where match equivalent sessions are by season. Training
demand is expressed in either hours or match equivalent sessions. Where expressed in hours,
it is expected that demand will be to either a 3G pitch (to accommodate football demand) or
an AGP (to accommodate hockey demand). Where expressed in match equivalent sessions,
it is expected training will take place on floodlit grass pitches.

The indicative figure assume that population growth will average 2.4 per dwelling. The
indicative figure will be applied to the scenario as follows:

4 Scenario One - additional demand for pitch sports generated from housing growth from
355 dwellings per annum over the emerging Local Plan time period (17 years) for
Newcastle-under-Lyme totalling 6,035 dwellings.

4 Scenario Two - additional demand for pitch sports generated from housing growth from
410 dwellings per annum over the emerging Local Plan time period (17 years) for
Newcastle-under-Lyme totalling 6,970 dwellings.

<« Scenario Three - additional demand for pitch sports generated from housing growth from
445 dwellings per annum over the emerging Local Plan time period (17 years) for
Newcastle-under-Lyme totalling 7,565 dwellings.

Please note that scenarios take into consideration training demand for the individual sports
which will give an exact requirement for provision required by housing growth.

In addition, the examples of the Sport England New Development Playing Pitch Calculator
used in each of the abovementioned scenarios have been provided on the basis that there is

Page 122

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 86



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

no adjustment in future demand (from participation growth) over and above population growth.
It is suggested that this is monitored and updated as part of the Stage E review to monitor the
impact of the ongoing COVID 19 pandemic and its likely impact on future participation levels.

Page 123
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 87



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Scenario One

The estimated additional population derived from housing growth from 6,035 dwellings with
an occupancy rate of 2.4 per household is 14,484 people.

This population increase equates to 12.39 match equivalent sessions of demand per week for
grass pitch sports, 1.17 match equivalent sessions of demand per week on AGPs for hockey
and 99.11 match equivalent sessions of demand per season for cricket.

Training demand equates to 23.05 hours of use per week for football on 3G pitches and hockey
equates to 2.15 hours of use per week on AGPs. There are also 0.95 match equivalent
sessions per week of training for rugby union on a floodlit grass pitch.

Table 7.1: Likely demand for grass pitch sports generated from 6,035 dwellings

Pitch sport Estimated demand by sport for 6,035 dwellings
Match demand (MES) per week? Training demand?®
Adult football 2.95 23.05 hours
Youth football 5.18
Mini soccer 3.40
Rugby union 0.86 0.95 match equivalent sessions
Adult hockey 0.61 1.84 hours
Junior & mixed hockey 0.56 0.31 hours
Cricket 99.11 -

The table below translates estimated demand into new pitch provision with associated capital
and lifestyle costs.

Table 7.2: Estimated demand and costs for new pitch provision

Pitch type Estimated demand and costs for new pitches Changing rooms
Number of Capital Lifecycle Number Capital
pitches to meet cost?? Cost (per cost
demand annum)?
Adult football 3 (2.95) £268,540 £56,662 5.9 £926,462
Youth football 5 (5.18) £376,969 £79,164 6.9 £1,083,786
Mini soccer 3 (3.40) £77,269 £16,226 0 £0
Rugby union 1(0.86) £109,949 £23,529 1.73 £270,947
Cricket 2 (2.10) £562,649 £113,655 4.19 £658,013
Sand based 0 (0.15) £115,649 £3,585 0.31 £48,071
AGPs
3G 1(0.61) £549,253 £22,332 1.21 £190,445
Total 15 £2,060,278 £315,153 20.24 £3,177,724

20 As per the PPS Guidance, demand for cricket is considered in terms of match equivalent sessions per season
rather than per week.

21 Hours equate to access to a full size floodlit 3G pitch or hockey suitable AGP

22 Sport England Facilities Costs Second Quarter 2020 — (https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-
and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/)

23 Lifecycle costs are based on the % of the total project cost per annum as set out in Sport England’s Life Cycle
Costs Natural Turf Pitches and Atrtificial Surfaces documents (2012)

Page 124
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 88



https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/
https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Scenario Two

The estimated additional population derived from housing growth from 6,970 dwellings with
an occupancy rate of 2.4 per household is 16,728 people.

This population increase equates to 14.31 match equivalent sessions of demand per week for
grass pitch sports, 1.35 match equivalent sessions of demand per week on AGPs for hockey
and 114.46 match equivalent sessions of demand per season for cricket.

Training demand equates to 26.62 hours of use per week for football on 3G pitches and hockey
equates to 2.48 hours of use per week on AGPs. There are also 1.09 match equivalent
sessions per week of training for rugby union on a floodlit grass pitch.

Table 7.3: Likely demand for grass pitch sports generated from 6,970 dwellings

Pitch sport Estimated demand by sport for 6,970 dwellings
Match demand (MES) per week?®* Training demand?®
Adult football 3.41 26.62 hours
Youth football 5.98
Mini soccer 3.92
Rugby union 1.00 1.09 match equivalent sessions
Adult hockey 0.71 2.12 hours
Junior & mixed hockey 0.64 0.36 hours
Cricket 114.46 -

The table below translates estimated demand into new pitch provision with associated capital
and lifestyle costs.

Table 7.4: Estimated demand and costs for new pitch provision

Pitch type Estimated demand and costs for new Changing rooms
pitches
Number of Capital Lifecycle Number Capital
pitches to meet cost?® Cost (per cost
demand annum)?’

Adult football 3(3.41) £310,145 £65,441 6.82 £1,069,999
Youth football 6 (5.98) £435,373 £91,428 7.97 £1,251,697
Mini soccer 4 (3.92) £89,240 £18,740 0 £0
Rugby union 1(1.00) £126,984 £27,175 1.99 £312,924
Cricket 2 (2.42) £649,820 £131,264 4.84 £759,959
Sand based 0 (0.18) £133,567 £4,141 0.35 £55,519
AGPs
3G 1(0.70) £634,349 £25,792 14 £219,950
Total 17 £2,379,925 £363,981 23.37 £3,670,048

24 As per the PPS Guidance, demand for cricket is considered in terms of match equivalent sessions per season
rather than per week.
25 Hours equate to access to a full size floodlit 3G pitch or hockey suitable AGP
26 Sport England Facilities Costs Second Quarter 2020 — (https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-
and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/)
27 Lifecycle costs are based on the % of the total project cost per annum as set out in Sport England’s Life Cycle
Costs Natural Turf Pitches and Atrtificial Surfaces documents (2012)
Page 125

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 89



https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/
https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Scenario Three

The estimated additional population derived from housing growth from 7,565 dwellings with
an occupancy rate of 2.4 per household is 18,156 people.

This population increase equates to 15.53 match equivalent sessions of demand per week for
grass pitch sports, 1.47 match equivalent sessions of demand per week on AGPs for hockey
and 124.23 match equivalent sessions of demand per season for cricket.

Training demand equates to 28.90 hours of use per week for football on 3G pitches and hockey
equates to 2.69 hours of use per week on AGPs. There are also 1.19 match equivalent
sessions per week of training for rugby union on a floodlit grass pitch.

Table 7.5: Likely demand for grass pitch sports generated from 7,565 dwellings

Pitch sport Estimated demand by sport for 7,565 dwellings
Match demand (MES) per week?® Training demand?®®
Adult football 3.70 28.90 hours
Youth football 6.49
Mini soccer 4.26
Rugby union 1.08 1.19 match equivalent sessions
Adult hockey 0.77 2.30 hours
Junior & mixed hockey 0.70 0.39 hours
Cricket 124.23 -

The table below translates estimated demand into new pitch provision with associated capital
and lifestyle costs.

Table 7.6: Estimated demand and costs for new pitch provision

Pitch type Estimated demand and costs for new Changing rooms
pitches
Number of Capital Lifecycle Number Capital
pitches to meet cost® Cost (per cost
demand annum)s?

Adult football 4 (3.70) £336,620 £71,027 7.4 £1,161,340
Youth football 6 (6.49) £472,539 £99,233 8.65 £1,358,549
Mini soccer 4 (4.26) £96,858 £20,340 0 £0
Rugby union 1(1.08) £137,824 £29,494 2.16 £339,637
Cricket 3(2.63) £705,292 £142,469 5.25 £824,833
Sand based 0(0.19) £144,969 £4,494 0.38 £60,258
AGPs
3G 1(0.76) £688,501 £27,994 1.52 £238,726
Total 19 £2,582,603 £395,051 25.36 £3,983,343

28 As per the PPS Guidance, demand for cricket is considered in terms of match equivalent sessions per season
rather than per week.

2% Hours equate to access to a full size floodlit 3G pitch or hockey suitable AGP

30 Sport England Facilities Costs Second Quarter 2020 — (https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-
and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/)

31 Lifecycle costs are based on the % of the total project cost per annum as set out in Sport England’s Life Cycle
Costs Natural Turf Pitches and Atrtificial Surfaces documents (2012)

Page 126

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 90


https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/
https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Conclusions

Each of the above scenarios indicate that through housing growth, demand will be generated
for each pitch sport (with the exception of rugby league) to a lesser or greater extent. That
being said, the scenarios are based on accumulative demand for housing across Newcastle-
under-Lyme over the lifespan of the emerging Local Plan. Therefore, it must be noted that this
increase in demand will be gradual.

Experience shows that only significantly large housing sites are likely to generate demand in
their own right; however, the cumulative impact of housing across the local authority will result
in substantial demand generated across the local authority and in each analysis area. For
Newcastle-under-Lyme it is recommended that priority should be placed on improving the
guality of playing and ancillary provision of current sites in addition to the exploration of multi
pitch hub sites, particularly in the locality of areas with large scale housing development.

For smaller developments not requiring on site provision, contributions should be focused on
improving existing sites or the potential pooling of housing monies for larger scale investments
into hub sites or the creation/refurbishment of more expensive projects involving 3G or hockey
suitable AGPs. This is due to single pitch sites, which have been provided traditionally by
developers, not being considered to provide long term sustainable provision for pitch sports.
The preceding Action Plan and future consultation with NGBs should inform the playing fields
that most require investment.

Page 127
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 91



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

PART 8: DELIVER THE STRATEGY AND KEEP IT ROBUST AND UP TO DATE
Delivery

The PPS provides guidance for maintenance/management decisions and investment made
across Newcastle-under-Lyme. By addressing issues identified in the Assessment Report and
using the strategic framework presented in this Strategy, the current and future sporting and
recreational needs of the Authority can be met. The Strategy identifies where there is a
deficiency in provision and identifies how best to resolve this in the future.

Production of this Strategy is the start of the planning process. Successful implementation and
the benefits to be gained depend upon regular engagement between all partners involved and
the adoption of a mutually bought into strategic approach. It is important that this document is
used in a practical manner, supports engagement with partners and encourages partnerships
to be developed. This is to ensure that outdoor sports facilities are regarded as a vital aspect
of community life and which contribute to the achievement of Council priorities.

Each member of the Steering Group should take the lead to ensure the PPS is used and
applied appropriately within their area of work and influence. The role of the Steering Group
should not end with the completion of the Strategy and Action Plan.

To help ensure that the PPS is well used it should be regarded as the key document within
the study area guiding the improvement and protection of playing pitch provision. It needs to
be the document to which people and agencies regularly turn to for information in respect of
how current demand should be met and what actions are required to improve the situation and
meet future demand. To ensure that this is achieved the Steering Group need to have a clear
understanding of how the PPS can be applied and therefore delivered.

The process of PPS development has already led to a number of benefits that assist its
application and delivery. These include enhanced partnership work across different agendas
and organisations, pooling of resources along with strengthened relationships and
understanding between stakeholders, members of the Steering Group and the sporting
community. The drivers behind the PPS and the work to develop the recommendations and
action plan will have also highlighted, and helped the Steering Group to understand, the key
areas to which its influence should be applied and strategy delivered enhanced.

Monitoring and updating

It is important that as part of the Stage E process there is need for regular annual monitoring
and review against the actions identified in the Strategy. This is particularly pertinent due to
the ongoing COVID19 Pandemic (March 2020) which is expected to continue to have a direct
impact on participation and funding streams across all sports.

In the case of the Newcastle-under-Lyme PPS, it is advised the documents are reviewed within
12 months of adoption by the Council to further understand the impact of COVID 19 on the
demand for outdoor sports. Depending on the outcomes of the PPS review, there may be a
need to carry out alterations to the strategic recommendations within this document or add
new recommendations.

As mentioned in Part 7: Housing Growth Scenarios, it is also suggested that any usage of
Newcastle-under-Lyme’s New Development Playing Pitch Calculator should be carried out as
part of a Stage E review and updated following consultation with the NGBs in relation to
adjusting future demand from participation.

Page 128
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 92



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

This should be led by the Council and supported by all members of, and reported back to, the
Steering Group. Understanding and learning lessons from how the PPS has been applied
should be a key component of monitoring its delivery and be an on-going role of the steering

group.

As a guide, if no review and subsequent update has been carried out within three years of the
PPS being signed off by the steering group, Sport England and the NGBs will consider the
PPS and the information on which it is based to be out of date.

The nature of the supply and in particular the demand for outdoor sports facilities will likely to
have changed over the three years. Therefore, without any form of review and update within
this time period it would be difficult to make the case that the supply and demand information
and assessment work is sufficiently robust.

A review should not be regarded as a particular resource intensive task. However, it should
highlight:

4 How delivery of the recommendations and action plan has progressed and any changes
required to the priority afforded to each action (e.g. the priority of some may increase or
reduce following the delivery of others).

< How the PPS has been applied and the lessons learnt.

< Any changes to particularly important sites and/or clubs in the area (e.g. the most used
or high quality sites for a particular sport) and other supply and demand information, what
this may mean for the overall assessment work and the key findings and issues.

< Any development of a specific sport or particular format of a sport.

< Any new or emerging issues and opportunities.

< Impact of COVID 19.

Once the PPS is complete the role of the Steering Group should evolve so that it:

4 Acts as a focal point for promoting the value and importance of the PPS provision in the
area.

< Monitors, evaluates and reviews progress with the delivery of the recommendations and
action plan.

4 Shares lessons learnt from how the PPS has been used and how it has been applied to
a variety of circumstances.

< Ensures that the PPS is used effectively to input into any new opportunities to secure
improved provision and influence relevant programmes and initiatives.

< Maintains links between relevant parties with an interest in local outdoor sports provision;

< Reviews the need to update the PPS along with the supply and demand information and
assessment work on which it is based. Further to review the group should either:

<4 Provide a short annual progress and update paper

< Provide a partial review focussing on particular sport, pitch type and/or sub area; or

< Lead a full review and update of the PPS document (including the supply and demand
information and assessment details).

Page 129
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 93



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Alongside regular Steering Group meetings a good way to keep the PPS up to date and
maintain relationships is to hold annual sport specific meetings with pitch sport NGBs and
other relevant parties. These could be part of a process of updating key supply and demand
information plus, if necessary, amending assessment work, tracking progress in respect of
implementing action plan recommendations and highlighting new issues and opportunities.

Meetings could be timed to coincide with annual NGB affiliation processes. This would help to
signal changes in the number and nature of sports clubs in the area. Other information that is
already collected on a regular basis such as pitch booking records for local authority and other
sites should also feed into these meetings.

NGBs will also be able to confirm any further performance quality assessments undertaken
within the study area. Discussions with league secretaries may also indicate annual league
meetings may be useful to attend to pick up on specific issues and/or enable a review of the
relevant club details to be undertaken.

The Steering Group should also regularly review and refresh the Action Plan, taking account
of any changes in pitch quality (and hence changes in pitch capacity) and demand as well as
new provision that has been created or any new negotiations for community use of education
sites in the future.

It is important that the Council maintains the data contained within the accompanying PPS
database. This will enable it to refresh and update the work on a regular basis. The
accompanying database is intended to be refreshed on a season by season basis and it is
important that there is cross-departmental work encompassing, for example, grounds
maintenance and sports development departments, to ensure that this is achieved and that
results inform subsequent annual sports facility development plans. Results should be shared
with partners via a consultative mechanism.

Page 130

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 94



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Checklists

In order for this Strategy to be signed off by the steering group, a Stage D Checklist: Develop
the Strategy, is signed off.

Stage D Checklist: Develop the Strategy

Step 7: Develop the recommendations and action plan

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
17.

18.

Have a number of study area specific scenarios been looked at to help
explore key issues and findings along with possible recommendations
and actions?

Have any recommendations and actions regarding AGP provision taken
into account the guidance in the ‘Selecting the Right Artificial Surface’
document and any NGB specific information?

Do the recommendations reflect the drivers, vision and objectives of the
work?

Are the recommendations precise enough to enable the development of
clear individual area, sport and site specific actions to help achieve them?

Have all relevant parties been engaged with the development of, and are
signed up to the delivery of, the recommendations and actions?

Are the recommendations and actions clearly presented?

Has particular attention been paid to the situation at priority sites and
those which are being significantly overplayed?

Have area, sport and site specific solutions been proposed to protect,
enhance, and provide playing pitch provision to meet the current and
future demand?

Has guidance on the future of any sites highlighted as being at risk been
provided?

Do the recommendations and actions seek to make the best use of
existing pitches?

Has the detriment and benefit of proposals to relocate provision been
presented?

Has the level and type of any new playing pitch provision required been
presented?

Has the importance of providing appropriate and fit for purpose ancillary
facilities been highlighted in order to maximise the potential benefit to
sport of any pitches?

Have the recommendations sought to ensure an adequate amount of
spare capacity in the provision of accessible pitches with secured
community use?

Does the PPS provide a steer as to the future of any spare capacity and
any provision that may be genuinely surplus to requirements (paragraphs
D12 to D15)?

Does the action plan cover the points listed in paragraph D17?

Does the action plan provide the most appropriate actions to improve
provision in the study area rather than just those which the local authority
can deliver?

Does the action plan represent an infrastructure plan for playing pitches
with deliverable area, sport and site specific actions and projects?

Step 8: Write and Adopt the Strategy

1.

Does the PPS document provide the reader with a clear understanding of
the areas listed in paragraph D207

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

Yes

v

v

V.\\’/f

Tick "

Requires
Attention

Page 131
95



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Is it clear from the PPS document why the recommendations and actions | <~

have been included, how they are to be delivered and what they will
achieve?

Does the PPS document indicate how it should be used and applied in
different areas and circumstances along with the benefits of doing so?

Has the PPS document been subject to appropriate consultation?

Do all members of the steering group and other relevant parties endorse

~

~
~

the PPS and recognise its lead role in guiding the improvement of pitches

in the study area?

Has the PPS document been formally adopted by the local authority and

is its status recognised across all relevant departments?

~

To help ensure the PPS is delivered and is kept robust and up to date, the steering group can
refer to the new methodology Stage E Checklist: Deliver the strategy and keep it robust and
up to date:

Stage E: Deliver the strategy and keep it robust and up to date

Tick %

Yes Requires
Attention

Step 9: Apply & deliver the strategy
1.

Are steering group members clear on how the PPS can be applied
across a range of relevant areas?

Is each member of the steering group committed to taking the lead to
help ensure the PPS is used and applied appropriately within their
area of work and influence?

Has a process been put in place to ensure regular monitoring of how
the recommendations and action plan are being delivered and the
PPS is being applied?

Step 10: Keep the strategy robust & up to date
1.

Has a process been put in place to ensure the PPS is kept robust and
up to date?

Does the process involve an annual update of the PPS?

Is the steering group to be maintained and is it clear of its on-going
role?

Is regular liaison with the NGBs and other parties planned?

Has all the supply and demand information been collated and
presented in a format (i.e. single document that can be filtered
accordingly) that will help people to review it and highlight any
changes?

Have any changes made to the Active Places Power data been fed
back to Sport England?

For more information, see:
https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/facilities-and-planning/planning-for-sport

Page 132

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page

96


https://www.sportengland.org/how-we-can-help/facilities-and-planning/planning-for-sport

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

APPENDIX ONE: FUNDING PLAN

Funding opportunities

Please note that due to the ongoing COVID-19 Pandemic (2020) the below funding
opportunities may alter or become less prevalent in the forthcoming years as NGBs
prioritise new methods of funding as a reaction to the developing situation.

In order to deliver much of the Action Plan, it is recognised that external partner funding will
need to be sought. Although seeking developer contributions in applicable situations and other
local funding/community schemes could go some way towards meeting deficiencies and/or
improving provision, other potential/match sources of funding should be investigated. Below
is a list of current funding sources that are relevant for community improvement projects

involving sports facilities.

Awarding body

Description

Big Lottery Fund
http://www.biglotteryfund.org.uk/

Big invests in community groups and to projects that
improve health, education and the environment. For
example, Awards for All which is for small Lottery
grants of between £300 and £10,000.

Sport England

The current funding streams may change
throughout 2018/19 so refer to the website
for the latest information:
http://funding.sportengland.org/funding/our-
different-funds/

Sport England is keen to marry funding with other
organisations that provide financial support to create
and strengthen the best sports projects. Applicants
are encouraged to maximise the levels of other
sources of funding, and projects that secure higher
levels of partnership funding are more likely to be
successful.

Football Foundation

http://www.footballfoundation.org.uk/fundin
g-schemes/

This trust provides financial help for football at all
levels, from national stadia and FA Premier League
clubs down to grass-roots local development.

Rugby Football Foundation
http://www.rugbyfootballfoundation.org/inde

X.php?option=com _content&view=article&i
d=14&Itemid=113

The Grant Match Scheme in particular provides easy-
to-access grant funding for playing projects that
contribute to the recruitment and retention of
community rugby players. Grants are available on a
‘match funding’ 50:50 basis to support a proposed
project.

Projects eligible for funding include:

1. Pitch Facilities — Playing surface improvement,
pitch improvement, rugby posts, floodlights.

2. Club House Facilities — Changing rooms, shower
facilities, washroom/lavatory, and measures to
facilitate segregation (e.g. women, juniors).

3. Equipment — Large capital equipment, pitch
maintenance capital equipment (e.g. mowers).
Other loan schemes are also available.

The England and Wales Cricket Trust

https://www.ecb.co.uk/be-involved/club-
support/club-funding

Interest Free Loan Scheme provides finance to clubs
for capital projects and the Small Grant Scheme is
also open to applications from affiliated cricket clubs.

December 2020

Page 133

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 97


http://www.biglotteryfund.org.uk/
http://funding.sportengland.org/funding/our-different-funds/
http://funding.sportengland.org/funding/our-different-funds/
http://www.footballfoundation.org.uk/funding-schemes/
http://www.footballfoundation.org.uk/funding-schemes/
http://www.rugbyfootballfoundation.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=14&Itemid=113
http://www.rugbyfootballfoundation.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=14&Itemid=113
http://www.rugbyfootballfoundation.org/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=14&Itemid=113
https://www.ecb.co.uk/be-involved/club-support/club-funding
https://www.ecb.co.uk/be-involved/club-support/club-funding

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL

STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Awarding body

Description

Rugby Football League
https://www.rlwc2021.com/facilities

Rugby League World Cup 2021 Capital Facilities
legacy funding. Small Grants Scheme awards grants of
up to £15,000 for the provision of capital items, kit and
equipment or to refurbish/improve existing facilities.
Large capital grants programme of £15,000 plus
focused on supporting the development of new or
refurbished local rugby league facilities.

The programme is split into four themes:

1. Welcoming environments

2. More players

3. Community engagement

4. Innovation fund

National Hockey Foundation

http://www.thenationalhockeyfoundation.co
m/

The Foundation primarily makes grants to a wide
range of organisations that meet one of the areas of
focus: Young people and hockey, Enabling the
development of hockey at youth or community level.

LTA Transforming British Tennis Together

https://www.lta.org.uk/workforce-
venues/tennis-venue-support/tennis-facility-

funding-and-advice/transforming-british-
tennis-together/

Transforming British Tennis Together (TBTT) is the
largest capital investment programme the LTA has
undertaken. It aims to invest £125 million over the next
ten years in tennis facilities which it hopes can be
match funded by partners to bring £250 million into the
sport.

BCGBA grants
https://www.bcgba.org.uk/grants/

Provided a club is subscribed to the BCGBA it can
apply for a grant a range of ancillary issues, providing
it has not already received one in the previous five
years.

Protecting Playing Fields

Sport England’s Strategy: Towards an Active Nation (2016-2021) will simplify the funding
reducing the number of investment programmes from 30 to 7:

Tackling Inactivity
Children and Young People
Volunteering

Supporting sports core markets
Local delivery
Creating welcoming sports facilities

A A A A A A A

Taking sport and activity into the mass market

The current funding streams listed below will remain operational during 2016/17 but will be
phased out and replaced by one or more of the seven listed above.

It launched Protecting Playing Fields (PPF) as part of its Places People Play Olympic legacy
mass participation programme and is investing £10 million of National Lottery funding in

community sports projects.

Page 134

December 2020

Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 98



https://www.rlwc2021.com/facilities
http://www.thenationalhockeyfoundation.com/
http://www.thenationalhockeyfoundation.com/
https://www.lta.org.uk/workforce-venues/tennis-venue-support/tennis-facility-funding-and-advice/transforming-british-tennis-together/
https://www.lta.org.uk/workforce-venues/tennis-venue-support/tennis-facility-funding-and-advice/transforming-british-tennis-together/
https://www.lta.org.uk/workforce-venues/tennis-venue-support/tennis-facility-funding-and-advice/transforming-british-tennis-together/
https://www.lta.org.uk/workforce-venues/tennis-venue-support/tennis-facility-funding-and-advice/transforming-british-tennis-together/
https://www.bcgba.org.uk/grants/

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

The programme is being delivered via five funding rounds (with up to £2 million being awarded
to projects in each round). Its focus is on protecting and improving playing fields and
developing community sport. It will fund capital projects that create, develop and improve
playing fields for sporting and community use and offer long-term protection of the site for
sport. Projects are likely to involve the construction of new pitches or improvement of existing
ones that need levelling or drainage works.

Sport England’s Community Asset Fund®? programme will be delivered via funding rounds and
replaced its previous Inspired Facilities Fund. The Community Asset Fund opened in late
January 2017 with an annual budget of £15 million, anticipating funding applications to range
anywhere from £1000 to £150,000.

A key difference of the new programme is that it not only aims to support improvement of
facilities within traditional sports clubs and recreational or sporting environments, but seeks
explore new ways to invest in communities where improvement of facilities can offer wider
benefit for not just sporting groups but other physical activities and local organisations which
use or could use the site. The change in approach reflects the Towards an Active Nation
Strategy and a contribution to delivering the five outcomes: physical wellbeing, mental
wellbeing, individual development, social and community development and economic
development.

The four main aims of the Community Asset Fund programme are:

4 Improve and protect existing sports facilities that support the needs of local communities

<« Investin new and different places that meet the needs of local communities, which include
our target audiences

4 Ensure our capital investment reaches organisations who have not accessed our funding
before

< Create a more resilient, sustainable, less grant dependent sport sector

Strategic Facilities Fund

Facilities are fundamental in providing more people with the opportunity to play sport. The
supply of the right facilities in the right areas is key to getting more people to play sport. Sport
England recognises the considerable financial pressures that local authorities are currently
under and the need to strategically review and rationalise leisure stock so that cost effective
and financially sustainable provision is available in the long-term. Sport England has a key
role to play in the sector, from influencing the local strategic planning and review of sports
facility provision to investing in major capital projects of strategic importance.

The Strategic Facilities Fund will direct capital investment into a number of key local authority
projects that are identified through a strategic needs assessment and that have maximum
impact on growing and sustaining community sport participation. These projects will be
promoted as best practice in the delivery of quality and affordable facilities, whilst
demonstrating long-term operational efficiencies. The fund will support projects that bring
together multiple partners, including input from the public and private sectors and national
governing bodies of sport (NGBs). The fund is also designed to encourage applicants and
their partners to invest further capital and revenue funding to ensure sustainability. Sport
England has allocated a budget of circa £30m of Lottery funding to award through this fund
(2013-17).

32 https://www.sportengland.org/media/11425/community-asset-fund-guide-january-2017.pdf

Page 135
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 99


https://www.sportengland.org/media/11425/community-asset-fund-guide-january-2017.pdf

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Key features which applications must demonstrate are:

4 A robust needs and evidence base which illustrates the need for the project and the
proposed facility mix

<« Strong partnerships which will last beyond the initial development of the project and
underpin the long-term sustainability of the facility

< Multi-sport provision and activity that demonstrates delivery against NGB local priorities

< A robust project plan from inception to completion with achievable milestones and
timescales.

Lottery applications will be invited on a solicited-only basis and grants of between £500,000
and £2,000,000 will be considered.

The Strategic Facilities Fund will prioritise projects that:

4 Are large-scale capital developments identified as part of a local authority sports facility
strategic needs assessment/rationalisation programme and that will drive a significant
increase in community sports participation

< Demonstrate consultation/support from two or more NGBs and delivery against their local
priorities

<« Are multi-sport facilities providing opportunities to drive high participant numbers

<« Are a mix of facility provision (indoor and/or outdoor) to encourage regular and sustained
use by a large number of people

< Offer an enhancement, through modernisation, to existing provision and/or new build
facilities

< Have a long-term sustainable business plan attracting public and private investment

< Show quality in design, but are fit for purpose to serve the community need

< Have effective and efficient operating models, combined with a commitment to
development programmes which will increase participation and provide talent pathways.

Projects will need to demonstrate how the grant will deliver against Sport England’s strategic
priorities. The funding available is for the development of the capital infrastructure, which can
contribute to the costs of new build, modernisation or refurbishment and purchasing of major
fixed equipment as part of the facility development.

Funder’s requirements

Below is a list of funding requirements that can typically be expected to be provided as part of
a funding bid, some of which will fall directly out of the Playing Pitch Strategy:

Identify need (i.e., why the Project is needed) and how the Project will address it.
Articulate what difference the Project will make.

Identify benefits, value for money and/or added value.

Provide baseline information (i.e., the current situation).

Articulate how the Project is consistent with local, regional and national policy.
Financial need and project cost.

Funding profile (i.e., Who's providing what? Unit and overall costs).

Technical information and requirements (e.g., planning permission).

Targets, outputs and/or outcomes (i.e., the situation after the Project/what the Project will
achieve)

Evidence of support from partners and stakeholders.

< Background/essential documentation (e.g., community use agreement).

4 Assessment of risk.

A A A A A A A A A

-~

Page 136
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 100



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Indicative costs

The indicative costs of implementing key elements of the Action Plan can be found on the
Sport England website:

https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-quidance/cost-guidance/

The costs are for the development of community sports facilities and are based on providing
good quality sports facility based on the last quarter. The Facilities Costs are updated on the
Sport England website every quarter These rounded costs are based on schemes most
recently funded through the Lottery (and therefore based on economies of scale), updated to
reflect current forecast price indices provided by the Building Cost Information Service (BCIS),
prepared by Technical Team Lead of Sport England.

Page 137

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 101


https://www.sportengland.org/facilities-planning/design-and-cost-guidance/cost-guidance/

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

APPENDIX TWO: GLOSSARY

Capacity is the amount of play a site can regularly accommodate (in the relevant comparable
unit) for community use without adversely affecting its quality and use. This is typically
outlined by the NGB

Overplay is when a pitch is used over the amount that the carrying capacity will allow, (i.e.
more than the site can accommodate). Pitches have a limit of how much play they can
accommodate over a certain period of time before their quality, and in turn their use, is
adversely affected.

Spare capacity is the amount of additional play that a pitch could potentially accommodate in
additional to current activity. There may be reasons why this potential to accommodate
additional play should not automatically be regarded as actual spare capacity, for example, a
site may be managed to regularly operate slightly below its carrying capacity to ensure that it
can cater for a number of friendly matches and training activity. This needs to be investigated
before the capacity is deemed actual spare capacity.

Match equivalent sessions is an appropriate comparable unit for pitch usage. For football,
rugby union and rugby league, pitches should relate to a typical week within the season and
one match = one match equivalent session if it occurs every week or 0.5 match equivalent
sessions if it occurs every other week (i.e. reflecting home and away fixtures). For cricket
pitches, it is appropriate to look at the number of match equivalent sessions over the course
of a season and one match = one match equivalent session.

Displaced demand generally relates to play by teams or other users of playing pitches from
within the study area (i.e. from residents of the study area) which takes place outside of the
area. This may be due to issues with the provision of pitches and ancillary facilities in the
study area, just reflective of how the sports are played (e.g. at a central venue for the wider
area) or due to the most convenient site for the respective users just falling outside of the local
authority/study area.

Unmet demand is demand that is known to exist but unable to be accommodated on current
supply of pitches. This could be in the form of a team with access to a pitch for matches but
nowhere to train or vice versa. This could also be due to the poor quality and therefore limited
capacity of pitches in the area and/or a lack of provision and ancillary facilities which meet a
certain standard of play/league requirement. League secretaries may be aware of some
unmet demand as they may have declined applications from teams wishing to enter their
competitions due to a lack of pitch provision which in turn is hindering the growth of the league.

Latent demand is demand that evidence suggests may be generated from the current
population should they have access to more or better provision. This could include feedback
from a sports club who may feel that they could set up and run an additional team if they had
access to better provision.

Future demand is an informed estimate made of the likely future demand for pitches in the
study area. This is generally based on the most appropriate current and future population
projections for the relevant age and gender groupings for each sport. Key trends, local
objectives and targets and consultation also inform this figure.

Page 138
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 102



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

Casual use or other use could take place on natural grass pitches or AGPs and include:

Regular play from non-sports club sources (e.g. companies, schools, fithess classes)
Infrequent informal/friendly matches

Informal training sessions

More casual forms of a particular sport organised by sports clubs or other parties
Significant public use and informal play, particularly where pitches are located in
parks/recreation grounds.

A A A A A

Page 139
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 103



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

APPENDIX THREE: SPORTING CONTEXT

The following section outlines a series of national, regional and local policies pertaining to the
study and which will have an important influence on the Strategy.

National context

The provision of high quality and accessible community outdoor sports facilities at a local level
is a key requirement for achieving the targets set out by the Government and Sport England.
It is vital that this strategy is cognisant of and works towards these targets in addition to local
priorities and plans.

Department of Media Culture and Sport Sporting Future: A New Strategy for an Active
Nation (2015)

The Government published its strategy for sport in December 2015. This strategy confirms the
recognition and understanding that sport makes a positive difference through broader means
and that it will help the sector to deliver five simple but fundamental outcomes: physical health,
mental health, individual development, social and community development and economic
development. In order to measure its success in producing outputs which accord with these
aims it has also adopted a series of 23 performance indicators under nine key headings, as
follows:

More people taking part in sport and physical activity.

More people volunteering in sport.

More people experiencing live sport.

Maximising international sporting success.

Maximising domestic sporting success.

Maximising domestic sporting success.

A more productive sport sector.

A more financially and organisationally sustainable sport sector.
A more responsible sport sector.

A A A A A A A A A

Sport England: Towards an Active Nation (2016-2021)

Sport England’s five year strategy ‘Towards an Active Nation’ aims to target the 28% of people
who do less than 30 minutes of exercise each week and will focus on the least active groups;
typically women, the disabled and people from lower socio-economic backgrounds.

Sport England will invest up to £30m on a plan to increase the number of volunteers in
grassroots sport. Emphasis will be on working with a larger range of partners with less money
being directed towards National Governing Bodies.

The Strategy will help deliver against the five health, social and economic outcomes set out in
the Government’s Sporting Future strategy.

Physical Wellbeing

Mental Wellbeing

Individual Development

Social & Community Development
Economic Development

A A A A A

Page 140
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 104



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

National Planning Policy Framework (2019)

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out planning policies for England. It details
how these changes are expected to be applied to the planning system. It also provides a
framework for local people and their councils to produce distinct local and neighbourhood plans,
reflecting the needs and priorities of local communities.

The NPPF states the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of
sustainable development. It identifies that the planning system needs to focus on three themes
of sustainable development: economic, social and environmental. A presumption in favour of
sustainable development is a key aspect for any plan-making and decision-taking processes. In
relation to plan-making the NPPF sets out that Local Plans should meet objectively assessed
needs.

The ‘promoting healthy communities’ theme identifies that planning policies should be based on
robust and up-to-date assessments of the needs for open space, sports and recreation facilities
and opportunities for new provision. Specific needs and quantitative or qualitative deficiencies
or surpluses in local areas should also be identified. This information should be used to inform
what provision is required in an area.

As a prerequisite the NPPF states existing open space, sports and recreation buildings and land,
including playing fields, should not be built on unless:

4 An assessment has been undertaken, which has clearly shown that the open space,
buildings or land is surplus to requirements.

< The loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or
better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location.

4 The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the needs for which
clearly outweigh the loss.

In order for planning policies to be ‘sound’ local authorities are required to carry out a robust
assessment of need for open space, sport and recreation facilities.

The FA National Football Facilities Strategy (2018-28)

The Football Association’s (FA) National Football Facilities Strategy (NFFS) provides a
strategic framework that sets out key priorities and targets for the national game (i.e., football)
over a ten-year period.

The Strategy sets out shared aims and objectives it aims to deliver on in conjunction with The
Premier League, Sport England and the Government, to be delivered with support of the
Football Foundation.

These stakeholders have clearly identified the aspirations for football to contribute directly to
nationally important social and health priorities. Alongside this, the strategy is clear that
traditional, affiliated football remains an important priority and a core component of the game,
whilst recognising and supporting the more informal environments used for the community
and recreational game.

Its vision is: “Within 10 years we aim to deliver great football facilities, wherever they are
needed”

Page 141
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 105



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

£1.3 billion has been spent by football and Government since 2000 to enhance existing football
facilities and build new ones. However, more is needed if football and Government’s shared
objectives for participation, individual well-being and community cohesion are to be achieved.
Nationally, direct investment will be increased — initially to £69 million per annum from football
and Government (a 15% increase on recent years).

The NFFS investment priorities can be broadly grouped into six areas, recognising the need
to grow the game, support existing players and better understand the different football
environments:

< Improve 20,000 Natural Turf pitches, with a focus on addressing drop off due to a poor
playing experience;

<« Deliver 1,000 3G AGP ‘equivalents’ (mix of full size and small sided provision, including
MUGAs - small sided facilities are likely to have a key role in smaller / rural communities
and encouraging multi-sport offers), enhancing the quality of playing experience and
supporting a sustainable approach to grass roots provision;

<« Deliver 1,000 changing pavilions/clubhouses, linked to multi-pitch or hub sites,
supporting growth (particularly in women and girls football), sustainability and providing a
facility infrastructure to underpin investment in coaching, officials and football
development;

4 Support access to flexible indoor spaces, including equipment and court markings, to
support growth in futsal, walking football and to support the education and skills outcomes,
exploiting opportunities for football to positively impact on personal and social outcomes
for young people in particular;

< Refurbish existing stock to maintain current provision, recognising the need to
address historic under-investment and issues with refurbishment of existing facilities;

4 Support testing of technology and innovation, building on customer insight to deliver
hubs for innovation, testing and development of the game.

Local Football Facility Plans

To support in delivery of the NFFS, The FA has commissioned a national project. Over the
next two years to 2020, a Local Football Facility Plan (LFFP) will be produced for every local
authority across England. Each plan will be unique to its area as well as being diverse in its
representation, including currently underrepresented communities.

Identifying strategic priorities for football facilities across the formal, recreational and informal
game, LFFPs will establish a ten-year vision for football facilities that aims to transform the
playing pitch stock in a sustainable way. They will identify key projects to be delivered and
act as an investment portfolio for projects that require funding. As such, around 90% of all will
be identified via LFFPs. LFFPs will guide the allocation of 90% of national football investment
(The FA, Premier League and DCMS) and forge stronger partnerships with local stakeholders
to develop key sites. This, together with local match-funding will deliver over one billion
pounds of investment into football facilities over the next 10-years.

It is important to recognise that a LFFP is an investment portfolio of priority projects for
potential investment - it is not a detailed supply and demand analysis of all pitch provision in
alocal area. Therefore, it cannot be used as a replacement for a Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS)
and it will not be accepted as an evidence base for site change of use or disposal.

A LFFP will; however, build on available/existing local evidence and strategic plans and may

adopt relevant actions from a PPS and/or complement these with additional investment
priorities.

Page 142
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 106



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

The FA: National Game Strategy (2018-2021)

The FA launched its new National Game Strategy in July 2018 which aims to inspire a life-
long journey in football for all. To achieve this, the strategy will focus on five key aspects of
the game:

A high quality introduction to football

Developing clubs and leagues

Embrace all formats of football and engage all participants
Recruit, develop and support the workforce

Develop sustainable facilities

A A A A A

Through these five pillars, The FA’s objectives are to:

Increase the number of male affiliated and recreational players by 10%.

Double the number of female affiliated and recreational players via a growth of 75%.
Increase the number of disability affiliated and recreational players by 30%.

Ensure affiliated Futsal is available across the country in order to increase the number of
Futsal affiliated and recreational players.

4
4
4
4

The sustainable football facilities should provide support to an agreed portfolio of priority
projects that meet National Football Facility Strategy (NFFS) investment priorities.

England and Wales Cricket Board (ECB) Inspiring Generations (2020-2024)

The England and Wales Cricket Board unveiled a new strategic plan in 2019. The strategic
plan aims to connect communities and improve lives by inspiring people to discover and share
their passion for cricket

The plan sets out six important priorities and activities, these are:

<« Grow and nurture the core
Create an infrastructure investment fund for First Class County Clubs (FCCs)
Introduce a new Community Investment Funding for FCCs and County Cricket Boards
(CCBs)
Invest in club facilities
Develop the role of National Counties Cricket
Further invest in County Competitions

< Inspire through elite teams
Increase investment in the county talent pathway
Incentivise the counties to develop England Players
Drive the performance system through technology and innovation
Create heroes and connect them with a new generation of fans

< Make cricket accessible
Broaden crickets appeal through the New Competition
Create a new digital community for cricket
Install non-traditional playing facilities in urban areas
Continue to deliver South Asian Action Plans
Launch a new participation product, linked to the New Competition

Page 143
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 107



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

< Engage children and young people
Double cricket participation in primary schools
Deliver a compelling and coordinated recreational playing offer from age five upwards
Develop our safeguarding to promote safe spaces for children and young people

< Transform women’s and girls’ cricket
Grow the base through participation and facilities investment
Launch centres of excellence and a new elite domestic structure
Invest in girls’ county age group cricket
Deliver a girls’ secondary school programme

4 Support our communities
Double the number of volunteers in the game
Create a game-wide approach to Trust and Foundations through the cricket network
Develop a new wave of officials and community coaches
Increase participation in disability cricket

The Rugby Football Union Strategic Plan (2017-2021)

The RFU has released its new strategic vision for rugby in England. The strategy is based on
four main elements which are; Protect, Engage, Grow and Win. It covers all elements of rugby
union ranging from elite rugby to grassroots, although the general relevancy to the PPS is
centred around growing the game.

The RFU exists to promote and develop rugby union in England and ensure the long-term
sustainability of clubs by growing player numbers and retaining them across all age groups.
Responding to wider marker influences, work will continue on developing new ways to take
part in all forms of the game, without comprising the sports traditions. This will ensure a lasting
legacy from elite success by attracting new players and encouraging current male and female
adult players to play.

The four key aims to ensure long term sustainability are to:

< Improve player transition from age grade to adult 15-a-side rughy
4 Expand places to play through Artificial Grass Pitches (AGPSs)

< Engage new communities in rugby

<« Create a community 7’s offering

The Rugby Football League Facility Strategy

The RFL’s Facilities Strategy was published in 2011. The following themes have been
prioritised:

Clean, Dry, Safe & Playable
Sustainable clubs
Environmental Sustainability
Geographical Spread
Non-club Facilities

A A A A A

The RFL Facilities Trust website www.rflfacilitiestrust.co.uk provides further information on:

< The RFL Community Facility Strategy
< Clean, Dry, Safe and Playable Programme
<« Pitch Size Guidance

Page 144
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 108


http://www.rflfacilitiestrust.co.uk/

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

4 The RFL Performance Standard for Artificial Grass Pitches
< Club guidance on the Annual Preparation and Maintenance of the Rugby League Pitch

Further to the 2011 Strategy detail on the following specific programmes of particular
relevance to pitches and facility planning are listed below and can be found via the trust link
(see above):

<« The RFL Pitch Improvement Programme 2013 — 2017
< Clean, Dry and Safe programmes 2013 - 2017

Rugby League World Cup ‘Inspired by 2021’ Legacy Programme

The Rugby League World Cup 2021 will develop a £10 million legacy programme with funds
driven into local clubs and community projects. The government investment, delivered by
Sport England, is part of RLWC 2021’s ambitious plan to grow the sport and make it more
visible, engaging and welcoming to current and potential participants.

The funding will be split into large transformational community projects, such as changing
room improvements and new artificial grass pitches with the remaining funding used for
smaller scale initiatives such as supplying new kit and equipment to promote club and
community development. The investment will focus on the following four key areas:

< Creating welcoming environments
4 Encouraging participation growth
< Building community engagement
< Cultivating further investment

England Hockey (EH) - A Nation Where Hockey Matters 2013
The vision is for England to be a ‘Nation Where Hockey Matters’.

We know that delivering success on the international stage stimulates the nation’s pride in
their hockey team and, with the right events in place, we will attract interest from spectators,
sponsors and broadcasters alike. The visibility that comes from our success and our occasions
will inspire young people and adults to follow in the footsteps of their heroes and, if the right
opportunities are there to meet their needs, they will play hockey and enjoy wonderful
experiences.

Underpinning all this is the infrastructure which makes our sport function. We know the
importance of our volunteers, coaches, officials, clubs and facilities. The more inspirational
our people can be, the more progressive we can be and the more befitting our facilities can
be, the more we will achieve for our sport. England Hockey will enable this to happen and we
are passionate about our role within the sport. We will lead, support, counsel, focus and
motivate the Hockey Nation and work tirelessly towards our vision.

As a governing body, we want to have a recognisable presence to participants of the game,
be that through club or association website or their communications, or through the work of
the many outstanding coaches in our game, so that players understand that their club is part
of a wider team working together to a common goal.

The core objectives are as follows:

1. Grow our Participation
2. Deliver International Success

Page 145
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 109



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

3. Increase our Visibility
4. Enhance our Infrastructure
5. For England Hockey to be proud and respected custodians of the sport

Club participation

Our club market is well structured and clubs are required to affiliate to England Hockey to play
in community leagues. As a result only relatively few occasional teams lie outside our affiliation
structure. Schools and Universities are the other two areas where significant hockey is played.

Hockey is clearly benefiting from a double Olympic legacy. After Great Britain’s women won
bronze in front of a home crowd in London in 2012 the numbers of young girls playing the
sport doubled and a historic gold in Rio 2016 saw more than 10,000 players promptly joining
clubs. These triumphs have inspired the nation to get active and play hockey. Thanks to the
outstanding work of the network of clubs across the country, England Hockey has seen
unprecedented growth at both ends of the age range. There has been an 80% increase in the
number of boys and girls in clubs, as well as a 54% increase in players over the age of 46.

Hockey clubs have reaped the rewards of the improved profile of the sport, focussing on a link
with schools to provide excellent opportunities for young players. Programmes such as Quick
sticks — a small-sided version of hockey for 7-11 year olds — in Primary Schools have been
hugely successful in allowing new players to take part in the sport from an early age. The
growth in the sport since the eve of London 2012 has been seen across the country, examples
being a 110% increase in under 16s club participation in London, and a 111% growth in the
North West in the same age bracket.

England Hockey Strategy
England Hockey’s Facilities Strategy can be found here.

Vision: For every hockey club in England to have appropriate and sustainable facilities that
provide excellent experiences for players.

Mission: More, Better, Happier Players with access to appropriate and sustainable facilities
The 3 main objectives of the facilities strategy are:
1. PROTECT: To conserve the existing hockey provision
- There are currently over 800 pitches that are used by hockey clubs (club, school,
universities) across the country. It is important to retain the current provision where
appropriate to ensure that hockey is maintained across the country.
2. IMPROVE: To improve the existing facilities stock (physically and administratively)
- The current facilities stock is ageing and there needs to be strategic investment into
refurbishing the pitches and ancillary facilities. England Hockey works to provide more
support for clubs to obtain better agreements with facilities providers & education
around owning an asset.
3. DEVELORP: To strategically build new hockey facilities where there is an identified

need and ability to deliver and maintain. This might include consolidating hockey
provision in a local area where appropriate.

Page 146

December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 110


http://www.englandhockey.co.uk/page.asp?section=2075&sectionTitle=Facilities+Strategy

NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

England Hockey has identified key areas across the country where there is a lack of suitable
hockey provision and there is a need for additional pitches, suitable for hockey. There is an
identified demand for multi pitches in the right places to consolidate hockey and allow clubs to
have all of their provision catered for at one site.

England Netball - Your Game, Your Way 2013-17

Even though this Plan is out of date, England Netball remains committed to its '10-1-1' mission,
vision and values that form the fundamentals for its strategic planning for the future for the
sport and business.

To facilitate the successful achievement of Netball 10:1:1 and Goal 4, England Netball will:

4 Accelerate the participation growth by extending our market penetration and reach
through the activation of a range of existing and new participant-focused products and
programmes that access new and targeted markets.

4 Increase the level of long-term participant retention through targeting programmes at
known points of attrition and easy transition through the market segments, supported by
an infrastructure that reflects the participant needs and improves their netball experience.

< Build a sustainable performance pathway and system built on the principles of purposeful
practice and appropriate quality athlete coach contact time.

< Develop sustainable revenue streams through the commercialisation of a portfolio of
products and programmes and increasing membership sales. This will also include the
creation of cost efficiencies and improved value for money through innovative
partnerships and collaborations in all aspects of the business.

4 Establish high standards of leadership and governance that protect the game and its
people and facilitates the on-going growth and transformation of the NGB and sport.

British Tennis Strategy 2019

The new LTA Strategy includes seven strategies relating to three objectives which are built
around the following vision and mission:

Vision: tennis opened up
Mission: to grow tennis by making it relevant, accessible, welcoming and enjoyable

Objectives
4 Increase the number of fans on our database from [623,602] to [1,000,000] by 2023.
4 More people playing more often;
< Increase the number of adults playing tennis each year from [7.7% (4,018,600)] of
the population to [8.5% (4,420,460)], and the frequency of adults playing tennis twice
a month from [1.9% (858.700)] of the population to [2.2% (1,000,000)] by 2023.
< The number of children playing tennis from [x] to [y] by 2023 (to be finalised
December 2018 on publication of Sport England’s new Child Participation Survey).
< Enable 5 new players to break into the top 100 by 2023 and inspire the tennis audience.

Strategies

1. Visibility -Broaden relevance and increase visibility of tennis all year round to build
engagement and participation with fans and players.

2. Innovation - Innovate in the delivery of tennis to widen its appeal.

3. Investment - Support community facilities and schools to increase the opportunities to

play
Page 147
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 111



NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME BOROUGH COUNCIL
STRATEGY & ACTION PLAN

4. Accessibility - Make the customer journey to playing tennis easier and more accessible
for anyone

5. Engagement - Engage and collaborate with everyone involved in delivering tennis in
Britain, particularly coaches and volunteers to attract and maintain more people in the
game.

6. Performance - Create a pathway for British champions that nurtures a diverse team of
players, people and leaders.

7. Leadership - Lead tennis in Britain to the highest standard so it is a safe, welcoming,
well-run sport.

British Crown Green Bowling Association

Please note there is no current facility guidance provided by British Crown Green Bowling
Association responsible for crown green bowls in England.

http://bcgba.org.uk/index.html

Growing the Game of Golf in England (2017-2021)

In 2014, England Golf developed its first national strategy to help golf in England rise to some
serious challenges. Membership was declining, many clubs were facing financial and business
problems and the perception of the game was proving damaging. As such, it decided to set
out recommendations for actions that would help “raise the game”.

The 2014 strategy helped achieve the following:

427,111 people being introduced to golf for the first time.

31,913 new members for England’s golf clubs from national initiatives.
Over £25 million generated for golf clubs through new members.

Four counties to merge their men’s and women’s unions associations.
Support for 15,200 national, regional and county squad players.

Over 150 championships and events organised across the country.

A A A A A A

Following the above strategy, England Golf is now setting out to “grow the game” of golf
through seven strategic objectives. Developed in consultation with the golfing community, six
of these are developed from the previous work in 2014, whilst one (being customer focussed)
is brand new and intends on boosting the impact of them all.

The objectives are:

Being customer focussed

Stronger counties and club

Excellent governance

Improve image

More members and players

Outstanding championships, competitions and events
Winning golfers

A A A A A A A

Page 148
December 2020 Strategy: Knight Kavanagh & Page 112


http://bcgba.org.uk/index.html

Agenda Item
S

NEWCASTL E-UNDER-L YME BOROUGH COUNCIL ONDER LYME

BOROUGH COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM’S
REPORT TO

Cabinet
21 April 2021

Report Title: Internal Audit Service Level Agreement Update

Submitted by: Head of Finance (S151 Officer)

Portfolios: Finance & Efficiency

Ward(s) affected: All

Purpose of the Report

Approval of the Internal Audit Service Level Agreement update.

Recommendation

1. Cabinet approval the updated Internal Audit Service Level Agreement.

Reasons

Approval of the updated Internal Audit Service Level Agreement is required in order to continue the service
provision together with fraud detection and prevention.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations include the statutory requirement for the provision of an adequate
and effective internal audit function. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) place a duty on
Internal Audit to plan effectively to ensure it contributes to the Council’s objectives at strategic and
operational levels. Planning also enables Internal Audit to demonstrate that they are making the best use
of available resources.

1. Background

1.1 The primary purpose of an Internal Audit service is to provide an independent, objective
assurance and consulting service to the organisation; and through the efficient delivery of this
service seeks to add value and improve the organisation’s operations and controls to effectively
deliver the council’s Strategic Priorities. Internal Audit assists the organisation to accomplish
its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluating and improving the
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) apply to all internal audit service providers,
whether in-house, shared services or outsourced. Assessment against the Standards provides
assurance that the service is being delivered to a satisfactory level and in conformance to the
standards.

1.3 In February 2019 the Council entered into a Service Level Agreement with Stoke-on-Trent City

Council for the provision of management of the Council’s Internal Audit activities, the internal
audit team and the provision of the audit plan.

Page 149



rod s

A )
EWCASTLE

UNDER LYME

1.4 In addition to the Internal Audit management provision, the Council also entered into a
Partnership Agreement with Stoke-on-Trent City Council to provide a full counter fraud service
covering all types on non-benefit and corporate fraud, including the detection and investigation
as well as work to prevent fraud and share learning coming out of its activities both within the
partnership and more broadly.

2. Issues

2.1 Last year the Council’'s two Internal Auditors were successfully appointed as Accountancy
Assistants in the Finance Team after applying for the roles. The result of this was that the
Council no longer had its own Internal Auditors and would need to either recruit to replace or
extend the Service Level Agreement with Stoke-on-Trent City Council to provide the resource.
Due to Covid-19 and the impact the pandemic had on both of the authorities together with the
additional work demands, it was agreed Stoke-on-Trent City Council would charge the Council
on a completed audit only basis during the pandemic due to the difficulties in completing the
work and lack of staff resources.

2.21In addition to the above, the Council’'s Corporate Fraud Officer has recently retired and
therefore the Council now needs to extend the counter fraud service arrangements with Stoke-
on-Trent City Council to ensure the service provision.

3. Proposal

3.1 Discussion have taken place with Stoke-on-Trent City Council in respect of updating and
combining the two agreements in place with them in order to provide the Council with the
required service provision at best value.

3.2 It is recommended that the existing Service Level Agreements in place with Stoke-on-Trent
City Council be updated and combined to cover the provision of the Internal Audit services
which include the management of the service, qualified auditors, the formulation and
monitoring of the audit plan. The Service Level Agreement will also cover the provision of Fraud
Investigating Officers and access to the Fraud Hub.

4. Reasons for Proposed Solution

4.1 In approving the updated Service Level Agreement with Stoke-on-Trent City Council, the
internal audit service provision will be maintained, the Council will be able to access local
skilled staff in respect of audit and fraud issues together with achieving value for money.

5. Options Considered

5.1 As the Council is in the second year of the three year agreement, it is more cost effective to
update the current agreement to include the provision of Audit and Fraud staff than to re-
tender for the whole service provision.

6. Legal and Statutory Implications

6.1 The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, state that “A relevant authority [the
Council] must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal
auditing standards or guidance.” (para 5(1)).

Page 150



10.

UNDER LYME

BOROUGH COUNCIL

6.2 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that every local authority should make
arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and shall secure that one
of their officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs’. CIPFA has defined
‘proper administration’ in that it should include ‘compliance with the statutory requirements for
accounting and internal audit’.

6.3 The activities of Internal Audit are planned in accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations which place a duty upon the Chief Internal Auditor to report to members on a
regular basis. By acting upon recommendations within internal audit reports, the council is
demonstrating its commitment to maintain an adequate and effective system of internal control,
as required by these regulations. Satisfactory delivery of the audit plan assists the Head of
Finance (Section 151 Officer), in discharging her duties under section 151 of the Local
Government Act 1972.

Equality Impact Assessment

7.1 There are no equality impact issues identified from the proposal.

Financial and Resource Implications

8.1 The total cost of the updated Internal Audit Service Level Agreement amounts to £133k per
annum. This compares to the existing costs as detailed in the table below:

Work Stream Cost £
Internal Audit Management and production of Audit Plan 22,000
2 x NBC Internal Auditors Salary (inc on costs) 77,338
Provision of ICT Audit Support 15,000
1 x NBC Corporate Fraud Officer Salary (inc on costs) 34,205
Total 148,543

8.2 By updating the Internal Audit Service Level Agreement to include all the required services
and officer the Council will make a saving of £15,543 per annum.

Major Risks

9.1 The key risk to be considered by not approving the updated Internal Audit Service Level
Agreement is that the Council will not be fulfilling its statutory requirement of having an
adequate and effective internal audit function as set out on the Accounts and Audit
Regulations.

UN Sustainable Development Goals and Climate Change Implications

10.1 The Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Arrangement via Stoke-on-Trent City Council and the
Fraud Hub supports UNSG and Climate Change objectives in a number of ways. Principally,
through partnership working and supporting sustainable cities and communities via the
correct use of public monies. The following UNSGs are supported.

'I PARTNERSHIPS
FOR THE GOALS

&

Page 151



11.

12.

13.

14.

UNDER LYME

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Key Decision Information

11.1 The contract value of over £50,000 each makes this a key decision item.

Earlier Cabinet/Committee Resolutions

12.1 This report is not in reference to previous Cabinet or Committee resolutions.

List of Appendices

13.1 None.

Backqground Papers

14.1 Existing Stoke-on-Trent City Council Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Agreements.

Page 152



T
«Q

€qT abe

P2 NEWCASTLE-UNDER-LYME

Cabinet Forward Plan: Newcastle under Lyme Borough Council

Notice of Key Decisions to be taken under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings & Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012

This Plan gives 28 days’ notice of Key Decisions which we are expecting to take over the next few months. Councils cannot take Key Decisions without
first giving 28 days’ notice, unless an urgent decision is required. Urgent Key Decisions may be taken under the urgency procedures set out in the
Council’s Constitution. A decision notice for each Key Decision made is published within 6 days of it having been made.

“Key decisions” are defined as those Executive (Cabinet) decisions which are likely:

a. toresult in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings of £100,000 of more (in the case of Revenue) and £250,000 or more (in the case of
Capital); and/or

b. to be significant in terms of the effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards of the Borough.
This Forward Plan also contains details of other important Cabinet decisions that we are expecting to take even if they do not meet this definition.
Whilst the majority of these decisions taken at meetings held in public, some decisions may be taken in private meetings because they deal with
confidential information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the
public interest in disclosing it. If we intend to take a decision in private, that will be noted below with reasons.
If you object to a decision being taken in private, you can tell us why by emailing DemocraticServices@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk or contacting the address

below. Any representations received at least 8 working days before the meeting will be published with the agenda together with a statement of the
Council’s response. Any representations received after this time will be reported verbally to the meeting.

g wa)| epuaby

Page 1 of 4


mailto:DemocraticServices@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

vGT obed

The Cabinet is made up of the Leader, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Members with the following portfolios:

Leader of the Council (Corporate & Service Improvement, People & Partnerships) Councillor Simon Tagg
Deputy Leader & Cabinet Portfolio Holder (Finance & Efficiency) Councillor Stephen Sweeney
Cabinet Portfolio Holder (Community Safety & Well Being) Councillor Helena Maxfield
Cabinet Portfolio Holder (Environment & Recycling) Councillor Trevor Johnson
Cabinet Portfolio Holder (Leisure, Culture & Heritage) Councillor Jill Waring
Cabinet Portfolio Holder (Planning & Growth) Councillor Paul Northcott

Exempt Information Categories under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972

PR

o

7.

Information relating to any individual

Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information).

Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations
matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under the authority

Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

Information which reveals an authority proposes;

a. to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or

b. to make an order or direction under any enactment

Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of a crime

Copies of the Council’s Constitution, agendas and reports relevant to any key decision may be accessed on the Council’s website www.newcastle-
staffs.gov.uk or may be viewed during normal office hours. Copies or extracts can be obtained on payment of a fee (unless the publication contains
exempt information).

For all enquiries, please contact:- The Chief Executive’s Directorate, Castle House, Barracks Road

Newcastle-under-Lyme, Staffordshire ST5 1BL
Telephone 01782 742222  Email: DemocraticServices@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk



http://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/
http://www.newcastle-staffs.gov.uk/
mailto:DemocraticServices@newcastle-staffs.gov.uk

Title of Report Brief Description of Cabinet Intended Relevant Overview & Wards Reason for
Report Portfolio Decision Date | Scrutiny Committee Affected Determining
in Private
Session (if
applicable)
Future High To report on progress with Corporate & Cabinet Economy, Environment | All Wards N\A
Street Fund the Council’s application for | Service 21 April and Place
Update funding Improvement, | 2021
People &
Partnerships
Playing Pitch To approve a Playing Pitch | Planning & Cabinet Economy, Environment | All Wards N\A
Strategy Strategy for the Borough Growth 21 April and Place
2021
Update on To report on progress with Corporate & Cabinet Economy, Environment | All Wards N\A
Ongoing Odours | the ongoing odour issues Service 21 April and Place
Affecting the affecting the Borough Improvement, | 2021
Borough People &
Partnerships
Planning To receive an annual review | Planning & Cabinet Economy, Environment | All Wards N\A
Enforcement of the Planning Growth 9 June 2021 and Place
Policy Review Enforcement Policy
2020/2021 To receive the outturn and Finance & Cabinet Finance, Assets & All Wards N/A
Outturn and performance report for Efficiency 9 June 2021 Performance
Performance 2020/2021
Report
Recyclates To seek authority to award | Environment | Cabinet Economy, Environment | All Wards N/A
Disposal a recyclates disposal & Recycling 9 June 2021 and Place
Contract contract

Newcastle
Crematorium

To consider the consultation
outcome on the proposed
crematorium extension and

Environment
& Recycling

Cabinet
7 July 2021

Finance, Assets &
Performance

Bradwell/All
Wards

N/A

GGT abe




9GT abed

development of adjacent
land




	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	4 UPDATE ON ON-GOING ODOUR PROBLEM AFFECTING THE BOROUGH
	Odours Appendix 2
	Odours Appendix 3
	Officers of the Environment Agency D.Huckfield 4-6-21

	5 NEWCASTLE TOWN CENTRE FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND AWARD
	6 NEWCASTLE UNDER LYME PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY 2021 - 26
	Newcastle-under-Lyme Strategy & Action Plan

	7 INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT UPDATE
	8 FORWARD PLAN

